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INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS

It is the responsibility of each offeror to:

Follow the format required in this RFP when preparing your response.  Provide responses in a clear and concise manner.

Provide complete answers/descriptions.  Read and answer all questions and requirements.  Proposals are evaluated based solely on the information and materials provided in your written response, clarifications, best and final offer, and/or oral presentation/demonstration/interview.

Use any forms provided, e.g., cover page, budget form, certification forms, etc.

Submit your response on time.  Note all the dates and times listed in the Schedule of Events and within the document.  Late proposals are never accepted.

The following items MUST be included in the response.

Failure to include ANY of these items may result in a nonresponsive determination.

(
Signed Cover Sheet

(
Signed Addenda (if appropriate) in accordance with Section 1.4.3
(
Address all mandatory requirements in accordance with Section 1.5.3
(
Correctly executed State of Montana "Affidavit for Trade Secret Confidentiality" form, if claiming information to be confidential or proprietary in accordance with Section 2.3.1.
(
In addition to a detailed response to all requirements within Sections 4, 5, and Appendices C and D, offeror must acknowledge that it has read, understands, and will comply with each section/subsection listed below by initialing the line to the left of each.  If offeror cannot meet a particular requirement, provide a detailed explanation next to that requirement.
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Appendix F, Bidder’s Library Inventory

SCHEDULE OF EVENTS

EVENT
DATE
RFP Issue Date
September 11, 2014
Deadline for Receipt of Written Questions
September 25, 2014
Deadline for Posting Written Responses to State's Website
October 10, 2014
RFP Response Due Date
November 14, 2014
Notification of Offeror Interviews/Product Demonstrations
December 5, 2014*
Offeror Interviews/Product Demonstrations
December 17-19, 2014*
Intended Date for Contract Award
February 1, 2015*
*The dates above identified by an asterisk are included for planning purposes.  These dates are subject to change.
SECTION 1:  INTRODUCTION AND INSTRUCTIONS
1.1
INTRODUCTION

The STATE OF MONTANA, Department of Public Health and Human Services (State or DPHHS) is seeking one or more contractor(s) to provide Electronic Benefit Transfer (EBT) Services for Montana’s Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF or Cash) program, and Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC).  Montana seeks a broad range of EBT services and functions to support the electronic delivery of health and human services and benefits to eligible participants in Montana. The offeror may bid on all programs (SNAP, TANF, WIC); SNAP and TANF combined; or WIC alone.  The offeror can submit more than one proposal.
Under Montana law, public procurement units, as defined in 18-4-401, MCA, have the option of cooperatively purchasing with the State of Montana.  Public procurement units are defined as local or state public procurement units of this or any other state, including an agency of the United States, or a tribal procurement unit.  Unless the offeror objects, in writing, to the State Procurement Bureau prior to the award of this contract, the contract will be offered to these public procurement units.  If other public procurement units want to join the contract the prices will be renegotiated to provide the optimum cost savings to all participating units.  However, the State Procurement Bureau makes no guarantee of any public procurement unit participation in this contract  This multi-state approach allows possible cost savings due to the volume of clients served. Current and future states participating in this contract will benefit from tiered pricing based on volume with the addition of new states.
The EBT contractor must support the Federal requirement of processing interoperable SNAP and Cash transactions.  Additionally, the EBT contractor shall comply with all State and Federal rules and regulations supporting EBT for Montana SNAP, Cash, and WIC programs.  References to Federal requirements are presented in detail in RFP Section 3.2.2.4, Governing Regulations.  This RFP presents the requirements, limits, and guidance needed for offerors to present a viable proposal.  In developing technical and cost proposals, offerors are required to access program information and artifacts maintained in the Bidder’s Library. The Bidder’s Library is available online at: http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/SolicitationDefault.aspx. The Bidder’s Library contains information such as program caseload, call volume statistics, a listing of participating/authorized retail stores, farmers, farmers’ markets, sample program reports and other relevant information referenced throughout this RFP.    A list of documents that are available electronically in the Bidder’s Library at the time of release of this RFP is presented in Appendix F.
Going forward, Montana uses the term Cash to refer to its TANF program.  A complete glossary of terms is presented in Appendix E.  A more complete description of the services to be provided is available in Section 3 of this RFP.  

1.1.1
Organizational Responsibilities.  Currently, DPHHS Technology Services Division (TSD) provides technical support to the DPHHS and manages the Montana Access EBT system and its operations.  TSD serves as the DPHHS agent in the acquisition and operation of EBT services and is the liaison to the Department of Administration (DOA) State Procurement Bureau (SPB) and State Information Technology Services Division (SITSD).  TSD is the Department liaison to USDA Food and Nutrition Service (FNS) for all SNAP information technology system related matters and communications.

TSD is organized into the following bureaus and working units:

· Information Systems Bureau (ISB) provides internal systems support, hardware, web, and Help Desk for the Department.  ISB is the Department liaison association with the State IT authority, SITSD.  This includes the databases for the Montana Access EBT system.  SITSD is responsible for and manages telecommunications, network, firewalls and the interfaces with the outside world.  This includes telecommunications for the Montana Access EBT system, the Interactive Voice Response unit or IVR and the dedicated network and telephone lines for EBT transaction processing with the Gateway Switch or transaction processing service.

· Network and Communications Bureau (NCB) provides telecommunication and network support, technical and system security for the Department.

· Project Management Bureau (PMB) provides external systems project management support for new IT projects and ongoing operations for the Department.  This includes the Montana Access EBT system and the current SNAP eligibility and authorization system, the Economic Assistance Management System; or TEAMS.

· The Division Administrator’s office provides fiscal and accounting support, procurement, contracting, audit compliance, Department security and federal communications liaison for the Department.  This office is the liaison association with the State Procurement Bureau, which has contracting authority for all state agencies.

SITSD provides IT expertise, services, products and support of the Montana Access System:

· Telecommunications.  Contract liaison and management of Sprint Services for telecommunication and connectivity between Montana Access authorization engine, Gateway Processor, IT facilities management support contractor, fail-over offsite data centers, internet services and web tools including ISDN lines, trunk lines and T1s.  

· Network.  Management of WAN, LAN, internet routers, DMZ, trunk lines, mainframe and connections, security.

· EBT IVR.  Management of EBT1, EBT2 and offsite backup IVR including database, servers, Meridian PBX, modems, ports.  Contract Liaison and management of EBT IVR proprietary software with Microlog vendor.

· Products and services.  Hardware such as servers, switches, PBX switches, routers, cables.  Products and services such as Summitnet, Citrix, security, disaster recovery, diagnostics, risk management, maintenance, troubleshooting, IT help desk and on call services.

· Mainframe support and file interfaces for sending and retrieving demographic and benefit files from authorizing systems to Montana Access.

The Human and Community Services Division (HCSD) serves as the primary project sponsor and stakeholder providing executive level support, program and policy direction, system user requirements, and legal support in issues relating to programs administered through the HCSD such as SNAP and TANF (Cash).  HCSD is responsible for administering regulations and policies related to determining eligibility and benefit levels for SNAP and TANF participants, reconciling and reporting benefits, resolving program issues, collecting and managing returned, lost or stolen cards, fair hearings and fraud referrals.  HCSD directly supervises the local county Offices of Public Assistance (OPA) where individuals apply for SNAP and TANF benefits.  Eligibility workers enter the application information into The Economic Assistance Management System; or TEAMS.  TEAMS sends demographic and benefit files to Montana Access.

The Business and Financial Services Division (BFSD) serves as a primary project sponsor and stakeholder and provides policy, direction and advocates for the Montana Access Project at the executive level.  BFSD is responsible for settlement reconciliation and reporting, ACH payments from the State account, balancing the State account, Account Management Agent (AMA) reporting and reconciliation, Automated Standard Application for Payments (ASAP) reporting and reconciliation, reconciling TANF payments and drawing down SNAP Federal funds from the Letter of Credit.

The USDA, Food and Nutrition Service (FNS) is the Federal authority for administering and overseeing the national food assistance and nutrition education programs.  FNS programs directly affected by this RFP are the Special Supplemental Nutrition Program known as WIC, and the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program, SNAP.  Currently, SNAP is supported by EBT.  FNS ensures access to nutritious, healthful diets for all Americans.  FNS provides food assistance and nutrition education for consumers, dietary guidance based on research, increases food security and reduces hunger in partnership with cooperating organizations by providing children and low-income individuals access to food, a healthful diet, and nutrition education in a manner that supports American agriculture and inspires public confidence. 

FNS Retailer Operations Branch (ROB) provides support for authorizing retailers to participate in the SNAP EBT program.  FNS monitors and enforces retailer compliance regarding fraud and compliance such as eligible food items participants are allowed to purchase with SNAP benefits.  New retailers or retailers not already authorized to participate in EBT apply and are initially certified to participate in EBT through the FNS ROB.  FNS continues to be a key stakeholder and important partner support to the State of Montana regarding food nutritional programs and EBT.

1.1.2
Programs That Will Use the System.  As partners in this RFP, the Montana SNAP, Cash and WIC programs wish to leverage EBT contractor services, where applicable, to support participant access to benefits for these programs.  As the State moves to the use of shared services, including shared fiscal services across programs; the State seeks a high-level of coordination of EBT services and activities among programs.  

Montana’s WIC program is completing its planning project to move from paper benefits to EBT. DPHHS has included the WIC program within this RFP and will pursue an EBT contractor that is uniquely qualified and positioned to support the three Montana programs going forward.  

1.1.3
Relationship of EBT System to Program Function.  Currently, the State uses its Montana Access program to process SNAP and Cash electronic benefit transactions. Montana Access was a homegrown approach borne of necessity, implemented at a time when few options were available in Montana due to its small population and limited availability of EBT contractors within the industry.  Montana’s existing EBT system and processes are comprised of a hybrid solution, with the State maintaining the hardware and software and a contractor, Northrop Grumman, operating the system, producing the cards, managing the merchants, maintaining the point-of-sale (POS) terminals and providing a help desk for program participants. 

It is DPHHS’ expectation that going forward, the EBT contractor will not only support the SNAP and Cash electronic benefit transactions, but also ensure that WIC transaction redemption procedures for all program stakeholders are simplified and efficient, and a planned implementation is employed to promote a smooth roll out to merchants.
1.1.4
Major Objectives of the EBT System.  DPHHS is looking to procure a full range of EBT services.  At a high level, DPHHS will execute one or more contract(s) with the EBT contractor(s), which includes the following core EBT functional service areas:

· EBT account management

· Benefit redemption/transaction processing

· Reconciliation

· Settlement

· State and Federal reporting

· POS terminal deployment and maintenance

· Merchant management

· Deployment of farmer equipment (equipment that can process EBT transactions including but not limited to farmer and farmers’ market point of sale equipment)
· EBT card specifications, production and distribution

· PIN establishment and maintenance

· Customer service support (merchant, cardholder, DPHHS)

· IVR services

· Web portal

· Hot site services

· Production recovery support

· Security and privacy

· Audit services

· Training (merchant)
· Training (farmer specific)
· Training (DPHHS)
· Training (participant)
While this RFP presents and requests a full range of functions and services, the State may choose, for cost reasons, to perform some functions in-house (e.g., card management).  The State can also define the service level by program at which EBT contractor support is required, such as providing customer service support 24 x 7 for SNAP and Cash, or during standard business hours for WIC.  

In addition to services, the State will require the EBT contractor to provide a number of deliverables as part of the preparation for implementation and to support ongoing operations.  The deliverables include:

· Project management infrastructure

· Project management plan

· Project work plan(s)

· Weekly project status reports
· Monthly project status reports

· Communication plan

· Change control and approval process plan
· Transition plan
· Requirements validation plan

· Detailed system design document
· System security plan
· Requirements traceability matrix – baseline

· Go live dashboard

· Data conversion plan

· Data conversion results report

· Comprehensive test plan

· Test results report

· Comprehensive pilot operations plan

· Pilot operations training plan

· Pilot operations test report

· Comprehensive statewide implementation plan

· Updated requirements traceability matrix

· Statewide implementation training plan

· Updated system and user documentation

· Disaster recovery plan

· Post implementation operations monitoring plan

· Statewide merchant go/no-go decision recommendation report

· Monthly post implementation operations monitoring report (statewide implementation)

· Farmer EBT implementation plan

· Farmer EBT implementation training plan

· Updated system and user documentation

· Farmer EBT post implementation operations monitoring plan

· Farmer go/no-go decision report

· Monthly post implementation operations monitoring report (farmer implementation)

· Monthly Montana EBT operations report

· EBT contract turnover plan

· EBT services resource statement

· Updated EBT contract turnover plan and requirements traceability matrix
The SNAP, Cash and WIC programs collaborated to identify critical success factors associated with this procurement and have established key objectives by program area.  For the SNAP and Cash programs, the EBT contractor shall ensure that EBT functions and services:

· Are dependable and readily acceptable for participants – delaying benefits creates a crisis, therefore EBT benefits need to be available to participants wherever they live so they can easily use their benefits.

· Are flexible to support program policy changes – the EBT services must be flexible enough to support changes in SNAP and Cash policy changes from the Federal and State levels.  These changes may include increased security requirements or additional SNAP purchasing restrictions.

· Are affordable – services should not be costly for the State to administer and for participants and merchants to use.

· Include high levels of customer support – participants, the State, and merchants should receive timely and accurate information through a variety of mechanisms including web portals, reports, and call centers.

· Are flexible for future program integration and expansion – DPHHS or the State may want to expand its use of EBT moving forward.
· Are flexible to an alliance with other states, allowing those states to participate in this contract in the future.
For the WIC program, the EBT contractor shall ensure that EBT functions and services:

· Enable all authorized merchants (including authorized farmers) to participate in Montana’s WIC program regardless of equipment – the EBT system should be flexible and attainable.
· Maximize integration during implementation – EBT functionality possesses an integrated POS. 

· Promote a positive participant experience – allows remote food package adjustment, easily accessible account balance, web portal access for participants, ease of use for participants, an effective POS approach, and mixed basket functionality.

· Where appropriate, explore interstate and cross-program standardization and interoperability options – this could include integration with SNAP and system standardization requiring work only to be done once. 

· Possess design efficiencies to meet current and future needs – design a state of the art, adaptable, reliable, auditable, and easily modifiable system that allows for data security and quality that is inexpensive to run.

· Are cost-effective to operate and maintain – no transaction fees and free of procedural steps that encumber implementation and maintenance.
· Are flexible to an alliance with other states, allowing those states to participate in this contract in the future.
1.1.5
Expected Useful Life of the EBT System.  Offerors shall respond to this RFP with a comprehensive proposal to provide EBT services for the duration of the contract term as specified in Section 1.2. 

1.1.6
Type of Contract Anticipated.  For each option being proposed, the offeror must provide a complete cost model to accomplish all the tasks, activities, responsibilities, and objectives described in this RFP.  Additionally, it is the offeror’s responsibility to identify, define, and provide a unit cost for any services the offeror believes essential to the efficient operation of Montana’s EBT program, in addition to those named in this RFP.  The State retains the option of selecting those services it deems necessary without having to use all the services presented in this RFP or proposed by the offeror.  The cost model must be all-inclusive of the rates that will be billable to or paid in any way by the State.  If a rate is not identified as part of the cost model, it will not be considered as a separately billable service.  All services in this RFP will be considered to have been embedded in the rates quoted as part of the cost models submitted in response to this RFP. 

1.1.7
Preferred Method of Payment for Equipment.  For the SNAP and Cash programs, the offeror’s Cost per Case Month (CPCM) cost model shall include equipment costs necessary to support the services and scope of work described in this RFP.  For the WIC program, equipment costs shall be included in Pricing Schedule A-2, of Section 5.3.  With regard to equipment costs, the offeror shall adhere to the cost proposal instructions presented in Sections 5.2.1 and 5.3. 
1.1.8
Federal and State Approvals.  Contract approval is contingent upon both Federal and State approvals.  Every effort will be made by the State, both before and after selection, to facilitate rapid approval and an early start date for the contractor.  The State will send the contractor selection report and draft of the contract to the USDA/FNS Regional Office in Denver for FNS approval.
1.2
CONTRACT PERIOD

The base contract period is three year(s), beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2018, inclusive.  The parties may mutually agree to a renewal of this contract in two-year intervals, or any interval that is advantageous to the State.  This contract, including any renewals, may not exceed a total of 10 years, at the State's option.

1.3
SINGLE POINT OF CONTACT

From the date this Request for Proposal (RFP) is issued until an offeror is selected and announced by the procurement officer, offerors shall not communicate with any state staff regarding this procurement, except at the direction of Penny Moon, the procurement officer in charge of the solicitation.  Any unauthorized contact may disqualify the offeror from further consideration. Contact information for the single point of contact is:

Procurement Officer:  Penny Moon

Telephone Number:  (406) 444-3313

Fax Number: (406) 444-2529

E-mail Address:  pmoon@mt.gov 
1.4
REQUIRED REVIEW

1.4.1
Review RFP.  Offerors shall carefully review the entire RFP.  Offerors shall promptly notify the procurement officer identified above via e-mail or in writing of any ambiguity, inconsistency, unduly restrictive specifications, or error that they discover. In this notice, the offeror shall include any terms or requirements within this RFP that preclude the offeror from responding or add unnecessary cost.  Offerors shall provide an explanation with suggested modifications.  The notice must be received by the deadline for receipt of inquiries set forth in Section 1.4.2. The State will determine any changes to this RFP. 

1.4.2
Form of Questions.  Offerors having questions or requiring clarification or interpretation of any section within this RFP must address these issues via e-mail or in writing to the procurement officer listed above on or before September 25, 2014.  Offerors are to submit questions using the Vendor RFP Question and Answer Form available on the OneStop Vendor Information website at: http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/GSDDocuments.aspx or by calling (406) 444-2575.  Clear reference to the section, page, and item in question must be included in the form.   Questions received after the deadline may not be considered.

1.4.3
State's Response.  The State will provide a written response by October 10, 2014 to all questions received by September 25, 2014.  The State's response will be by written addendum and will be posted on the State's website with this RFP at http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/SolicitationDefault.aspx by the close of business on the date listed.  Any other form of interpretation, correction, or change to this RFP will not be binding upon the State.  Offerors shall sign and return with their RFP response an Acknowledgment of Addendum for any addendum issued. 

1.5
general requirements

1.5.1
Acceptance of Standard Terms and Conditions/Contract.  By submitting a response to this RFP, offeror accepts the standard terms and conditions and contract set out in Appendices A and B, respectively.  Much of the language included in the standard terms and conditions and contract reflects the requirements of Montana law.

Offerors requesting additions or exceptions to the standard terms and conditions, or to the contract terms, shall submit them to the procurement officer listed above by the date specified in Section 1.4.2.  A request must be accompanied by an explanation why the exception is being sought and what specific effect it will have on the offeror's ability to respond to this RFP or perform the contract.  The State reserves the right to address nonmaterial requests for exceptions to the standard terms and conditions and contract language with the highest scoring offeror during contract refinement. 

The State shall identify any revisions to the standard terms and conditions and contract language in a written addendum issued for this RFP.  The addendum will apply to all offerors submitting a response to this RFP.  The State will determine any changes to the standard terms and conditions and/or contract. 

1.5.2
Resulting Contract.  This RFP and any addenda, the offeror's RFP response, including any amendments, a best and final offer (if any), and any clarification question responses shall be incorporated by reference in any resulting contract.
1.5.3
Mandatory Requirements.  To be eligible for consideration, an offeror must meet all mandatory requirements as listed in Appendix C.  The State will determine whether an offeror's proposal complies with the requirements.  Proposals that fail to meet any mandatory requirements listed in this RFP will be deemed nonresponsive.

1.5.4
Understanding of Specifications and Requirements.  By submitting a response to this RFP, offeror acknowledges it understands and shall comply with this RFP specifications and requirements.

1.5.5
Offeror's Signature.  Offeror's proposal must be signed in ink by an individual authorized to legally bind the offeror.  The offeror's signature guarantees that the offer has been established without collusion.  Offeror shall provide proof of authority of the person signing this RFP upon State's request.

1.5.6
Offer in Effect for 180 Calendar Days.  Offeror agrees that it may not modify, withdraw, or cancel its proposal for a 180-day period following this RFP due date or receipt of best and final offer, if required.

1.6
Submitting a PrOPOSAL

1.6.1
Organization of Proposal.   Offerors must submit a signed copy of this RFP cover sheet and the form attached as Appendix C to respond to this RFP.  Offerors shall follow the response format outlined in Appendix C.  Proposals should be bound, and must include tabbed dividers separating each section.  Proposal pages must be consecutively numbered.

All subsections not listed in the "Instructions to Offerors" on page 3 require a response.  Restate the section/subsection number and the text immediately prior to your written response.
Unless specifically requested in this RFP, an offeror making the statement "Refer to our literature…" or "Please see www…….com" may be deemed nonresponsive or receive point deductions.  If making reference to materials located in another section of the proposal, specific page numbers and sections must be noted.  The Evaluator/Evaluation Committee is not required to search through the proposal or literature to find a response.
The State encourages offerors to use materials (e.g., paper, dividers, binders, brochures, etc.) that contain post-consumer recycled content.  Offerors are encouraged to print/copy on both sides of each page.

1.6.2
Failure to Comply with Instructions.  Offerors failing to comply with these instructions may be subject to point deductions.  Further, the State may deem a proposal nonresponsive or disqualify it from further consideration if it does not follow the response format, is difficult to read or understand, or is missing requested information.
1.6.3
Multiple Proposals.  Offerors may, at their option, submit multiple proposals.  Each proposal shall be evaluated separately.  Offerors may submit proposals for one or more options (listed below) but each option requires its own proposal.
OPTIONS

· SNAP, Cash, WIC

· WIC only

· SNAP, Cash
1.6.4
Price Sheets.  Offerors must use the RFP Price Sheets found in Section 5. These price sheets serve as the primary representation of offeror's cost/price.  Offeror should include additional information as necessary to explain the offeror's cost/price. 

1.6.5
Copies Required and Deadline for Receipt of Proposals.  Offerors must submit one original (paper) technical proposal and one copy (paper) to the State Procurement Bureau.  In addition, offerors must submit seven universal serial bus (USB) flash drives each containing one electronic copy of the complete proposal in Microsoft Word or portable document format (PDF), searchable as a single document with each section heading bookmarked.  If any confidential materials are included in accordance with the requirements of Section 2.3.2, they must be submitted on a separate USB flash drive.

Offerors must submit one original cost proposal (paper), two copies (paper), and two electronic copies on clearly labeled separate USB drives to the State Procurement Bureau under separate, sealed cover. Each USB must contain a single electronic copy of the cost proposal in Microsoft Word or Excel format.  PDF format is NOT acceptable.  The State Procurement Bureau will hold all cost proposals for opening until after the evaluation committee has completed its evaluation of the technical proposals.  The time of opening will be at the State's option.  At such time as the cost proposals are opened and reviewed by the procurement officer, they will be provided to the evaluation committee and become available for public inspection. The committee may, at its sole discretion and at any time during the evaluation process, adjust scores assigned to technical proposals.
each Proposal must be sealed and labeled on the outside of the package clearly indicating it is in response to RFP15-2883P. Proposals must be received at the reception desk of the State Procurement Bureau prior to 2:00 p.m., Mountain Time, November 14, 2014.  Offeror is solely responsible for assuring delivery to the reception desk by the designated time.
1.6.6
Facsimile Responses.  A facsimile response to an RFP will ONLY be accepted on an exception basis with prior approval of the procurement officer and only if it is received in its entirety by the specified deadline.  Responses to RFPs received after the deadline will not be considered.

1.6.7
Late Proposals.  Regardless of cause, the State shall not accept late proposals.  Such proposals will automatically be disqualified from consideration.  Offeror may request the State return the proposal at offeror's expense or the State will dispose of the proposal if requested by the offeror.  (See Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 2.5.509.)

1.7
COSTS/OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS

1.7.1
State Not Responsible for Preparation Costs.  Offeror is solely responsible for all costs it incurs prior to contract execution.

1.7.2
Ownership of Timely Submitted Materials.  The State shall own all materials submitted in response to this RFP.
SECTION 2:  RFP STANDARD INFORMATION

2.1
AUTHORITY

The RFP is issued under 18-4-304, Montana Code Annotated (MCA) and ARM 2.5.602.  The RFP process is a procurement option allowing the award to be based on stated evaluation criteria.  The RFP states the relative importance of all evaluation criteria.  The State shall use only the evaluation criteria outlined in this RFP.

2.2
Offeror Competition
The State encourages free and open competition to obtain quality, cost-effective services and supplies.  The State designs specifications, proposal requests, and conditions to accomplish this objective.  
2.3
Receipt of Proposals and Public Inspection

2.3.1
Public Information.  Subject to exceptions provided by Montana law, all information received in response to this RFP, including copyrighted material, is public information.  Proposals will be made available for public viewing and copying shortly after the proposal due date and time.  The exceptions to this requirement are:  (1) bona fide trade secrets meeting the requirements of the Uniform Trade Secrets Act, Title 30, chapter 14, part 4, MCA, that have been properly marked, separated, and documented; (2) matters involving individual safety as determined by the State; and (3) other constitutional protections.  See 18-4-304, MCA.  The State provides a copier for interested parties' use at $0.10 per page.  The interested party is responsible for the cost of copies and to provide personnel to do the copying. 

2.3.2
Procurement Officer Review of Proposals.  Upon opening the proposals in response to this RFP the procurement officer will review the proposals for information that meets the exceptions in Section 2.3.1, providing the following conditions have been met:

· Confidential information (including any provided in electronic media) is clearly marked and separated from the rest of the proposal

· The proposal does not contain confidential material in the cost or price section

· An affidavit from the offeror's legal counsel attesting to and explaining the validity of the trade secret claim as set out in Title 30, chapter 14, part 4, MCA, is attached to each proposal containing trade secrets.  Counsel must use the State of Montana "Affidavit for Trade Secret Confidentiality" form in requesting the trade secret claim.  This affidavit form is available on the OneStop Vendor Information website at: http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/GSDDocuments.aspx or by calling (406) 444-2575

Information separated out under this process will be available for review only by the procurement officer, the evaluator/evaluation committee members, and limited other designees.  Offerors shall pay all of its legal costs and related fees and expenses associated with defending a claim for confidentiality should another party submit a "right to know" (open records) request.

2.4
CLASSIFICATION AND EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS

2.4.1
Initial Classification of Proposals as Responsive or Nonresponsive.  The State shall initially classify all proposals as either "responsive" or "nonresponsive" (ARM 2.5.602).  The State may deem a proposal nonresponsive if:  (1) any of the required information is not provided; (2) the submitted price is found to be excessive or inadequate as measured by this RFP criteria; or (3) the proposal does not meet RFP requirements and specifications.  The State may find any proposal to be nonresponsive at any time during the procurement process. If the State deems a proposal nonresponsive, it will not be considered further.

2.4.2
Determination of Responsibility.  The procurement officer will determine whether an offeror has met the standards of responsibility consistent with ARM 2.5.407.  An offeror may be determined nonresponsible at any time during the procurement process if information surfaces that supports a nonresponsible determination.  If an offeror is found nonresponsible, the procurement officer will notify the offeror by mail.  The determination will be included within the procurement file.

2.4.3
Evaluation of Proposals.  An evaluator/evaluation committee will evaluate all responsive proposals based on stated criteria and recommend an award to the highest scoring offeror.  The evaluator/evaluation committee may initiate discussion, negotiation, or a best and final offer.  In scoring against stated criteria, the evaluator/evaluation committee may consider such factors as accepted industry standards and a comparative evaluation of other proposals in terms of differing price and quality.  These scores will be used to determine the most advantageous offering to the State.  If an evaluation committee meets to deliberate and evaluate the proposals, the public may attend and observe the evaluation committee deliberations.

2.4.4
Completeness of Proposals.  Selection and award will be based on the offeror's proposal and other items outlined in this RFP. Proposals may not include references to information such as Internet websites, unless specifically requested.  Information or materials presented by offerors outside the formal response or subsequent discussion, negotiation, or best and final offer, if requested, will not be considered, will have no bearing on any award, and may result in the offeror being disqualified from further consideration.
2.4.5
Achieve Minimum Score.  Any proposal that fails to achieve 60% of the total available points for Section 6.2.2 will be eliminated from further consideration.  A "fail" for any individual evaluation criteria may result in proposal disqualification at the discretion of the procurement officer.

2.4.6
Opportunity for Discussion/Negotiation and/or Oral Presentation/Product Demonstration.  After receipt of proposals and prior to the recommendation of award, the procurement officer may initiate discussions with one or more offerors should clarification or negotiation be necessary.  Offerors may also be required to make an oral presentation and/or product demonstration to clarify their RFP response or to further define their offer.  In either case, offerors should be prepared to send qualified personnel to Helena, Montana, to discuss technical and contractual aspects of their proposal.  Oral presentations and product demonstrations, if requested, shall be at the offeror's expense. 

2.4.7
Best and Final Offer.  Under Montana law, the procurement officer may request a best and final offer if additional information is required to make a final decision.  The State reserves the right to request a best and final offer based on price/cost alone.  Please note that the State rarely requests a best and final offer on cost alone.
2.4.8
Evaluator/Evaluation Committee Recommendation for Contract Award.  The evaluator/ evaluation committee will provide a written recommendation for contract award to the procurement officer that contains the scores, justification, and rationale for the decision.  The procurement officer will review the recommendation to ensure its compliance with this RFP process and criteria before concurring with the evaluator's/evaluation committee's recommendation.

2.4.9
Request for Documents Notice.  Upon concurrence with the evaluator's/evaluation committee's recommendation, the procurement officer will request from the highest scoring offeror the required documents and information, such as insurance documents, contract performance security, an electronic copy of any requested material (e.g., proposal, response to clarification questions, and/or best and final offer), and any other necessary documents.  Receipt of this request does not constitute a contract and no work may begin until a contract signed by all parties is in place.  The procurement officer will notify all other offerors of the State's selection.

2.4.10
Contract Execution.  Upon receipt of all required materials, a contract (Appendix B) incorporating the Standard Terms and Conditions (Appendix A), as well as the highest scoring offeror's proposal, will be provided to the highest scoring offeror for signature.  The highest scoring offeror will be expected to accept and agree to all material requirements contained in Appendices A and B of this RFP.  If the highest scoring offeror does not accept all material requirements, the State may move to the next highest scoring offeror, or cancel this RFP.  Work under the contract may begin when the contract is signed by all parties.

2.5
STATE'S RIGHTS RESERVED
While the State has every intention to award a contract resulting from this RFP, issuance of this RFP in no way constitutes a commitment by the State to award and execute a contract.  Upon a determination such actions would be in its best interest, the State, in its sole discretion, reserves the right to:

· Cancel or terminate this RFP (18-4-307, MCA);

· Reject any or all proposals received in response to this RFP (ARM 2.5.602);

· Waive any undesirable, inconsequential, or inconsistent provisions of this RFP that would not have significant impact on any proposal (ARM 2.5.505);

· Not award a contract, if it is in the State's best interest not to proceed with contract execution (ARM 2.5.602); or

· If awarded, terminate any contract if the State determines adequate state funds are not available (18-4-313, MCA). 

2.6
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION POWERS AND DUTIES

The Department of Administration is responsible for carrying out the planning and program responsibilities for information technology (IT) for state government.  (Section 2-17-512, MCA)  The Chief Information Officer is the person appointed to carry out the duties and responsibilities of the Department of Administration relating to information technology.  The Department of Administration shall:

· Review the use of information technology resources for all state agencies;

· Review and approve state agency specifications and procurement methods for the acquisition of information technology resources; and

· Review, approve, and sign all state agency IT contracts and shall review and approve other formal agreements for information technology resources provided by the private sector and other government entities.
2.7
COMPLIANCE WITH STATE OF MONTANA IT STANDARDS

The offeror is expected to be familiar with the State of Montana IT environment.  All services and products provided as a result of this RFP must comply with all applicable State of Montana IT policies and standards in effect at the time this RFP is issued.  The offeror must request exceptions to State IT policies and standards in accordance with Section 1.5.1 of this RFP.  It will be the responsibility of the State to deny the exception request or to seek a policy or standards exception through the Department of Administration, State Information Technology Services Division (SITSD).  Offerors are expected to provide proposals that conform to State IT policies and standards.  It is the intent of SITSD to utilize the existing policies and standards and not to routinely grant exceptions.  The State reserves the right to address nonmaterial requests for exceptions with the highest scoring offeror during contract negotiation.
The links below will provide information on State of Montana IT strategic plans, current environment, policies, and standards.
State of Montana Information Technology Strategic Plan

http://itsd.mt.gov/stratplan/statewide/default.mcpx
State of Montana Information Technology Environment

http://itsd.mt.gov/techmt/compenviron.mcpx
State of Montana IT Policies

http://itsd.mt.gov/policy/policies/default.mcpx
State of Montana Software Standards

http://itsd.mt.gov/policy/software/default.mcpx
SECTION 3: SCOPE OF SERVICES
3.1
Project overview and background

3.1.1
Purpose.  The purpose of this RFP is to acquire EBT contractor services for Montana’s SNAP, TANF, and WIC programs. Montana seeks a broad range of EBT services and functions to support the electronic delivery of health and human services and benefits to eligible participants in the State. The EBT contractor shall support the Federal requirement of processing interoperable SNAP and Cash assistance transactions. 
3.1.2
Program Overview.  EBT is the electronic delivery of government program benefits and funds through the use of card technology, POS terminals and automated teller machines (ATMs).  In lieu of issuing paper coupons and paper checks, participants are provided a magnetic-stripe debit-type card to access their benefits and cash electronically.  Today, EBT is the only option for governments to issue and for participants to receive SNAP assistance benefits.  By 2020, WIC must use EBT for issuance of food benefits. Most state governments now use EBT as a payment option for cash benefit programs as well.

Individuals apply for program benefits by completing an application and providing required information that is captured and maintained in an IT system that determines eligibility and a benefit amount based on program set parameters. Once determined eligible, participant case demographic and benefit information is transmitted to the EBT system, usually as part of a nightly batch process.  Data records from eligibility systems include demographic information that identify the participant or household, household address, benefit amount, benefit-type and the date on which the benefit is to be made available to the participant.  Generally, SNAP and TANF benefits are issued monthly, by EBT to ongoing cases and daily for new or changed cases.  WIC currently utilizes a paper-based benefits issuance process but will be transitioning to EBT services under the contract resulting from this procurement.
The EBT system establishes individual accounts on behalf of participants.  Cards are generated for new case participants.  EBT cards are linked to a centralized benefit record that reflects the cardholder demographic, balance(s) and historical transaction related information.  Cardholders are required to select their own PIN before they are able to electronically redeem benefits and funds.  

EBT debit cards employ industry PIN standards meaning each cardholder must select their own personal identification number; or PIN, known only to the cardholder in order to secure the card from unauthorized use.  EBT debit cards are identical in look and technology to most bank-issued ATM or POS debit cards.  Typically, EBT cards have no expiration date and the PIN must be keyed in to a terminal PIN pad and verified as authorization for all electronic redemption transactions.  PINs are transmitted in a secure, encrypted format and are never displayed at the terminal or by the system.  

A transaction is initiated when a card is swiped and the correct PIN is keyed in to a merchant terminal PIN pad at the time of purchase.  The transaction is electronically routed to the appropriate EBT system for approval or denial.  The EBT system verifies the account status that substantiates a response code of approval, denial or balance information that is returned to the merchant terminal.  The EBT system updates the account balance with the appropriate debit or credit amount and captures the transaction details for historical and accounting purposes. 

Transactions route from merchant terminals through their transaction processors to card owners or authorizing systems usually through a gateway transaction processor.  The banking identification number; or BIN, comprised of the leading six to eight positions of a card number, also called a Personal Account Number (PAN), defines the owner of the cardholder account and determines where or to which commercial processor the transaction must be routed.   The transaction routing and response back to the initiating merchant must occur within a specified time period before the transaction "times out".  In the commercial world this is generally 12 seconds or less.  EBT systems also report data and information critical to government administrators responsible for ensuring the integrity of intended program benefits.

State governments, within the overarching mandates of payment system processing, dictate the characteristics of accounts supported by their EBT systems.  For EBT, the government agency owns the account and is therefore able to define the business rules governing the account.  Benefits remain in accounts until fully redeemed at merchant or ATM locations unless the government agency enacts escheatment or expungement rules that reduce or withdraw unused benefits and funds after a certain time period.  Only benefits that have been redeemed are settled.  Settlement occurs daily through a day-of-draw process.  Reconciliation is the process of resolving and accounting for the daily program benefit commerce activities for each respective business day before cut off occurs.

Federal regulations require that food assistance benefits are disbursed, tracked, reported and accounted separately from all cash and other account-type benefits, transactions and related activities.  Cash or EBT transactions include purchases of non-food items, goods and services and cash withdrawals from POS terminals and ATMs.  Generally, different cash benefit and fund sources are tracked, reported and accounted separately even though more than one program cash-type may be used to satisfy a single transaction, if necessary.

The Montana EBT project began in September 2000 by DPHHS TSD in partnership with the HCSD, BFSD, and SITSD as the key stakeholders.  Montana Access was user tested and certified by the USDA FNS January 2002, operated in pilot from February through March in two counties; Butte Silver Bow and Hill, and was implemented statewide by June 2002. 

Currently, both Montana SNAP and Cash programs utilize an EBT system and magnetic swipe cards for benefit redemption by program participants.  Montana’s existing EBT system and processes are comprised of a hybrid solution, with the State maintaining the hardware and software and a contractor, Northrop Grumman, operating the system, producing the cards, managing the merchants, maintaining the POS terminals, and providing a help desk for program participants for SNAP and Cash. WIC currently utilizes a paper-based benefits issuance process. This RFP is requesting one or more EBT contractor(s) to perform EBT functions and services that will result in as little disruption or change to the current operations as possible for SNAP and Cash and conversion to EBT for WIC.
Additional program-specific details including but not limited to caseload, call volume statistics, a listing of participating/authorized retail stores, farmers, farmers’ markets, sample program reports and other relevant program information referenced throughout this RFP is presented on line in the Bidder’s Library at: http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/SolicitationDefault.aspx. A list of documents that are available electronically in the Bidder’s Library at the time of release of this RFP is presented in Appendix F. 

3.1.2.1
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program.  The Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) is a food assistance program administered by the Food and Nutrition Service (FNS) of the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA). FNS sets national program policies and authorizes food merchants to deliver program benefits. Additionally, FNS monitors merchant compliance and investigates merchants suspected of fraudulent activities. SNAP provides food assistance to low-income individuals and families. The program services elderly or disabled households with incomes at or below 165% of the Federal Poverty Level and all other households with incomes at or below 130% of the Federal Poverty Level. Although SNAP is administered by FNS, the program is operated by the State of Montana within DPHHS HCSD. DPHHS determines eligibility requirements and authorizes benefits. To maintain eligibility, DPHHS operates an eligibility certification system. Additionally, Montana also is charged with investigating participants who are suspected of fraudulently obtaining benefits. 

SNAP benefits are restricted to the purchase of eligible food items from FNS authorized food retail locations. The USDA’s Office of the Inspector General Retailer Investigations Branch, Secret Service, and Montana local law enforcement officials are responsible for merchant fraud investigations. 
Additional program-specific information and statistics are available in the Bidder’s Library at: http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/SolicitationDefault.aspx.
3.1.2.2
Montana’s Cash Assistance Programs.  Montana administers three cash assistance programs, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), Refugee Cash Assistance and the TANF Child Support Supplemental Payment. 

TANF is Montana’s primary cash assistance program and is administered by DPHHS under the direction of the Administration for Children and Families, United States Department of Health and Human Services.  Montana’s local Offices of Public Assistance operate the program.  TANF cash assistance is a time-limited program designed to provide eligible families with income at or below 30% of the 2006 Federal Poverty Level with a monthly cash grant and opportunities leading to self-support.   

The TANF Child Support Supplement Payment is issued to TANF families. The amount of the TANF Child Support Supplement Payment is derived from the amount of current child support collected from a non-custodial parent. The payment is an amount equal to the amount of child support collected, up to but not exceeding, $100 per month.  TANF and the TANF Child Support Supplemental Payment is funded by a Federal TANF block grant. 

The Refugee Cash Assistance program is administered by Montana’s DPHHS Refugee Resettlement Program and is funded with Federal dollars from the Office of Refugee Resettlement.  Refugee Cash Assistance is a time-limited program and is available to needy individuals who are not TANF eligible and meet the status of “refugee”.
Cash benefits can be accessed at ATMs and POS terminals that are not restricted by Federal regulation.  The Federal regulation states that cash benefits cannot be accessed at a liquor store, casino, gambling casino, gaming establishment or any retail establishment which provides adult-oriented entertainment in which performers disrobe or perform in an unclothed state for entertainment. These establishments will need to be identified by the contractor.  A report that assists in monitoring EBT transactions, including date of transaction, case number, PI name, address/ location/owner of ATM/POS, type of merchant will need to be provided to the Department on a monthly basis. The contractor will need to provide options of how they will prevent prohibited establishments from processing/accepting EBT cards at prohibited locations through ATM or POS machines.  Unlike SNAP benefits, there are no restrictions on the items that may be purchased with Cash benefits.
Additional program-specific information and statistics are available in the Bidder’s Library at: http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/SolicitationDefault.aspx.
3.1.2.3
Current EBT System for Montana SNAP and Cash.  Currently, the DPHHS uses a hybrid EBT system solution for SNAP and Cash. In this hybrid solution, the State maintains the hardware and software and a contractor operates the system, produces the cards, manages the merchants, maintains the POS terminals, and provides a help desk for program participants. 

Cardholders can use the EBT card to authorize the transfer of money from a government account to a merchant account to pay for products. Participants eligible for SNAP and/or Cash benefits are passed from The Economic Assistance Management System (TEAMS) to the EBT authorization engine. The authorization engine establishes and maintains an account for each participant and their benefits.  The contractor produces and mails cards to participants at the office in Helena, Montana after their account is established in the EBT system.  All card delivery is performed through the mail.  Transactions are processed from a merchant through the transaction switch (gateway) to the authorization engine.  The authorization engine validates the transaction and either approves or disapproves the transaction request.  The result (approved or denied) is returned to the requesting merchant.  The transaction switch initiates the process to settle with the merchants for the purchases made with the EBT cards.  Settlement payments to merchants are accomplished by the contractor through the Automated Clearing House (ACH) and are drawn on a State of Montana provided bank account.  

In support of the settlement process, the State performs the necessary draw downs of federal funds and transfer of State funds to the State of Montana-provided bank account from which merchants will be paid.  The contractor and the State share joint technical responsibility for the settlement, reconciliation and reporting of transactions to ensure merchants and their processors are reimbursed accurately and timely.

3.1.2.4
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children.  The Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children Program is administered by the USDA FNS. WIC provides nutrition screening and education, access to preventive health programs, and access to selected foods to supplement the diets of low income, pregnant, lactating and postpartum women, infants and children up to the age of five who are at nutritional risk.

WIC benefits are provided in the form of a food package or food prescription. The participant may purchase only food items specified in the food package. Brands, quantities and package size are specified in the food package. 

3.1.2.5
Current WIC Benefits System.  Montana WIC currently uses a paper-based benefits system. The system involves printing paper benefits for participants to purchase approved WIC food items from participating merchants. Paper benefits are time and resource intensive from participant, merchant, and clinic perspectives.  With a paper system, most participants receive up to three months of benefits at a time from their local WIC clinics.  The benefits are associated with individual participants, rather than households, and have the food items printed directly on the benefits.  If participants desire a change in their food prescription, they must go to a clinic to have their benefits voided and re-issued.  Void and reissuance is a time intensive process for clinics and the State WIC office.
WIC services are available to women who are pregnant or who recently had a baby, infants and children up to the age of five.  Participants must meet income eligibility criteria (less than 185% of the federal poverty guidelines), must be a resident of Montana and must be determined as having a nutritional need.  Participants may redeem their benefits with authorized merchants.  Retail cashiers and farm staff ensure participants buy the correct food items, redeem their benefits within the correct date span, and sign the paper benefits.  Merchants stamp and deposit the paper benefits into their bank accounts, similar to checks, and are reimbursed two to three business days later.  Merchants bear a significant cost in a paper-based system.  They have to pay for any mistake made at the point of sale, such as accepting paper benefits with incorrect dates or missing signatures, or accidentally allowing a participant to purchase more food than allowed by the benefit. 

DPHHS provides some technical and business support (such as maintaining printers and paper benefit stock) at the state-level, and a large portion of vendor coordinator staff time is dedicated to merchant management.  This involves investigation of rejected benefits as well as merchant monitoring and education.
It is DPHHS’ intent to transition WIC from a paper-based benefits system to EBT services under the contract resulting from this procurement.  
Additional program-specific information and statistics are available in the Bidder’s Library at: http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/SolicitationDefault.aspx.
3.1.3
Current EBT Benefit Transaction Processing Environment.
3.1.3.1
Current Benefit Transaction Processing Organization for SNAP and Cash.  Northrop Grumman is Montana’s current EBT contractor responsible for design, development and implementation of Montana’s current EBT system solution.

3.1.3.2
Existing Methods, Procedures, Systems that the EBT Contractor will Support.  The EBT contractor shall support the current core EBT functional areas as described throughout Section 3.2.11.  While offerors shall adhere to supporting the functional requirements and performance expectations of this RFP, the EBT contractor may employ alternative methods, processes, systems and tools where efficiency improvements may be achieved.  Proposed alternate solutions shall be tried and tested technology.
3.1.3.3
Existing Hardware and Software Configurations and Operating Systems.  The current EBT system is comprised of the following components:

· Montana Access EBT authorization platform

· EBT database

· IVR support

· Hardware and software

· Help desk

· Card management

· Settlement and reporting

· External interfaces

· Administrative functions
· Gateway processor/transaction switch

· EBT only terminals (retailers using State sponsored equipment)

· Third party processors and ATM networks

· Connectivity and networking

3.1.3.4
Interfacing with the New EBT Benefit Transaction Processing Services.  DPHHS plans to implement an enterprise approach for EBT. The Department’s Enterprise Service Bus (ESB) will be used for enabling communication within multiple systems by routing requests and messages from one system to another to avoid multiple point-to-point connections.  As depicted in the diagram below, the ESB will be used to send requests from the Combined Healthcare Information and Montana Eligibility System Enterprise Architecture (CHIMES EA), M-SPIRIT, and the Shared Fiscal Services Layer (SFSL) to the EBT contractor. Additionally, the ESB will be used to receive responses from the EBT contractor and send it to the appropriate recipient (e.g., CHIMES EA, M-SPIRIT and/or SFSL).
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· Line 1 represents the interface between the participating merchants and the EBT contractor.
· Line 2 represents the interface between the banks and the EBT contractor.
· Line 3 represents the interface between the EBT contractor and the State’s ESB.
· Line 4 represents the interface between the State’s ESB and CHIMES EA.  CHIMES EA is currently implemented in the TEST and QA environments and utilizes the State’s ESB to communicate with SFSL as well as other State and Federal trading partners (e.g., SSA, CCUBS, CAPS, SEARCHS).

· Line 5 represents the interface between the State’s ESB and M-SPIRIT.
· Line 6 represents the interface between the State’s ESB and SFSL. DPHHS is moving away from the current approach for fiscal processing where fiscal data is stored in multiple locations and the Department has to identify and reconcile discrepancies.  The SFSL, which was implemented in October 2012, replaced and centralized the fiscal functionality housed in separate systems.  While CHIMES EA will be the first to interact with SFSL, the Department’s vision is to expand SFSL’s use to other systems as they are enhanced or replaced.  SFSL is currently implemented in the TEST and QA environments and is utilizing the State’s ESB to communicate with CHIMES EA as well as other trading partners (e.g., ARMS, TOP).

· Line 7 represents the interface between the Common Client Index (CCI) and the State’s ESB.  The CCI will serve DPHHS as a central service of person demographic information.  It allows DPHHS to uniquely identify persons participating in multiple programs such as SNAP, Cash, and WIC.  The CCI will make a file available in a secured central location.  This file can be pulled and processed by other systems, such as CHIMES EA, M-SPIRIT and SFSL, to get the latest updates to persons.  The CCI is currently implemented in the TEST and QA environments and is utilizing the State’s ESB to communicate with CHIMES EA and SFSL.  

The EBT contractor is required to initially support the current SPIRIT interface.  When the universal interface (UI) is available and built, the EBT contractor shall implement the revised universal interface at no additional charge to the State. The current SPIRIT interface is documented and available in the Bidder’s Library.  The Bidder’s Library is available online at: http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/SolicitationDefault.aspx.
3.1.3.5
Federal System Interfaces.  The Federal Reserve Bank (FRB) of Richmond serves as AMA for the SNAP EBT Benefit account and the AMA system interfaces with the Treasury Department’s ASAP, monitors ASAP funding limits, based on projected FSP activity established by FNS for each state, and performs reconciliations required by FNS. Consequently, it will be necessary for the Processor to interface with the AMA and provide data necessary for funds projection and FSP reconciliation.

The EBT contractor shall provide summary information by availability (effective) date on: 
· Increases in benefit authorizations 
· Expungements
· Decreases due to coupon conversion
· Other returned benefits
The transmission of issuance and returned benefit data elements shall be accomplished through automated batch processing in a file format specified by FRB.  This method allows for the automated flow of the State’s issuance data, through the contractor’s EBT system, to the AMA. Therefore, the contractor must be able to accommodate batch processing.  File specifications may be obtained by contacting FRB of Richmond at (804) 697-8384. In addition, the contractor must be responsive to requests from the State or FNS to research and resolve discrepancies discovered in reconciliations of State-reported issuance data and the data provided to AMA by the contractor.
AMA also uses the summary level retailer credit data provided by the EBT contractor to the FNS Benefit Redemption Systems Branch in Minneapolis to reconcile funds drawn from the EBT benefit accounts in ASAP.  Discrepancies will be brought to the attention of the EBT contractor staff for prompt research and resolution.
Upon implementation of batch processing, the State and the EBT contractor must be certified by FNS, to ensure the accuracy of data transmission.  
3.1.4
Workload Data.  Statistical data for current EBT workload and volume is presented in the Bidder’s Library.  Current EBT benefit transaction processing workload statistics include but are not limited to:

· Transaction volume statistics

· Timesharing sessions or connections, online transactions, batch jobs, demand jobs
· Participation by program and associated categories

· Merchant List by program
3.1.5
Bidder’s Library.  A list of documents that are available electronically in the Bidder’s Library at the time of release of this RFP is presented in Appendix F. The Bidder’s Library is available online at:  http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/SolicitationDefault.aspx. In developing technical and cost proposals, offerors are required to access program information and artifacts maintained in the Bidder’s Library.  The Bidder’s Library contains information such as program caseload, call volume statistics, a listing of participating/authorized retail stores, farmers, farmers’ markets, sample program reports and other relevant information referenced throughout this RFP.
3.2
Provision of services

The Montana SNAP, Cash and WIC Electronic Benefits Transfer Services Project consists of six generally sequential tasks. There may be some exceptions to this, when phases overlap, which DPHHS must approve in the EBT contractor’s project work plan.  The tasks are:

· Transition planning and project management

· Design 

· Development 

· Implementation 

· Operations 

· Contract Turnover
There are various activities within each task that are described in detail throughout the following subsections of this RFP. Offerors shall reflect within their proposal response, their recommended approach to scheduling and accomplishing all tasks and activities identified within this RFP.  DPHHS’s quality assurance monitor as well as DPHHS staff shall review all tasks performed by the EBT contractor.
Proposals will be accepted for the following combinations:

· SNAP, Cash, WIC

· SNAP, Cash
· WIC
3.2.1
Transition Planning and Project Management Task.  The objective of this task is to ensure that adequate transition planning and project management resources are dedicated to this project.  The EBT contractor shall:
3.2.1.1
Establish a project management infrastructure.  Minimum components of the project management infrastructure shall include the following project management document templates. Templates shall be reviewed and approved by DPHHS within 45 calendar days from the contract start date.

a. Detailed project management plan template

b. Monthly project status report template

c. Monthly project status meeting agenda and meeting minutes templates

d. Weekly project status report template

e. Weekly project status meeting agenda and meeting minutes templates

f. Project communication plan template

g. Deliverable summary document template

h. Deliverable comment sheet template
i. Deliverable sign off form template

j. Change control and approval process plan template

k. Go live dashboard template

l. Disaster recovery plan template

m. Transition plan template

3.2.1.2
Plan and facilitate a project kick off meeting.  The project kick off meeting shall be conducted within 45 calendar days from the contract start date.  To maximize participation, the date and time of the kick off meeting shall be confirmed within 15 business days from the contract start date.  The EBT contractor shall:

a. Work with DPHHS to identify kick off meeting agenda items.

b. Identify and communicate specific roles and responsibilities of meeting participants (DPHHS and EBT contractor).
c. Prepare and work with DPHHS to approve meeting agenda and associated materials prior to meeting.

d. Distribute meeting agenda and associated materials at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.

3.2.1.3
Work with DPHHS to provide a Detailed Project Management Plan and Work Plans with fixed deadlines that take into consideration DPHHS expectations for adhering to State and Federal rules and regulations, key milestone dates, and Montana’s State holiday schedule.  At a minimum, the detailed project plan shall include but not be limited to: 

a. Project schedule including tasks, core EBT functional areas, activities, activity duration, sequencing and dependencies in Microsoft Project and an alternative electronic format for DPHHS Staff that do not have Microsoft project

b. Project work plan(s) including a work breakdown structure by core EBT functional area and/or deliverable

c. Completion date of each task

d. Project milestones

e. Project organization including a resource plan defining roles and responsibilities for the EBT contractor, subcontractors (if applicable), and DPHHS
The following key project milestone dates are presented here for planning purposes and shall be included as part of the offeror’s proposal (see RFP Section 4.12.1.3).

a. Contract start date (estimated, July 1, 2015)

b. Project kickoff meeting date – no later than 45 calendar days from contract start date

c. Project management infrastructure approved - no later than 60 calendar days from contract start date

d. Design task degins – no later than 60 calendar days from contract start date

e. Development task begins - no later than 120 calendar days from contract start date

f. Statewide merchant go-live date - no later than 12 months from contract start date

g. WIC farmer merchant go-live date - no later than 18 months from contract start date

3.2.1.4
Facilitate monthly project status meetings with the DPHHS project team at a location to be determined by DPHHS. Attendance may be in person or via teleconferencing, as mutually agreed to by the project team. These meetings shall follow an agenda mutually developed by the EBT contractor and DPHHS. The agenda shall be prepared by the EBT contractor and at a minimum shall include but not be limited to:

a. Review and approval of previous meeting minutes

b. EBT contractor project status

c. DPHHS project status

d. Contract status and issues, including resolutions

e. Quality Assurance status

f. New action items

g. Outstanding action items, including resolutions

h. Identified risks and risk mitigation strategies

i. Setting of next meeting date

j. Other business

Minutes will be taken and distributed by EBT contractor within five working days after the meeting and distributed by email.

3.2.1.5
Facilitate weekly status meetings with DPHHS.  Meetings shall follow an agenda mutually developed by the EBT contractor and DPHHS. The agenda shall be prepared by the EBT contractor and distributed to meeting participants at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.
3.2.1.6
Provide written Weekly Project Status Reports delivered to DPHHS at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. The status reports must include, but not be limited to the following:

a. Project status update

b. Accomplishments from previous week
c. Planned activities for current week
d. Management issues to be addressed
e. Deliverable status dashboard
3.2.1.7
Document and distribute Weekly Status Meeting Minutes including discussion topics, issues, risks, action items, and decisions.  Meeting minutes shall be distributed by email to DPHHS within five working days after the meeting.

3.2.1.8
Attend and participate in all project related meetings requested by DPHHS. The EBT contractor shall prepare materials or briefings for these meetings as requested by DPHHS.

3.2.1.9
Provide written Monthly Project Status Reports delivered to DPHHS by the third (3rd) working day following the end of each reporting period. The format must be approved by DPHHS prior to issuance of the first monthly project status report. The first monthly report covers the reporting period from the first through the last business day of each month.  The status reports must include but not be limited to the following:

a. Overall completion status of the project based on the DPHHS approved project work plan and deliverable schedule

b. Accomplishments during the period and conclusions/decisions determined

c. Problems encountered and proposed/actual resolutions

d. What is to be accomplished during the next reporting period

e. Issues that need to be addressed, including contractual

f. Quality Assurance status

g. Updated Microsoft Project plan showing percentage completed, tasks assigned, completed and remaining, timeline must be provided in an electronic format accessible to DPHHS staff that do not have access to Microsoft Project

h. Identification of schedule slippage and strategy for resolution

i. EBT contractor staff assigned and their location/schedule

j. DPHHS resources required for activities during the next time period

k. Resource allocation percentages including planned versus actual by project milestone

Monthly project status reports shall be delivered through the end of the System Integration Phase - Development Task.  Other project status reporting mechanisms tailored to meet the evolving needs of subsequent tasks will be employed at the start of the System Integration Phase – Statewide Implementation Task.

3.2.1.10
Develop a comprehensive approach for handling project communications with DPHHS stakeholders.  Effective communication is critical to the development of productive relationships with concerned stakeholders. The Project Communication Plan shall include, but not be limited to, defining lines of communication and reporting protocols and relationships, a plan for generation, documentation, storage, transmission, and disposal of all project information.  Additionally, the Project Communication Plan shall describe the project document repository that will be employed on the project.  The project document repository shall be an organized document repository for critical project information so the EBT contractor and DPHHS team members can easily access, store and reference electronic project documents and other deliverables throughout the term of the contract. 

3.2.1.11
All deliverables submitted throughout the duration of the contract are subject to DPHHS review and approval. Prior to development and submission of each contract deliverable, a Summary Document containing a description of the format and content of each deliverable will be delivered to the DPHHS Project Manager for review and approval. 

a. The summary document must contain, at a minimum, the following:

· Cover letter

· Table of Contents with a brief description of the content of each section

· Version and revision section

· Anticipated number of pages

· Identification of appendices/exhibits

· An approval/rejection section that can be completed by DPHHS 

The summary document will be returned to the EBT contractor within a mutually agreed upon time frame.

b. Deliverables must be developed by the EBT contractor according to the approved format and content of the summary document for each specific deliverable.

c. Deliverables must be submitted no later than 5:00 PM Mountain Time, per the approved contract deliverable schedule and must be accompanied by a deliverable comment sheet and a deliverable sign-off form.
3.2.1.12
The EBT contractor shall adhere to the following deliverable review and approval process:

a. DPHHS’s review time begins on the next working day following receipt of the deliverable.

b. DPHHS’s review time will be determined by the approved and accepted detailed project plan and the approved contract.  Recommended deliverable review periods are presented in the table in Section 3.2.10.

c. DPHHS has up to five working days to determine if a deliverable is complete and ready for review. Unless otherwise negotiated, this is part of DPHHS’s review time.

d. Any subsequent deliverable dependent upon DPHHS’s acceptance of a prior deliverable will not be accepted for review until all issues related to the previous deliverable have been resolved.

e. Deliverables determined to be incomplete and/or unacceptable for review will be rejected, not considered delivered and returned to the contractor.

f. After review of a deliverable, DPHHS will return to the contractor the project deliverable sign-off form with the deliverable submission and review history section completed.

g. If the deliverable is accepted, the original deliverable sign-off form signed by the appropriate DPHHS representatives will be returned to the contractor.

h. If DPHHS has comments and/or revisions to a deliverable, the following will be provided to the EBT contractor:

i. The original deliverable sign-off form with an updated entry to the deliverable submission and review history section.

ii. Attached to the deliverable sign-off form will be a detailed explanation of the revisions to be made and/or a marked up copy of the deliverable.

iii. DPHHS’s first review and return with comments will be completed within the times specified in the contract.

iv. The contractor will have five working days, unless otherwise mutually agreed to, for review, acceptance, and/or rejection of DPHHS’s comments.

v. A meeting to resolve outstanding issues must be completed within three working days after completion of the contractor’s review or a mutually agreed upon time frame.

vi. Agreements made during meetings to resolve issues must be documented separately.

vii. Once an agreement is reached regarding changes, the EBT contractor must incorporate them into the deliverable for resubmission to DPHHS.

viii. All changes must be easily identifiable by DPHHS.

ix. Resubmission of the deliverable must occur within five working days or a mutually agreed upon time frame of the resolution of any outstanding issues.

x. The resubmitted deliverable must be accompanied by the original deliverable sign-off form.

xi. This review process continues until all issues have been resolved within a mutually agreed upon time frame.

xii. During the re-review process, DPHHS may only comment on the original exceptions noted.

xiii. All other items not originally commented on are considered to be accepted by DPHHS.

xiv. Once all revisions have been accepted, the original deliverable sign-off form signed by the appropriate DPHHS representatives will be returned to the contractor.

xv. The EBT contractor must provide one updated and complete master paper copy of each deliverable after approval and acceptance by DPHHS.
i. If DPHHS considers a deliverable not ready for review, the following will be returned to the EBT contractor:

i. The original deliverable sign-off form with an updated entry to the deliverable submission and review history section.

ii. The original deliverable and all copies with a written explanation as to why the deliverable is being rejected, not considered delivered.

iii. The EBT contractor will have five working days, unless otherwise mutually agreed to, for review, acceptance and/or rejection of DPHHS’s comments.

iv. A meeting to discuss DPHHS’s position regarding the rejection of the deliverable must be completed within three working days after completion of the contractor’s review or a mutually agreed upon time frame.

v. Resubmission of the deliverable must occur within a mutually agreed upon time frame.

vi. The resubmitted deliverable must be accompanied by the original deliverable sign-off form.

vii. Upon resubmission of the completed deliverable, DPHHS will follow the steps outlined above.

3.2.1.13
Work with DPHHS to establish a Change Control and Approval Process Plan for review and approval by DPHHS.  The Change Control and Approval Process Plan shall be documented and ensure all changes are authorized by DPHHS.  The Change Control and Approval Process Plan shall be employed for the entire duration of the contract unless otherwise agreed to by DPHHS.
3.2.1.14
Establish a Transition Plan for review and approval by DPHHS.  The plan shall address the approach and processes to be used for the migration of current EBT services for SNAP and Cash programs, introduction of the WIC program to EBT, how processes will be tested, and contingency plans for problems that may occur during the migration. 

3.2.2
General Contractor Requirements.  This section presents general requirements that are non-task specific. 

3.2.2.1
Provide periodic recommendations for process improvements, based on industry standards, best practices, and/or cost efficiencies.

3.2.2.2
Maintain complete confidentiality related to the Montana SNAP, Cash, and WIC Electronic Benefits Transfer Services Project.  As the EBT contractor, contractor staff will have an ongoing relationship with DPHHS staff and other contractor staff and be privy to internal policy discussions, contractual issues, price negotiations, State financial information, and advanced knowledge of legislation.  As such, the EBT contractor shall be expected to conduct business in a confidential, objective manner and maintain integrity throughout the term of the contract.

3.2.2.3
The EBT contractor is to maintain software versions that are compatible with DPHHS including but not limited to the following: 

a. Microsoft Word (State uses Office 2007)

b. Microsoft Excel

c. Microsoft Project

d. Microsoft Access

e. Microsoft PowerPoint

f. Microsoft Visio

g. Adobe PDF files (version 8)

3.2.2.4
Governing Regulations.

3.2.2.4.1
Comply with all State and Federal rules and regulations supporting EBT for Montana SNAP, Cash, and WIC programs. At a minimum, the EBT contractor shall comply with Federal requirements set forth in the following documents. It is the EBT contractor’s responsibility to employ the most current State and Federal rules and regulations.  Documents i-ix are available in the Bidder’s Library.  A Bidder’s Library inventory list is presented in Appendix F.  All other documents listed here are available through the official federal web site.
a. Code of Federal Regulations 7 CFR Part 246 
b. Code of Federal Regulations 7 CFR Part 274

c. Code of Federal Regulations 7 CFR Part 277

d. Code of Federal Regulations 26 CFR Part 1, 31 and 301

e. FNS Operating Rules, Women Infants and Children, Electronic Benefits Transfer

f. FNS WIC EBT Technical Implementation Guide (2012 Version, Dated September 30, 2012)
g. FNS WIC EBT Universal Interface Specification Document (most current version available)
h. IRS Final Rule:  Information Reporting of Payments Made in Settlement of Payment Card and Third Party Network Transactions issued pursuant to the Housing Assistance Tax Act of 2008.

i. Temporary Payroll Tax Cut Continuation Act, SEC. 4004. Spending Policies for Assistance Under State TANF Programs.

3.2.2.4.2
Where RFP-specified core EBT functional requirements and performance standards deviate from documented FNS-specified standards, the EBT contractor shall adhere to the stricter standard, unless otherwise directed by DPHHS. 
3.2.2.4.3
The EBT contractor shall adhere to SNAP EBT interoperability regulations requiring interoperability of EBT systems and portability of electronically-issued benefits nationwide as published in the Federal register (vol. 69; no122; pp. 37693 – 37697). Interoperability regulations should be referenced in retailer and third party agreements.  Third Party Processor’s (TPP) agreements should specifically state that the TPP is required to load and update BIN numbers for all States.  Montana’s EBT system shall continue to support benefit conversions until nationwide interoperability is available.
3.2.2.4.4
Federal funds may not be drawn for over-issuances or transactions in excess of the authorized recipient benefit allotment. The contractor will bear all liability for any losses resulting from errors or omissions including fraud and abuse on the part of the contractor or its representatives or subcontractors.  These liabilities shall include but are not limited to:
a. Any duplicate or erroneous postings to a client account.

b. Any losses from funds drawn from an account after the client notified the EBT contractor that the card had been lost or stolen.

c. Any losses from transactions performed with cards issued but not activated by the client and/or the contractor.

d. Any damages or losses suffered by a Federal or State Agency due to negligence on the part of the EBT contractor.

e. Any loss of benefits caused by fraud or abuse by the contractor or its representatives or subcontractors.

3.2.2.5
Government Inspections, Audits, and Investigations.
3.2.2.5.1
The State of Montana, the United States Comptroller General, and other Federal oversight agencies and their contracted agents shall have the right to inspect, review, investigate, or audit all parts of the EBT contractor's or any subcontractor's (including third party processors) facilities engaged in performing EBT services. In such capacity, the State of Montana, the United States Comptroller General, other Federal oversight agencies or their representatives, shall have access to facilities, records, reports, personnel, and other appropriate aspects of the EBT system and EBT contractor operations. 
3.2.2.5.2
 The EBT contractor shall support the State and FNS during on-site evaluations (formerly referred to as “certification”).  Evaluation activities shall be held either at the State or contractor site, depending on resource needs.  The extent of the evaluation process and support activities will be determined by FNS and communicated to the State and its EBT contractor after the EBT contract is approved.  Following the evaluation, FNS will recommend to the State, a “go/no-go” decision for conversion.

3.2.2.5.3
The EBT contractor shall obtain an annual Statements on Standards for Attestation Engagements (SSAE) 16 Report on Controls at a Service Organization (replaces Statement of Auditing Standards No. 70 (SAS No. 70) Examination Requirements) in accordance with SNAP Program regulations at 7 CFR 274.1 (i).
3.2.2.5.4
The EBT contractor shall assist the State and FNS in investigations.  The FNS shall have access to the State agency administrative terminals for selected field office, regional office, and investigative staff. The EBT contractor must provide on-line inquiry-only administrative terminal software that is Windows compatible or appropriate hardware and software to the locations identified by FNS.  This includes a method to interface with the EBT host from multiple locations through dial-up or other means.  This access enables FNS to inquire on specific card and/or retailer details.
3.2.2.5.5
The EBT contractor must advise, assist and appropriately act to aid the State in detection and investigations of abuses by stores, program participants or workers, including but not limited to, reporting unusual activity.  This may entail cooperation with various authorities of the State and Federal agencies that are responsible for compliance with laws and regulations surrounding the programs.  Stores authorized by FNS to accept SNAP Program benefits may become subject to monitoring and investigations by the State, Retail Investigations Branch, USDA OIG, IRS, Secret Service, or local police departments.  Program participants are subject to investigation by the State program authorities and occasionally others.  Because the State must cooperate with Federal agencies in creating cases, providing cards, and providing information, it will also impact the EBT contractor.  The State and the contractor will determine an orderly process for these responsibilities to be conveyed to the vendor.  Access to information concerning these matters will be restricted both at the State and the EBT contractor so that the investigations are not compromised.  It should be assumed that these needs must be addressed in the design phase, tested as necessary in acceptance testing, and available at implementation.
Minimally, the following are necessary:

a. Creation of cases and cards to be used by investigators.

b. Posting benefit amounts to the investigative cases, possibly on an irregular basis as needed by the investigators.

c. Training, card issuance, and PIN selection for investigators using the cases.

d. Providing reports on the investigative cases showing the amounts funded to the cases and the transaction histories of the funds on a monthly basis.

e. Providing information from the system, as needed, for evidentiary purposes within 24 hours.

f. Providing extract files, starting at implementation, of store transaction history on a regular basis to the FNS.  

g. Retention of all records for a period of eight years.
3.2.2.6
Facilities Management.  The EBT contractor shall maintain and enhance buildings, grounds and the physical infrastructure in a cost-effective, safe, and environmentally responsible manner.

3.2.2.7
Standards Utilized.
3.2.2.7.1
Technology Service Division, DPHHS, follows industry best practices from organizations such as the Project Management Institute (PMI) and the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers (IEEE) in the development and acquisition of systems and services. TSD requires offerors to comply with appropriate Federal and State laws and regulations regarding IT security and data privacy that apply to the offeror’s company and its technology.  The EBT contractor is required to use best practices of control objectives and controls in the following areas of information security management:

a. Security policy 

b. Organization of information security

c. Asset management

d. Human resources security
e. Physical and environmental security

f. Communications and operations management

g. Access control

h. Information systems acquisition, development and maintenance

i. Information security incident management

j. Business continuity management

k. Compliance

The control objectives and controls are intended to be implemented to meet the requirements identified by a risk assessment.  The contractor is required to implement and use a practical guideline for developing organizational security standards and effective security management practices, and to help build confidence in inter-organizational activities.
3.2.2.7.2
The EBT contractor shall commit to the Open Systems standards to minimize negative effects of proprietary systems. An open system allows third parties to make products that plug into, or interoperate with, it.  The specifications of an open system are available to the public for developing compliant products.  The standards for the system are available to the public.  This allows that an existing component in the system can be replaced with one from another vendor.
3.2.3
Key Contractor Personnel.  The EBT contractor shall provide such assurances regarding key personnel and staffing as follows:
3.2.3.1
The EBT contractor shall assure that the project is adequately staffed with experienced, qualified personnel to perform the scope of work described in this RFP. 

3.2.3.2
The EBT contractor shall provide in writing:

a. For review and approval by DPHHS, proposed initial assignment of key personnel, as well as any reassignment or replacement of any key personnel.  At a minimum, key personnel positions shall include an account manager, project manager, operations manager, software development lead, testing lead, training lead, and customer service manager.  Key personnel must be introduced to appropriate DPHHS representatives and shall provide a resume and any other information about the individual reasonably requested by DPHHS.  DPHHS reserves the right to interview the individual before granting written approval. In the event the DPHHS finds a proposed individual unacceptable, DPHHS must provide a written explanation including reasonable detail outlining the reasons for the rejection. Additionally, DPHHS reserves the right to require the removal of EBT contractor personnel found, in the judgment of DPHHS, to be unacceptable.

b. Changes in key personnel shall be communicated to DPHHS in writing within seven calendar days of any changes in key positions.

c. An updated organizational chart every six months or whenever a significant change in the organization occurs. The organizational chart must depict each functional unit of the organization, numbers, and types of staff for each function identified and lines of authority governing the interaction of staff. The organizational chart must also identify key personnel, senior-level management staff, and clearly delineate lines of authority over all functions of the contract.

3.2.3.3
Key personnel may be responsible for more than one area. The EBT contractor shall ensure that all staff receives appropriate training, education, and experience to fulfill the requirements of their positions. 

3.2.3.4
The EBT contractor shall not remove any key personnel from their assigned roles on the contract without the prior written consent of the State.

3.2.4
System Integration Phase - Design Task.  The purpose of the Design Task is to transform the EBT requirements into complete and detailed system design specifications. Design specifications help project stakeholders successfully plan, execute, and control the projects by providing a framework to ensure that all aspects of the project are properly and consistently defined, planned, and communicated.  The design task involves the activities of establishing or confirming system design requirements and any updates or modifications required for the EBT contractor to perform the functional and service requirements presented in this RFP.  The core EBT functional requirements are presented in detail in Section 3.2.11, of this RFP and include the following functional areas:

a. EBT account management

b. Benefit redemption/transaction processing

c. Reconciliation

d. Settlement

e. State and Federal reporting

f. POS terminal deployment and training
g. Merchant management

h. Deployment of farmer equipment (equipment that can process EBT transactions including but not limited to farmer and farmer’s market POS equipment)
i. EBT card specifications, production and distribution to recipients
j. PIN establishment and maintenance

k. Customer service support (merchant, cardholder, DPHHS)

l. IVR services

m. Web portal

n. Hot site services

o. Application support and production recovery for forms, reports and procedures
p. Security and privacy

q. Audit services

r. Training (merchant)
s. Training (farmer specific)
t. Training (DPHHS)
u. Training (participant)
v. Compliance with governing regulations
During the Design Task, the EBT contractor shall achieve the following objectives:
a. Validate and further define EBT transaction processing functions currently employed by Montana SNAP and Cash program

b. Design the integration of EBT functionality necessary to introduce the WIC program to EBT

c. Reconcile any differences between Montana’s current EBT function and the new EBT contractor’s approach and methodology for the provision of EBT services

d. Enhance EBT functionality as needed to support SNAP, Cash, and WIC programs

e. Document technical and functional design specifications for approval by DPPHS
f. Provide options of how the ATM/POS transactions at prohibited locations will be prevented.

3.2.4.1
Establish a Requirements Validation Plan to validate RFP requirements with DPHHS and designated stakeholders.  At a minimum, the plan shall include the following:

a. A clear description of methodology to be used to validate RFP requirements with SNAP, Cash, WIC program participants and other designated key stakeholders.

b. Roles and responsibilities of requirements validation participants (EBT contractor and DPHHS).

c. A schedule that provides advance notice to participants and maximizes participation.

d. Templates or tools that will be prepared by the EBT contractor to facilitate requirements validation discussions.

e. Outline of requirements traceability matrix that will be used to record the outcome of the RFP requirements validation effort.

3.2.4.2
Validate and where necessary, define and document current core EBT functions and services that are in place to support SNAP and Cash programs.  Current core EBT functional requirements for SNAP and Cash are presented in Section 3.2.11 of this RFP.

3.2.4.3
Confirm understanding of WIC specific program needs necessary to integrate the WIC program into the EBT function.  Desired core EBT functional requirements for WIC are presented in Section 3.2.11, of this RFP.

3.2.4.4
Validate and where necessary, define and document EBT functions and services that shall be implemented to support the WIC program.

3.2.4.5
Reconcile differences and identify modifications or enhancements needed to provide EBT services to the SNAP, Cash, and/or WIC programs.

3.2.4.6
Establish a Detailed System Design Document for review and approval by DPHHS.  Design specifications shall be documented for each core EBT functional area listed in Section 3.2.4, unless exceptions are made by DPHHS.  At a minimum the Detailed System Design Document shall include:

a. Functional Design Document

b. Interface Specifications Document
3.2.4.7
Establish a plan to support the current interface with SPIRIT. When the universal interface (UI) is available and built, the EBT contractor shall implement and utilize the UI at no additional cost to the State.  The current SPIRIT interface is documented and available in the Bidder’s Library.  The Bidder’s Library is available online at: http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/SolicitationDefault.aspx.
3.2.4.8
Establish a System Security Plan for review and approval by DPHHS.  The Security Plan shall be approved by DPHHS within three months of the contract start date.  Following initial approval, the Plan shall be updated by the EBT contractor prior to the execution of WIC pilot operations.   
3.2.4.9
Establish a Requirements Traceability Matrix (RTM).  The RTM shall document the requirements validation effort and serve as the baseline for requirements traceability activities.  The RTM shall be updated and maintained throughout the duration of the contract.
3.2.5
System Integration Phase – Development Task.  The purpose of the Development Task is to transfer documented and approved detailed design information and transform it into an executable form that ensures all individual components of the EBT function is properly established and interfaces function as designed.  During this task of the project, the EBT contractor must develop, configure, convert, and test all components necessary to support the EBT function.  During the Development Task, the EBT contractor shall achieve the following objectives:

a. Conduct development task activities to integrate the EBT service function to support SNAP, Cash, and WIC programs in accordance with approved design documents

b. Plan, execute, and report on SNAP and Cash data conversion activities

c. Plan, execute, and report on testing activities for all core EBT functional areas

d. Prepare merchants for the WIC pilot operations effort and execute pilot operations test

e. Prepare merchants for WIC statewide implementation (excluding WIC farmers)

f. Prepare data for statewide implementation

g. Train merchants and DPHHS for statewide implementation

3.2.5.1
Establish a Go-Live Dashboard.  The Go-Live Dashboard is a progress-reporting tool that shall be used to track activities and progress toward statewide implementation.  The EBT contractor shall work with DPHHS to ensure that the Dashboard includes measureable criteria that shall inform DPHHS’s Go-Live decision for Montana’s EBT statewide implementation.  The Go-Live Dashboard shall be reviewed and approved by DPHHS.

3.2.5.2
Facilitate daily Go-Live meetings beginning 30 calendar days prior to the approved EBT statewide implementation date.  At a minimum, the EBT contractor shall review the Go-Live Dashboard and implementation criteria with DPHHS on a daily basis leading up to the State’s decision to Go-Live.

3.2.5.3
Conduct development task activities to integrate the EBT service function to support SNAP, Cash and WIC programs as established in approved design documents.  

3.2.5.4
Establish a Data Conversion Plan that identifies and documents all source data, target data and conversion processes necessary to successfully migrate existing DPHHS data to the EBT contractor’s system to support the provision of EBT services for SNAP, Cash and WIC programs.  The Data Conversion Plan shall be reviewed and approved by DPHHS.  At a minimum, the conversion plan shall specifically address (in detail) the migration of transaction acquirers, POS device deployment and installation, migration of the client database, and EBT card replacement. 
3.2.5.5
Convert data to ensure accurate and consistent EBT processing capabilities for SNAP, Cash, and WIC programs.  The EBT contractor shall also maintain the integrity of historical EBT data for SNAP and Cash.  Conversion activities shall be performed in accordance with the approved Data Conversion Plan.

3.2.5.6
Establish a Data Conversion Results Report for review and approval by DPHHS.   

3.2.5.7
Testing Activities.
3.2.5.7.1
Establish a Comprehensive Test Plan for review and approval by DPHHS.  The test plan shall be submitted as a single Comprehensive Test Plan or as multiple individual plans including but not limited to the following test types: 

a. Functional Test Plan

b. Integration Test Plan (includes time-based testing where applicable)

c. Load Test Plan

Parallel Test Plan (a plan to do testing between the legacy system in production, and the new system (in a test state), to compare real life scenarios and match results.)Data Conversion Test Plan
d. FNS EBT Testing and Certification Plan (Testing plans must comply with the new FNS Testing Regulation and the related provisions in Handbook 901, Section 2.3.2.1.    The complete rule with comments and responses can be found at:http://www.fns.usda.gov/sites/default/files/2014-01-02%20System%20Testing%20Rule%20AD99.pdf ) 

Testing shall occur for each core EBT functional area listed in Section 3.2.4, unless exceptions are made by DPHHS.  

3.2.5.7.2
At a minimum, each test plan shall include the following:

a. Approach 

b. Objectives

c. Testing or certification criteria (by entity such as State agency, merchant, acquirer)

d. Test schedule

e. Testing approach and procedures

f. Test scenarios and scripts (including expected results)

g. Supporting documentation necessary to conduct testing

h. Description of how test data will be obtained and used

i. Description of test environment(s) and controls for maintaining test environments to ensure the integrity of completed test results

j. Description of how test results will be recorded and analyzed

k. Description of how discrepancies between planned and actual test results will be addressed

l. Description of assignment of defect statuses, prioritization levels and percent tolerances 

m. Test documentation repository

n. Description of test defect tracking and management

3.2.5.7.3
Perform test activities in accordance with the approved test plan(s).  All core EBT functions shall be tested to ensure the EBT contractor accurately and completely performs the EBT functions as designed.

3.2.5.7.4
Address and resolve to the State’s satisfaction, all defects identified during testing.  The EBT contractor shall ensure defect percent tolerances are monitored throughout testing.

3.2.5.7.5
Develop a Test Results Report for review and approval by DPHHS.   At a minimum, the report shall reveal test results for each EBT functional area by test type.

3.2.5.7.6
EBT contractor shall support DPHHS and their designated user acceptance test (UAT) team as requested.  At a minimum, the EBT contractor shall establish a separate UAT test environment(s), prepare and provide test data for use by UAT testers, support transaction test activities initiated by UAT testers, research and address test defects as identified by UAT testers, and maintain UAT environment(s) to ensure integrity of completed test cases and activities.

3.2.5.8
Pilot Merchant Enablement.
3.2.5.8.1
Establish a Comprehensive WIC Pilot Operations Plan for review and approval by DPHHS.  At a minimum, the pilot operations plan shall include:

a. Pilot operations schedule 

b. Approach and methodology for conducting pilot operations and how each specific EBT functional areas will undergo pilot operation testing

c. Description of data to be used during pilot operations and how data will be prepared 

d. Identification of pilot participants, roles, and responsibilities

e. Protocols for communicating with pilot participants

f. Quick reference guides

g. Reporting protocols for pilot operations effort (i.e., issues, findings)

h. Description of how pilot operations test results will be recorded and analyzed

i. Approach to resolving pilot operations issues

j. Approach to transitioning participants from pilot operations to statewide implementation

3.2.5.8.2
Facilitate and coordinate planning activities associated with pilot operations testing in accordance with approved pilot plan.

3.2.5.8.3
Prepare and confirm readiness of pilot operations data.

3.2.5.8.4
Perform Level 1 and 2 Certification for store systems or confirm certifications.
3.2.5.8.5
Prepare a Pilot Operations Training Plan for merchants and Local WIC Agency staff.  The training plan shall be reviewed and approved by DPHHS.

3.2.5.8.6
Prepare training materials and execute training for pilot site (merchants) participants as well as to Local WIC Agency service sites. The EBT contractor shall work with DPHHS to establish a training schedule that promotes high attendance and participation levels.

3.2.5.8.7
Prepare pilot sites with equipment and materials including but not limited to card readers, pin pads, card stock and materials such as pilot operations reference guides.

3.2.5.9
Pilot Operations.
3.2.5.9.1
Execute pilot operations test activities in select geographic area in accordance with approved pilot plan.

3.2.5.9.2
Provide onsite and remote support to pilot operations participants as needed.  

3.2.5.9.3
Operate IVR, help desk, and web portal to mirror planned customer service support.

3.2.5.9.4
Manage technical and operational EBT issues identified during pilot operations.  Issues shall be addressed and resolved in accordance with the approved pilot operations plan.

3.2.5.9.5
Perform data collection and analysis based on pilot operations activities.  The EBT contractor shall also support DPHHS information gathering and data reporting requests to assist the DPHHS as they analyze pilot operations and financials associated with WIC EBT services.
3.2.5.9.6
Establish a Pilot Operations Test Report that documents the pilot experience and results for review and approval by DPHHS.  Report shall also include a cost evaluation component to assist DPHHS in determining program viability for statewide implementation and operations.
3.2.5.10
Preparation for Statewide Implementation.
3.2.5.10.1
Establish a Comprehensive Statewide Implementation Plan for review and approval by DPHHS.  At a minimum, the statewide implementation plan shall include:

a. Implementation schedule 

b. Approach and methodology for rolling out EBT services to SNAP, Cash and WIC programs 

c. Identification of key stakeholder roles and responsibilities (including but not limited to EBT contractor, merchants, participants and DPHHS)

d. Quick reference guides based on pilot operations results

e. Reporting protocols for statewide implementation effort (i.e., issues, findings)

f. Approach to resolving implementation issues

g. Approach to transitioning participants from the statewide implementation task to operations

3.2.5.10.2
Review and update the RTM as needed. The RTM shall be updated and maintained throughout the duration of the contract.

3.2.5.10.3
Work with DPHHS to ensure stakeholders receive technical information needed in preparation for statewide implementation.  

3.2.5.10.4
Facilitate and coordinate planning activities associated with statewide implementation in accordance with approved implementation plan.

3.2.5.10.5
Prepare and confirm readiness of pilot operations data.

3.2.5.10.6
Perform Level 1 and 2 Certification for store systems or confirm certifications.

3.2.5.10.7
Prepare a Statewide Implementation Training Plan for merchants and DPHHS.  Where appropriate training materials and activities shall be tailored to accommodate merchant type needs by program.  The Statewide Implementation Training Plan shall be reviewed and approved by DPHHS.

3.2.5.10.8
Update System and User Documentation based on pilot operations results.  Updated documentation shall be reviewed and approved by DPHHS.

3.2.5.10.9
Prepare training materials and execute training for merchants and DPHHS staff to support statewide implementation activities. The EBT contractor shall work with DPHHS to establish a training schedule that promotes high attendance and maximizes participation levels.  

3.2.5.10.10
Identify inventory equipment needs for various merchant types and sites to ensure smooth rollout.  Equipment needs include, but are not limited to, POS terminals, card readers, pin pads, card stock, and materials such as updated quick reference guides.  

3.2.5.10.11
Equip and prepare merchants and sites for rollout based on inventory assessment.  

3.2.5.10.12
Resolve technical and operational EBT issues identified during pilot operations.  All outstanding issues shall be addressed and resolved prior to statewide implementation.

3.2.5.10.13
Establish a Disaster Recovery Plan that has been implemented and tested to the extent possible with DPHHS staff.  The Plan must be in place within 30 calendar days of contract start date and updated annually thereafter.  The Disaster Recovery Plan shall be reviewed and approved by DPHHS.

3.2.5.10.14
Establish Post-Implementation Operations Monitoring Plan for review and approval by DPHHS.  

3.2.5.10.15
Provide Statewide Merchant Go/No-Go Decision Recommendation Report to DPHHS for review and consideration.  Report and recommendation shall be based on measureable criteria identified in the approved Statewide Implementation Plan and progress demonstrated in Go Live Dashboard report.  

3.2.6
System Integration Phase – Statewide Implementation Task.  Montana intends for its EBT contractor to stagger the implementation of EBT services among authorized WIC merchants.  Montana desires to have two implementation waves.  The first wave shall include all authorized EBT merchants with the exception of authorized WIC farmers.  EBT services shall be introduced to the WIC farmer merchant community during the second wave as presented in Section 3.2.7.

3.2.6.1
Implement EBT services for Montana SNAP, Cash, and/or WIC programs and associated merchants, excluding WIC farmer merchants. 

3.2.6.2
Monitor, report, and resolve post-implementation issues as identified.

3.2.6.3
Operate IVR, help desk, and web portal as designed to provide customer service support.

3.2.6.4
Submit Monthly Post-Implementation Operations Monitoring Report for review and approval by DPHHS.  The report shall be submitted to DPHHS within five business days following the end of the reporting period.

3.2.7
System Integration Phase – WIC Farmer Implementation Task.
3.2.7.1
Preparation for WIC Farmer EBT Implementation.  If the Department chooses to implement a Farmer’s Market the following tasks must be completed.
3.2.7.1.1
Establish a Farmer EBT Implementation Plan for review and approval by DPHHS.  At a minimum, the implementation plan shall include:

a. Implementation schedule 

b. Approach and methodology for rolling out EBT services to farmers 

c. Identification of key stakeholder roles and responsibilities (including, but not limited to, EBT contractor, farmers, participants, and DPHHS)

d. Quick reference guides based on pilot operations results

e. Reporting protocols for farmer implementation effort (i.e., issues, findings)

f. Approach to resolving implementation issues

g. Approach to transitioning farmers from the statewide implementation task to operations

3.2.7.1.2
Work with DPHHS to ensure farmers receive technical information needed in preparation for the farmer EBT implementation.  

3.2.7.1.3
Facilitate and coordinate planning activities associated with the farmer EBT implementation in accordance with the approved implementation plan.

3.2.7.1.4
Prepare go live data including but not limited to:

a. Obtain confirmation that the UPC database is available and contains current data to support the farmer EBT implementation 

b. Obtain confirmation that all APLs are available to support the farmer EBT implementation

3.2.7.1.5
Perform Level 1 and 2 Certification for farmer systems or confirm certifications.
3.2.7.1.6
Prepare a Farmer EBT Implementation Training Plan for farmers and DPHHS.  Where appropriate, training materials and activities shall be tailored to accommodate farmers.  The Farmer EBT Implementation Training Plan shall be reviewed and approved by DPHHS.

3.2.7.1.7
Update System and User Documentation based on pilot operations results.  Updated documentation shall be reviewed and approved by DPHHS.

3.2.7.1.8
Prepare training materials and execute training for farmers and DPHHS staff to support farmer EBT implementation activities. The EBT contractor shall work with DPHHS to establish a training schedule that promotes high attendance and maximizes participation levels.  

3.2.7.1.9
Identify inventory equipment needs and support for farmers and sites to ensure smooth rollout.  Equipment needs include, but are not limited to, card readers, pin pads, and materials such as updated quick reference guides.  

3.2.7.1.10
Equip and prepare farmers and sites for rollout based on inventory assessment.  

3.2.7.1.11

Resolve technical and operational EBT issues identified during pilot operations.  All outstanding issues shall be addressed and resolved prior to farmer EBT implementation.

3.2.7.1.12
Establish farmer EBT Post-Implementation Operations Monitoring Plan for review and approval by DPHHS.  

3.2.7.1.13
Provide Farmer Go/No-Go Decision Recommendation Report to DPHHS for review and consideration.  Report and recommendation shall be based on measureable criteria identified in the approved Farmer EBT Implementation Plan and progress demonstrated in Go-Live Dashboard report.

3.2.7.2
Farmer EBT Implementation.
3.2.7.2.1
Implement EBT services for Montana WIC Farmers. 

3.2.7.2.2
Monitor, report, and resolve post-implementation issues as identified.

3.2.7.2.3
Operate IVR, help desk, and web portal as designed to provide customer service support.

3.2.7.2.4
Submit Monthly Post-Implementation Operations Monitoring Report for review and approval by DPHHS.  The report shall be submitted to DPHHS within five business days following the end of the reporting period.

3.2.8
Operations Phase.
3.2.8.1
Upon completion of the implementation activities and formal acceptance of the implementation task by DPHHS, the EBT contractor shall perform the full scope of EBT services for SNAP, Cash, and/or WIC programs as presented in Section 3.2.11.  The core EBT functional areas are as follows:

a. EBT account management

b. Benefit redemption/transaction processing

c. Reconciliation

d. Settlement

e. State and Federal reporting

f. POS terminal deployment and training
g. Merchant management

h. Deployment of farmer equipment (equipment that can process EBT transactions including but not limited to farmer and farmer’s market POS equipment)
i. EBT card specifications, production and distribution to recipients
j. PIN establishment and maintenance

k. Customer service support (merchant, cardholder, DPHHS)

l. IVR services

m. Web portal

n. Hot site services

o. Application support and production recovery for forms, reports and procedures
p. Security and privacy

q. Audit services

r. Training (merchant)
s. Training (farmer specific)
t. Training (DPHHS)
u. Training (participant)
v. Compliance with governing regulations
3.2.8.2
Provide and deliver written Monthly Montana EBT Operations Reports to DPHHS by the third (3rd) working day following the end of each reporting period. The format must be approved by DPHHS prior to issuance of the first monthly operations report. The first monthly operations report covers the reporting period from the first through the last business day of each month.  At a minimum, the operations reports shall include but not be limited to the following:

a. Accomplishments during the period

b. Operational performance statistics for the period

c. Operational and performance issues encountered (including contractual) and proposed/actual resolutions

d. Contractor staffing schedule and location (current and projected for next period)

e. Actions or decisions needed by DPHHS

3.2.8.3
Conduct an annual review of system and user documentation and submit updated documents to DPHHS for review and approval.   The EBT contractor shall work with DPHHS to establish a process that promotes DPHHS’ understanding of content revisions.

3.2.9
Contract Turnover Task.  Prior to the conclusion of the contract awarded through this procurement, the EBT contractor shall provide, at no extra charge, assistance in turning over final contractor responsibilities to DPHHS.

3.2.9.1
At least 12 months before the start of the first option year of a contract awarded under this procurement, the EBT contractor shall provide, at no additional cost, an EBT Contract Turnover Plan to DPHHS for review and approval. The plan shall include:

a. Proposed approach to turnover

b. Tasks and subtasks for turnover

c. Schedule for turnover

d. Documentation update procedures during turnover 

e. Inventory of system and user documentation and approach to updating all documentation

f. Updated RTM

g. Description of EBT contractor coordination activities that will occur during the turnover task that will be implemented to ensure continued services as deemed appropriate by DPHHS

3.2.9.2
At least 18 months prior to the start of the last year of the base contract period for any contract awarded under this procurement, the EBT contractor shall furnish to DPHHS for review and approval, at no extra charge, an EBT Services Resource Statement.  The statement would identify the resources that would be required by DPHHS or another contractor to fully take over the EBT functions outlined in the contract.

3.2.9.3
The EBT Services Resource Statement shall include an estimate of the number, type, and salary of personnel required to perform the functions  of Data processing staff (for modification support).  The statement of resource requirements shall be based on the EBT contractor’s experience and shall include actual contractor resources devoted to operations activities.

3.2.9.4
As requested, but approximately six months prior to the end of the base contract period(s) or any extension thereof, transfer to DPHHS or its agent, as needed, a current copy of the operational system(s) on media determined by DPHHS, including documentation consisting of: user, system, detailed design documents, and manuals.  As requested, but approximately five months prior to the end of the contract(s) or any extension(s) thereof, begin training DPHHS staff, or its designated agent, in relevant operations activities of the system. Such training shall be completed at least three months prior to the end of the contract or any extension thereof. Such training shall include other manual procedures. 

3.2.9.5
At least six months prior to the end of the base contract(s) and at least six months prior to the end of any contract extension(s), the contractor(s) shall provide an updated EBT Contract Turnover Plan and Requirements Traceability Matrix.

3.2.10
Contractor Deliverables. 

	Deliverable #
	Deliverable Title
	Business Days for DPHHS Review

	Transition Planning and Project Management Task

	3.2.1.1
	Project Management Infrastructure
	10

	3.2.1.3
	Project Management Plan
	15

	3.2.1.3.b
	Project Work Plan(s)
	10

	3.2.1.6
	Weekly Project Status Reports
	5

	3.2.1.9
	Monthly Project Status Reports
	5

	3.2.1.10
	Communication Plan
	10

	3.2.1.13
	Change Control and Approval Process Plan
	5

	3.2.1.14
	Transition Plan
	10

	System Integration Phase – Design Task

	3.2.4.1
	Requirements Validation Plan
	10

	3.2.4.6.
	Detailed System Design Document
	15

	3.2.4.8
	System Security Plan
	10

	3.2.4.9
	Requirements Traceability Matrix – Baseline
	15

	System Integration Phase – Development Task

	3.2.5.1
	Go Live Dashboard
	5

	3.2.5.4
	Data Conversion Plan
	15

	3.2.5.6
	Data Conversion Results Report
	15

	3.2.5.7.1
	Comprehensive Test Plan
	15

	3.2.5.7.5
	Test Results Report
	15

	3.2.5.8.1
	Comprehensive Pilot Operations Plan
	10

	3.2.5.8.5
	Pilot Operations Training Plan
	10

	3.2.5.9.6
	Pilot Operations Test Report
	5

	3.2.5.10.1
	Comprehensive Statewide Implementation Plan
	15

	3.2.5.10.2
	Updated Requirements Traceability Matrix
	15

	3.2.5.10.7
	Statewide Implementation Training Plan
	10

	3.2.5.10.8
	Updated System and User Documentation
	15

	3.2.5.10.13
	Disaster Recovery Plan
	15

	3.2.5.10.14
	Post Implementation Operations Monitoring Plan
	10

	3.2.5.10.15
	Statewide Merchant Go/No-Go Decision Recommendation Report
	5

	System Integration Phase – Implementation Task

	3.2.6.4
	Monthly Post Implementation Operations Monitoring Report (Statewide Implementation)
	5

	3.2.7.1.1
	Farmer EBT Implementation Plan
	10

	3.2.7.1.6
	Farmer EBT Implementation Training Plan
	10

	3.2.7.1.7
	Updated System and User Documentation
	15

	3.2.7.1.12
	Farmer EBT Post Implementation Operations Monitoring Plan
	10

	3.2.7.1.13
	Farmer Go/No-Go Decision Recommendation Report
	5

	3.2.7.2.4
	Monthly Post Implementation Operations Monitoring Report (Farmer Implementation)
	5

	Operations Phase

	3.2.8.2
	Monthly Montana EBT Operations Reports
	5

	3.2.8.3
	Annual System and User Documentation Updates
	15

	Contract Turnover

	3.2.9.1
	EBT Contract Turnover Plan
	15

	3.2.9.2
	EBT Services Resource Statement
	10

	3.2.9.5
	Updated EBT Contract Turnover Plan and Requirements Traceability Matrix
	15


3.2.11
Core EBT Function Vendor Services.  The following subsections present the core EBT functional requirements and performance standards to be met by the EBT contractor for the options proposed.  Specific requirements for each functional area are presented in tables with designations identifying its applicability to the SNAP, Cash, and WIC programs.  Designations are (Y) Yes, (N/A) Not Applicable, (OR) FNS Operating Rules Women Infants and Children Electronic Benefits Transfer document.  In instances where a requirement statement has an OR designation present in the WIC column, and there is a discrepancy between the RFP requirement statement and the OR document, the EBT contractor shall comply with the FNS language as presented in the OR document.  The offeror shall note that where core EBT functional requirements and performance standards presented throughout this RFP deviate from documented FNS-specified standards, the EBT contractor shall adhere to the stricter standard, unless otherwise directed by DPHHS.  

As part of the proposal response, offeror’s shall address each of the detailed core EBT functional requirements as presented in tables throughout Sections 3.2.11 through 3.2.11.23.1-9.  Offerors shall complete the tables by inserting the appropriate Offeror Compliance Code (OCC) within the designated OCC column. Valid values for the OCC column are (A) Comply, (B) Propose Alternative Solution, (C) Subcontractor.  The Response column may remain blank for requirements marked (A) Comply.  DPHHS will consider proposed alternative solutions that promote efficiencies and/or contain State program costs.  
3.2.11.1
EBT Account Management.  DPHHS is moving toward the use of shared services, including fiscal services across programs. In moving in this direction, where possible, DPHHS intends to promote coordination between the SNAP, Cash, and WIC EBT programs.

Currently, SNAP and Cash use a hybrid EBT solution. The State maintains the hardware and software and a EBT contractor operates the system, produces the cards, manages the merchants, maintains the POS terminals, and provides a help desk for program participants.

As part of a national trend, the Montana WIC program wishes to implement an EBT system to replace its current WIC paper benefit redemption system. DPHHS may also define the service levels at which they require the EBT contractor to support for each program. The table below specifies EBT account management service expectations for each program. 
3.2.11.1.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.1.1-1
	EBT contractor shall comply with IRS Regulations:

a) 139255-08. These requirements apply to both cash and SNAP purchase transactions and to all EBT vendors that deal with credit and debit card payments (not only SNAP). However, cash withdrawals via ATM and POS are exempt from the requirements.

b) And requirements found at 26 CFR 1, 31 and 301.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-2
	Establish an EBT account for each benefit type for which a participant may be certified. The EBT contractor shall design the EBT Account Structure to ensure that:

a) Benefit balances are maintained accurately.

b) Benefits accessed by participants are drawn from the appropriate EBT account.

c) Benefit accounts are not overdrawn.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-3
	Be deemed liable for any funds drawn from an incorrect account or program or for overdraws of benefit accounts.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-4
	Balances for SNAP, Cash, and WIC benefits may not be commingled with each other. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-5
	Cash benefits may be used to purchase food items at the POS.
	OR
	Y
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-6
	SNAP and WIC benefits shall not be converted to cash and shall not be accessible at an ATM. Balance inquiries at the ATM for SNAP and WIC accounts are not a required provision.
	Y
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-7
	For all programs, establish and/or maintain a unique participant identifier and/or EBT Account Number. The EBT Account Number shall be a standard primary number that shall be assigned to uniquely identify a client regardless of the number of benefit programs to which the client is entitled. The EBT contractor shall maintain a set of program indicators that, in conjunction with the EBT account number, identify the program benefits for which the client is certified.  The EBT contractor shall maintain a State supplied unique client identifier and associate it with the Primary Account Number (PAN). 
Initially, the SNAP and Cash program will use the same identifier for a given participant, while the WIC program will use a different identifier. In the future, the Department’s vision is for all three programs to utilize the same identifier for a participant.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-8
	Maintain accurate and timely information regarding participant account balances, account status, and participant demographic information.

Account status conditions include:

a) Active- Accounts for which on-going financial transactions are being posted shall be designated as active accounts.

b) Expunged- SNAP and Cash program benefits shall be expunged at the end of the month, with expungement occurring on the first day of the month following a benefit aging out.  For SNAP, the benefits age out after 365 calendar days of inactivity and 180 calendar days of inactivity for the Cash program.  The SNAP program looks at benefits on the 30th of each month to determine anything 365 calendar days or older.  The Cash program looks at benefits on the 15th of each month to determine anything 180 calendar days or older.  The EBT contractor shall report all expungements back to the state. WIC benefits are expunged (expired) at the end of each benefit period (start dates and end dates are included in the food benefit layout record).
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-9
	Support on-line administrative transaction functionality available through management information system interface and web portal, including:

a) Account set-up

b) Update account information

c) Add programs to existing card

d) Benefit authorization

e) Card issuance

f) Card replacement

g) Client PIN selection

h) Account adjustments

i) Benefit repayments (not applicable to WIC)
j) Client account information inquiry
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-10
	Maintain current and historical account number to participant unique identifier associations. This includes effective and termination dates. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-11
	The EBT contractor shall provide administrative/POS device, application software, and communication protocols to state and local agency offices. Administrative terminal/software functionality shall include multi-level physical access controls to ensure that only authorized individuals can process administrative transactions or access participant account information.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-12
	Benefit balances for cash benefit programs shall be o in a pooled cash account, while benefit balances for SNAP and WIC benefits shall be maintained separately and cannot be commingled.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-13
	Block or restrict cash disbursements by providers (ATMs or Merchants) that the State deems inappropriate (example: ATMs accepting the Montana EBT card at casinos).
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-14
	When a client has multiple cash benefits, the EBT contractor shall apply a first in, first out disbursement method.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-15
	Accept account set-up and benefit authorization transactions from the State in either batch and/or on-line processing mode. In either case, the EBT contractor shall always process account set-up data before benefit authorization data. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-16
	Follow the State specified account setup and benefit authorization protocol for on-line transmissions.
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-17
	Establish and maintain new and existing account set up records.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-18
	Receive and process account set-up data transmitted by the administering state agency. Account set-up data includes client case data necessary for the set-up of an EBT Account. In addition to account set-up information, the State shall transmit records to modify account information or the account status.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-19
	Receive and process benefit authorization records transmitted by the administering state agencies. The EBT contractor shall process benefit authorizations and post the authorized benefit amounts to the appropriate EBT accounts, based on the state Unique Individual ID and Program Designator. In addition, the EBT contractor may also designate benefit authorization data elements necessary to support its EBT operations. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-20
	Support the State with monthly benefit authorizations for new accounts and supplements for existing accounts.  To this end, the EBT contractor shall initiate the data transfer, receive the data and take appropriate actions (account set-up, authorization, etc.), and notify the State immediately of any file transfer problems.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-21
	Establish and maintain existing and new account management technical documentation including but not limited to record layouts, file formats, data elements, field lengths, and number of fields.  
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-22
	Meet the timeliness requirements of the State, on-line set-up and benefit authorizations transactions shall be sent to the EBT contractor by the State. The State’s intent is to establish a mechanism through which the State can make benefits available to the client no later than the next day.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-23
	For the WIC program, future benefits are sent to the EBT contractor the day before they become effective.  The EBT contractor shall make the benefits available to the participant at 12:01 a.m. on the scheduled day of benefit availability as determined by the time zone of the merchant making the transaction request. 
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-24
	Benefits shall be authorized for posting to the client's account, at a minimum, once per month according to a schedule established by the State. The EBT contractor shall maintain the current benefit schedule to prevent long lines at POS merchant sites at the first of the month. Due to changes in participant status, or for new cases, benefits shall also be authorized by the State throughout the month. The EBT contractor shall receive from the State, the most recent benefit issuance schedule for SNAP and Cash benefits.

The current benefit issuance schedule is presented in the EBT brochure, which is available in the Bidder’s Library.  
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-25
	Ensure that the current month's authorized benefit allotment shall be added to any benefit balance remaining in the account at the time of posting for all programs except WIC.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-26
	Ensure that SNAP refunds are posted to the SNAP account. WIC refunds are not allowed, only like kind exchanges. SNAP refunds at the point-of-sale in merchant locations shall also result in a credit to client accounts. Cash refunds of SNAP benefits are not permitted.
	Y
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-27
	Support multiple cards with unique PANs and associate it with the participant's benefit account. In others, only the authorized representative's card may access the participant's account. The EBT contractor shall work with the State to ensure that methodology is available to accommodate both authorized representative types.  At a minimum:

a) The authorized representative card shall have a unique PAN. 

b) The EBT contractor shall provide a method for linking multiple unique PANs to a single participant account and for linking the authorized representative to the payee.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-28
	Differentiate between WIC merchant types.  The EBT contractor shall be able to support the utilization of Approved Product Lists (APLs) to different merchant types.
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-29
	Support the use of more than one card per household. 
	OR
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-30
	Support and track changes in head of household associated with a case based on data received from the State. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-31
	Federal System Interfaces – Until further notice, any current retail merchants accepting manual vouchers as a means to conduct ongoing SNAP business, may continue to conduct manual SNAP transactions using a standard paper draft voucher. Their acquirer shall convert the paper voucher into an electronic transaction for transmission to the EBT contractor. Upon receipt of a properly executed transaction, the EBT contractor shall provide settlement to the authorized retail merchant.
Retailers that  became SNAP authorized after March 21, 2014 are prohibited from using manual vouchers for ongoing SNAP business, except in the cases of disasters and in the case of system failures. New retail merchants who are in one of the exempt groups defined in the Act, may continue to accept manual vouchers until further notice. Exempt groups include:  Eligible farmers’ markets, direct –marketing farmers, military commissaries, non-profit cooperatives or organizations, group living arrangements, treatment centers, and prepared meal services; these may use manual vouchers until further notice.
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-32
	Support modification of benefits by the program management information system. This includes addition of benefits as well as removal of benefits. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.1-33
	Support a bi-directional interface with expungement data to the SFSL through the ESB.  
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.1.2
Performance Expectations.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.1.2-1
	Perform account administrative actions including:

a) Account update- Upon notification by the State, the EBT contractor shall change information in the cardholder’s master file. The EBT contractor shall protect the privacy of the cardholder's master file. This transaction must be completed in real-time. 

b) Account adjustment- Upon receipt of the adjustment transaction, the EBT contractor shall post the transaction to the participant's account. Adjustments made by the EBT contractor shall cause money or benefits to be moved either to or from the participant’s EBT Account, and shall impact the daily settlement. Notification shall be provided to the State of pending debit adjustments so that notification can be provided to the participant. This transaction must be completed in real-time.  Adjustments made by the EBT contractor shall be in compliance with federal EBT regulations.
c) Expungement- The EBT contractor shall track aging at both the account and benefit level. Each benefit begins aging at the time it becomes available to the client.  Subsequently, each time that the participant completes a transaction, the account aging clock is reset to start anew, even if one or more benefits have been expunged.  No benefits may be expunged until the account aging clock has reached 365 calendar days.  Once the account has reached expungement age, only those benefits that have been available to the participant for 180 or more calendar days can be expunged. If one or more subsequent benefit authorizations for the same client account have been available to the participant for less than 180 calendar days, they shall not be expunged. They shall remain online until each has reached full expungement age. If an account that has had all benefits expunged is reactivated because the participant has again become eligible, the account shall be treated in the same manner as a new account in terms of benefit aging and expungement timeframes. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.2-2
	Perform account administrative actions including:

a) Account update- Upon notification by the State, the EBT contractor shall change information in the cardholder’s master file. The EBT contractor shall protect the privacy of the cardholder's master file. This transaction must be completed in real-time. 

b) Account adjustment- Upon receipt of the adjustment transaction, the EBT contractor shall post the transaction to the participant's account. Adjustments made by the EBT contractor shall cause money or benefits to be moved either to or from the participant’s EBT Account, and shall impact the daily settlement. Notification shall be provided to the State of pending debit adjustments so that notification can be provided to the participant. This transaction must be completed in real-time. 
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.1.2-3
	Perform account administrative actions including:

a) Account update- Upon notification by the State, the EBT contractor shall change information in the cardholder’s master file. The EBT contractor shall protect the privacy of the cardholder's master file. This transaction must be completed in real-time. 

b) Account adjustment- Upon receipt of the adjustment transaction, the EBT contractor shall post the transaction to the participant's account. Adjustments made by the EBT contractor shall cause money or benefits to be moved either to or from the participant’s EBT Account, and shall impact the daily settlement. Notification shall be provided to the State of pending debit adjustments so that notification can be provided to the participant. This transaction must be completed in real-time. 

c) Expungement- The EBT contractor shall track aging at both the account and benefit level. Each benefit begins aging at the time it becomes available to the client.  Subsequently, each time that the participant completes a transaction, the account aging clock is reset to start anew, even if one or more benefits have been expunged.  No benefits may be expunged until the account aging clock has reached 180 calendar days.  Once the account has reached expungement age, only those benefits that have been available to the participant for 180 or more calendar days can be expunged. If one or more subsequent benefit authorizations for the same client account have been available to the participant for less than 180 calendar days, they shall not be expunged. They shall remain online until each has reached full expungement age. If an account that has had all benefits expunged is reactivated because the participant has again become eligible, the account shall be treated in the same manner as a new account in terms of benefit aging and expungement timeframes. 
	N/A
	Y
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.1.2-4
	Designate account set-up data elements necessary to support EBT operations. The EBT contractor shall notify the State of account set-up exceptions, including, but not limited to rejected set-up requests and reason for rejection (i.e., duplicate authorization) in real-time.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.2-5
	Support batch processing capabilities for account records.  For batch processing, batches shall be identified by the respective batch header and batch trailer records. Within one hour of receipt of a file, the EBT contractor shall either confirm receipt of a complete and successfully transmitted file or contact the State and request the file be retransmitted. The EBT contractor shall confirm receipt of a subsequent transmission(s) within 30 minutes of receipt until successful transmission/receipt has been completed. The EBT contractor shall work with the State to determine a mutually agreed to schedule for processing the transactions, performing all set-up and benefit posting processes, and making benefits available. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.2-6
	For account set-up and/or benefit posting transactions sent to the EBT contractor on-line, transactions shall be processed in real-time, in accordance with the processing standards described in this RFP. All on-line account set-up, account maintenance, benefit authorizations, or administrative transactions shall be processed by the EBT contractor in real time and shall comply with the two-second processing standard required for on-line transactions.
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.1.2-7
	Notify the State of benefit authorization exceptions, including, but not limited to rejected benefit authorization attempts and reason for rejection (i.e., duplicate authorization) within 24 hours of the rejection.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.1.2-8
	In accordance with state policy, current participant and merchant account balances and a rolling four year transaction history for each account (cash, WIC, SNAP) shall be maintained for on-line access or through the customer service IVR. After four years, transaction history data shall be maintained off-line for an additional four years. 

At a minimum, transaction histories shall include:

a) Client name

b) Client unique ID

c) PAN (primary account number on card)

d) EBT account number

e) Benefit program identifier

f) Transaction amount

g) Transaction date

h) Transaction time

i) Acquirer identifier (BIN)

j) Merchant identifier
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.1.3
State Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.1.3-1
	For on-going cases, the State shall authorize benefits, at a minimum, once per month on a schedule to be specified by the State. In addition to the monthly benefit authorizations, the State shall transmit daily benefit authorizations to authorize benefits for new accounts and to authorize supplements for existing accounts. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.2
Benefit Redemption/Transaction Processing.  The EBT contractor is responsible for the benefit redemption and transaction processing of EBT cards. Benefits are distributed through either a POS terminal or by inserting the card into an ATM (excluding WIC). The transmission of benefits will be kept on a record supported by the EBT contractor and made available to the State. To prevent abuse and misuse of EBT cards, the EBT contractor will ensure security measures in place.  The table below specifies benefit redemption and transaction processing service expectations for each program.
3.2.11.2.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.2.1-1
	Verify each cardholder PIN during transaction processing, based on an ISO 8583 and 9564 standard message format. Except as permitted for manual and key-entered benefit transactions, an EBT cardholder accesses their EBT benefit accounts for either a debit or inquiry by swiping their card through the magnetic stripe reader within the POS terminal, or by inserting the card into the ATM (excluding WIC). The cardholder specifies a transaction type if accessing through a POS terminal and keying their PIN. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-2
	If a participant’s card is inoperable, the participant with possession of their EBT card and PIN shall be allowed to attempt a Benefit transaction by key entering the card number into the POS terminal.  The EBT contractor shall allow and process such a transaction if the card number and PIN offset are verified appropriately by the system.  The EBT contractor shall accept and process EBT transactions where the card number (PAN) has been manually entered (key-entered) into the POS device. Transactions may be key-entered at times when a card presented by a participant is damaged and/or the POS device is unable to accurately read the magnetic stripe. The validation of the participant’s PIN is still required on key entered transactions. If a PIN pad is defective or for other reasons a PIN does not accompany the transaction to the EBT host for processing, the EBT contractor shall deny the transaction.
	OR
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-3
	Adopt security measures to prevent participant and merchant abuse/misuse of the key-entry feature. The EBT contractor shall ensure that the PAN printed on the transaction receipt is truncated, and the EBT contractor shall be able to selectively disable or deny the capability of an EBT-only POS device from completing key-entered transactions. Finally, the EBT contractor shall track key-entered transactions by card number and by merchant site. The EBT contractor shall propose procedures for responding to participant reports of malfunctioning or defective equipment at merchant sites, including both EBT-only POS devices and merchant-owned devices.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-4
	Capture and post account debit transactions immediately to ensure that participant accounts are not overdrawn and there are sufficient balances to cover any authorized transactions.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-5
	Recognize, receive, and process ATM and POS EBT transactions. Transactions shall be routed from the point of origination through a commercial switch or a direct connection to the EBT contractor.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-6
	Upon receipt of a transaction authorization request, the EBT contractor shall have the capability to:

a) Determine and record the transaction type.

b) Determine the fee structure and payee for all transactions.

c) Charge ATM fees, as permitted contractually, to client accounts. 

d) Authorize the transaction if:

i.The merchant has a valid FNS or State WIC authorization number (if required).

a) ii.The client PIN is verified.

b) iii.The Card Authentication Value (CAV) is verified.

c) iv.There is a sufficient balance in the account.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-7
	Support and process ATM, POS, and Adjustment transaction sets. Transactions from the cash account can be supported by the checking account/debit account function/key. The SNAP and WIC account, however, shall be a separate account and use a separate function/key. ATM, POS and Adjustment sets include, but are not limited to:

ATM Transactions:

a) Withdrawal from cash account with available balance returned (if ATM's allow balance return). 

POS Transactions including, but not limited to:

a) SNAP purchase from SNAP account with available balance returned

b) Purchase only from cash account purchase with cash back from cash account

c) Balance inquiry from SNAP account

d) Balance inquiry from cash account

e) Cash only from cash account

f) SNAP merchandise refund transaction 

g) Cancellation

h) Correction

i) Manual SNAP transaction 

j) Manual submission/resubmission of SNAP transaction 

k) Key-entered transaction

Adjustments (POS):

a) Representment and adjustment 

b) Representment and adjustment for payment of groceries but not cash back for TANF 

c) Reversals 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-8
	Support and process POS, and Adjustment transaction sets. The WIC account shall be a separate account and use a separate function/key. POS and Adjustment sets include, but are not limited to:

POS Transactions including, but not limited to:

a) WIC purchase from WIC account with available balance returned

b) Balance inquiry from WIC account

c) Cancellation

d) Correction

e) Key-entered transaction

Adjustments (POS):

a) Reversals
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-9
	Provide printed receipts at the time of the ATM or POS transaction. At a minimum, receipts shall:

a) Include the date, merchant’s name and location, transaction type, transaction amount, remaining balance for Cash, remaining balance for the SNAP account, and remaining balance for all food prescription items for the WIC account. 

b) Identify the SNAP, Cash and WIC household member account number (PAN) using a truncated number or coded transaction number. 
	OR
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-10
	For all SNAP transactions, the EBT contractor shall validate that the transactions originated at an FNS authorized retail merchant location (refer to Retailer Participation Requirements as described in the Code of Federal Regulations, 7 CFR 274). The FNS retailer authorization number shall be included in the SNAP transaction message.
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-11
	Maintain a database of authorization numbers for all FNS authorized retail merchants. The merchant number transmitted in the transaction message shall be validated against the database prior to proceeding with transaction processing (see Merchant Validation Requirements specified in the Retailer Participation Requirements section of 7 CFR 274).
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-12
	Maintain the integrity of the system by accounting for transactions by program and accounting for transaction fees. The EBT contractor shall track total number of transactions by transaction type and by merchant.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-13
	For fee accounting, the EBT contractor shall have the capability to track and account for both the state paid and participant paid transaction fees on a monthly basis. The EBT contractor may elect to deduct the participant paid fees from the client account at the time of the transaction.  If the EBT contractor elects to deduct fees at the beginning of the next month, it shall be at its risk. If the EBT contractor elects to deduct a participant fee at the time of the transaction, the EBT contractor shall ensure that the participant has a sufficient cash account balance to cover both the withdrawal and the fee. The EBT contractor shall also ensure that the State is billed only for those fees for which the participant is not responsible. WIC and SNAP Benefit participants cannot be charged transaction fees.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-14
	Maintain a database of the authorization numbers for all authorized retail merchants. The merchant number transmitted in the transaction message shall be validated against the database prior to proceeding with transaction processing.  EBT contractor shall receive daily updates from the FNS retailer database. The EBT contractor shall transmit FNS required information daily on merchant SNAP redemption to the State.
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-15
	Establish a mechanism for receiving and confirming receipt of electronic file transmissions of merchant records from the FNS BRD.
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-16
	Ensure that a new retailer/provider is enabled to conduct Food Assistance transactions within two weeks of communication of authorization from the BRD if the EBT contractor acts as the acquirer; or within 30 calendar days or by mutual agreement for retailers processing through another acquirer or third party
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-17
	Receive from the BRD updates (transmitted daily and monthly) to the SNAP merchant management database.
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-18
	Suspend or de-authorize the SNAP transaction processing privileges of a merchant within 48 hours of notification by FNS’ BRD that the merchant is deauthorized/suspended.
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-19
	Permit all State approved merchants to provide cash-access services to EBT participants. Authorization of cash-access merchants and maintenance of a database of cash-access merchants are required.
	N/A
	Y
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-20
	The EBT contractor shall provide a daily UPC/PLU redemption file containing specific information regarding the UPC/PLU, the requested price and the settled price for each transaction.
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-21
	Support both batch and on-line, real-time transmissions from the State. At a minimum, the EBT contractor shall support the following:

a) Provide communications facilities for batch and on-line transmissions between the EBT contractor and the State.

b) Use communication software and protocols compatible with those of the State. 

c) Transfer data files between the EBT contractor's computer system and the Montana ESB.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-22
	Server to server - Manage and be responsible for development, installation, and maintenance of the circuits and communications hardware and software; this includes any leased line(s), communications control and transport equipment, line status monitoring, and the cost to connect with the State server(s) where applicable. The connection protocols/methods shall match the State’s methods for both batch file transfer and on-line query/response transactions. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-23
	Participant and Benefit Identification – The State is responsible for designing and implementing the programs necessary to identify recipients and benefit amounts to be communicated to the EBT contractor. State staff shall be responsible for determining if the data transfer is to be initiated by State or EBT contractor systems, and for getting State data files to the appropriate places at the appropriate times for the transfer of data going from the State to the EBT contractor.

The EBT contractor shall initiate the data transfer, for receiving the data and taking appropriate actions (account set-up, maintenance, etc.) within reasonable timeframes as shall be described by the State’s EBT IT team during transition, and for notifying the State within one hour of any file transfer problems, especially (but not limited to) monthly benefit files. The EBT contractor shall resolve any problems to the satisfaction of the State. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-24
	Determine means acceptable to the State of working around the absence of data for a reasonable period until the State can make the necessary changes to the data file content being sent to the EBT contractor. The EBT contractor shall develop the screens and files necessary to communicate data to the State in batch and on-line modes. For batch communications, the process, at the State’s determination, shall be initiated either by the State or the EBT contractor.

The EBT contractor shall provide to the State their process run schedule so the State knows how long the EBT contractor’s posting processes shall run once the State’s files are received. Should a file transfer failure occur that affects the timely posting of benefits, the EBT contractor shall provide notification to their food and cash providers (merchants and banks) alerting them of any such failure or outage. This level of EBT contractor support shall be required for both the current system and for those modifications that may become necessary for systems currently under development within the State. The State considers the issue of interface activities and EBT contractor support to be critical.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-25
	Transaction Processing - It is expected that existing equipment shall be used for presenting a limited set of status information to state employees at DPHHS locations involved in the provision of EBT services to Montana participants. It is expected that the above interfaces shall have query/response capacity to support transfer of such information for presentation to selected workers. In the event that this is not cost effective or practical, the EBT contractor shall provide an access device at designated sites, to allow access to EBT contractor information. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-26
	Access Device – The EBT contractor should assume one access device per designated work site in the event that it is not cost effective or practical to use existing equipment. All access device costs including: purchase, deployment, maintenance, software, communications and management costs shall be included.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-27
	On-line Communications - The EBT contractor should assume that an on-line process shall function in two ways. First, on-line account information may be transmitted to the EBT contractor to set-up or modify accounts as necessary. These transactions shall be sent from the State's system to the EBT contractor's system. Second, selected state workers using the web portal may be authorized to query the EBT system directly.  The solutions proposed to permit this to occur should discuss advantages, disadvantages, cost implications, and explanations of how this could be implemented.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.1-28
	Establish and maintain system documentation for EBT account management, transaction processing that clearly identifies all bidirectional interfaces between the EBT contractor and the State.  System documentation shall be updated within a week of a change impacting the system documentation.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.2.2
Performance Expectations.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.2.2-1
	All on-line account set-up, account maintenance, benefit authorizations, or administrative transactions shall be processed by the EBT contractor in real time and shall comply with the 10 second processing standard required for on-line transactions.
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.2.2-2
	Notify the State of account set-up exceptions, including, but not limited to rejected set-up requests and reason for rejection (i.e., duplicate authorization) in real time. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.2-3
	Notify the State of benefit authorization exceptions, including, but not limited to rejected benefit authorization attempts and reason for rejection (i.e., duplicate authorization.) within 24 hours of the rejection.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.2-4
	Comply with the performance standards required by FNS in 7 CFR 274.8 (b), and FNS WIC operating rules. The EBT host shall adhere to the standards summarized below except during scheduled downtime for system maintenance as specified in the contract.

a) Operate 99.9 percent of the time.

b) Process 98.0 percent of transactions in two seconds or less.

c) Maintain an accuracy standard of no more than two errors per every 10,000 transactions.

Where State-specified performance standards deviate from FNS-specified performance standards, the EBT contractor shall adhere to the stricter standard.
	OR
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.2.3
State Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.2.3-1
	For on-going cases, the State shall authorize benefits, at a minimum, once per month on a schedule to be specified by the State. In addition to the monthly benefit authorizations, the State shall transmit daily benefit authorizations to authorize benefits for new accounts and to authorize supplements for existing accounts.   The Cash program will also authorize existing accounts daily that did not auto-authorize.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.3-2
	Establish a schedule for authorized benefits to be posted to the participant’s account.  
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.3-3
	Provide EBT contractor with the most recent benefit issuance schedule for SNAP and Cash benefits.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.2.3-4
	Transmit benefits, account setup, account adjustments, and other transactions in real time and batch transactions to the EBT contractor. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.3
Reconciliation.  In Montana, HCSD and BFSD are responsible for accounting, reconciliation and reporting of all SNAP and TANF benefit issuance and activities through the authorizing system, TEAMS, and the EBT system, Montana Access, on a daily basis.
The reconciliation process determines and verifies that the funds requested by the EBT gateway are reconciled against the transactions authorized and approved within Montana Access every day.  The EBT gateway agent generates a daily transaction reconciliation file to initiate the process.  This file contains all transactions processed by the EBT gateway within the processing day along with the disposition of the transaction (i.e., whether it was approved or denied).   Montana Access receives this file and compares the records within the file to its records to determine that all records between the two systems, along with their disposition, are in agreement.  Discrepancies are identified and reported for follow-up by the State Program and Fiscal staff.

HCSD also reconciles and adjusts participant accounts, as necessary, on occasion when a transaction was not properly debited, credited or reversed according to Federal regulations as specified in 7 CFR § 274.1 through 274.8.

The EBT contractor is required to support the reconciliation and reporting process, provide assistance to DPHHS staff if or when problems occur that affect reconciliation, help in researching and finding problems relating to exceptions and conditions of not balancing between Montana Access, TEAMS and the Gateway transaction switch.
The table below specifies reconciliation service expectations for each program.

3.2.11.3.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.3.1-1
	Work with the State to define a method for daily transaction comparisons to resolve discrepancies between the Montana EBT system and the EBT contractor’s Gateway switch.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.3.1-2
	Maintain ledger accounts at the client, program, and government agency levels. Subsequent to cutoff, the EBT system shall be balanced and reconciled. The EBT contractor shall compute the end of day net position or balance for each general ledger account. For each account, the end of day net position is equal to: Opening balance + credits - debits = End of day balance.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.3.1-3
	Balance the EBT system as a whole to ensure that the change in the net position in the sum of client accounts balances to the change in the net position of program accounts. The EBT contractor shall also ensure that the change in the net position in the sum of the program accounts balances to the change in the net position (obligations outstanding) for government agencies.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.3.1-4
	Meet SNAP, Cash, and WIC reconciliation as stated in federal regulations. The EBT contractor shall use the FNS reconciliation requirements to perform reconciliation for all EBT programs. The EBT contractor shall perform reconciliation activities including: 

a) Client account daily beginning balance and net draws versus the ending balance.

b) Client net redemptions versus acquirer settlement values.

c) Total funds entering, exiting, and remaining in the system each day.

d) Total net change in system-wide obligations outstanding to the sum of the net change in obligations outstanding for all benefit programs.

e) Total net change in system wide obligations outstanding to the sum of the net change in obligations outstanding for DPHHS. 

f) The net settlement value of all transactions to the sum of the net settlement values for all benefit programs.

g) The net settlement value of all transactions to the sum of the net settlement value for the State.

As part of system balancing and reconciliation, the EBT contractor shall determine the total amount of federal funds by program and the total amount of state funds by program necessary to reimburse its accounts for the total credits due to EBT acquirers. The information generated during reconciliation and balance processing shall be used by the EBT contractor to prepare the daily settlement files. The EBT contractor shall document procedures for maintaining audit trails throughout the settlement processes.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.3.1-5
	Comply with State interface specifications to support reconciliation activities.  Detailed Design Specification Documents for the following interfaces are available in the Bidder’s Library. 

a) EBT Process Request Interface Control Document, Document ID 42.04.01

b) SFSL-EBT Payee Demographic Information Document, Document ID 42.04.03

c) Benefit Aging Extract and Update Document, Document ID 42.04.04

d) EBT to SFSL Benefit Cancellation Extract Interface Control Document, Document ID 42.04.05

e) Expungement Extract Interface Control Document, Document ID 42.04.06
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.3.1-6
	Provide a Settlement/Reconciliation Manual that provides guidance and procedures to the State on performing a daily reconciliation of the EBT contractor’s EBT System as defined within federal regulations and consistent with FNS reconciliation guidance. The manual shall identify the specific EBT reports from the EBT contractor’s system that are required for settlement and reconciliation of the EBT contractor’s EBT system. The manual shall be provided in an electronic media as agreed to by the State. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.3.1-7
	Financial audit reports include those reports the EBT contractor shall provide to the State in order to account, reconcile, and audit EBT system processing and operations.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.3.1-8
	Provide transaction information to support reporting as directed by federal regulations. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.3.1-9
	Produce reconciliation reports and files compatible with the WIC management information system specifications.  EBT contractor shall produce reports in accordance with FNS Operating Rules, WIC EBT Technical Implementation Guide, EBT and the FNS WIC EBT Universal Interface Specification Document (v.4.1).
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	


3.2.11.3.2
Performance Expectations.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.3.2-1
	Work with the State to establish the EBT transaction processing schedule. 
	OR
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.3.3
State Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.3.3-1
	Provide and maintain the connection between the State and the EBT contractor’s Gateway switch.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.4
Settlement.  The EBT contractor is responsible for the settlement and reporting of transactions. This settlement is key in assuring merchants are reimbursed in an accurate and timely manner. The EBT settlement shall be conducted in accordance with current Federal regulations as updated throughout the life of the contract and FNS Reconciliation and Settlement Guidance. 
The State is responsible for oversight and reconciliation of settlement and ensuring financial integrity.  All Montana Access EBT related transactions must be settled and reconciled between the state benefit account, merchants, ATM providers or financial institutions receiving an approved electronic transaction response from Montana Access.  The contractor is required to manage the settlement process on behalf of the State and troubleshoot system or reporting errors that require immediate resolution to put the state account back into balance.  In most cases this must be done in 24 hours or less. 

The EBT gateway initiates the settlement process on a daily basis.  All settlement for reimbursement purposes must be done through a valid ACH process.  The gateway creates an ACH file containing all EBT terminal settlement transactions.  The ACH file is transmitted to the ACH originator financial institution for posting to the appropriate settlement accounts for each terminal processor.  The ACH originator financial institution then transmits the ACH file to its FRB.  The FRB processes the ACH file and credit to the respective merchant banks.  The offsetting debit is sent to the bank in which the state EBT clearing account is maintained.  At this time the state EBT clearing account is in an overdraft situation. 

The Montana Access reconciliation process creates a settlement/expenditure report and a reconciliation exception report.  State Fiscal staff uses the settlement report (expenditure report for WIC) to enter settlement data into the U.S. Treasury payment system, ASAP.  ASAP prepares and transmits a wire transfer to credit the State EBT clearing account.  For WIC, the State prepares and transmits a wire transfer to the EBT contractor.  The state EBT contractor settles with the merchant banks. It is at this point that the state EBT clearing accounts are no longer in overdraft situation as stated above. WIC program staff reconciles the monthly bank statement to the amount of the wire out expenditures transfers for that month.
The table below specifies settlement service expectations for each program.
3.2.11.4.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.4.1-1
	Operate on a 24-hour processing cycle. At a designated cutoff time each day, the EBT contractor shall close out the current processing day and commence the next processing day.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.4.1-2
	To effect commercial settlement through the automated clearinghouse, the EBT contractor shall have an originating and receiving relationship with the automated clearinghouse. For purposes of clearing through the clearinghouse, the EBT contractor shall maintain a FRB clearing account. For transaction processing and settlement purposes, the EBT contractor shall also be a member of the prevailing regional network(s) and/or national networks and be capable of settling both ATM and POS transactions.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.4.1-3
	EBT contractor originated settlement - For merchants, third parties, or other benefit providers that are directly connected to the EBT host, the EBT contractor shall originate an automated clearinghouse credit for the total balance due for EBT benefits provided during the just closed EBT processing day. The benefit provider credits shall be entered into the automated clearinghouse for settlement on the next banking day.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.4.1-4
	Network settlement - Credits due to EBT benefit providers who are connected to the EBT contractor through a regional or national network shall settle utilizing standard commercial practices.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.4.1-5
	Offer a direct connect fee-free mechanism for EBT transactions. Any agreements for direct interchange shall include provisions for the settlement of transactions. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.4.1-6
	Voucher eligible  Until further notice, any current retail merchants accepting manual vouchers as a means to conduct ongoing  SNAP business, may continue to conduct manual SNAP transactions using a standard paper draft voucher. Their acquirer shall convert the paper voucher into an electronic transaction for transmission to the EBT contractor. Upon receipt of a properly executed transaction, the EBT contractor shall provide settlement to the authorized retail merchant.
Retailers that  became SNAP authorized after March 21, 2014 are prohibited from using manual vouchers for ongoing SNAP business, except in the cases of disasters and in the case of system failures. New retail merchants who are in one of the exempt groups defined in the Act, may continue to accept manual vouchers until further notice. Exempt groups include:  Eligible farmers’ markets, direct –marketing farmers, military commissaries, non-profit cooperatives or organizations, group living arrangements, treatment centers, and prepared meal services; these may use manual vouchers until further notice.
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.4.1-7
	To cover settlement, the State shall reimburse the EBT contractor, via electronic funds transfer (EFT) payment, for SNAP, Cash, and WIC programs on the next banking day following the EBT settlement date(s). When applicable, for federally funded programs, the State shall originate a payment request in the federal draw system(s), and the federal funds shall be transferred to the EBT contractor’s bank account.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.4.1-8
	Day of Draw Cash Benefits- These benefits represent credit balances only – no funds shall be transferred when benefits are authorized. All settlement activities shall be coordinated with the State and shall ensure compliance with the Cash Management Improvement Act. Day of draw transactions shall be settled on the next banking day following the day of draw. Day of draw cash benefits may be disbursed to clients from ATM's or any POS merchant displaying a Montana EBT logo.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.4.1-9
	For transaction accounting, the EBT contractor shall allocate to the appropriate Cash, SNAP, or WIC account. In addition, a general ledger account for each benefit program and each client cardholder account shall be maintained. Changes in client account balances shall be balanced to changes in program benefit obligations outstanding at the end of each 24-hour processing cycle. The changes in program and client account balances shall balance to the value of the day's transactions, including expungement transactions.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.4.1-10
	Provide on-line processing, in a real-time environment. The EBT contractor's EBT system shall process transaction requests and maintain EBT account balance and transaction history data. The EBT contractor shall initiate and perform daily financial settlement, account reconciliation, and EBT system activity and performance reporting. The EBT contractor shall process cardholder’s balance inquiries and requests for historical data received via the IVR and Customer Service Help Desk and EBT contractor’s website. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.4.2
Performance Expectations.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.4.2-1
	Settlement to merchants shall occur on a daily basis from the EBT contractor’s bank and a deposit shall be made to the merchant and/or TPP account.  The settlement shall include the following:

a) Merchant /TPP settlement 

b) Reconciliation

c) Approved adjustments

d) Phone line reimbursement for EBT only merchants, as approved by DPHHS 

e) Supply reimbursement for EBT only merchants. 

The merchant settlement, reconciliation and approved adjustments shall be drawn from the EBT contractor’s bank account.  

The EBT contractor shall provide unsettled funds and reporting as required by State and Federal guidelines.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.4.2-2
	Settlement to merchants shall occur on a daily basis from the EBT contractor’s bank and a deposit shall be made to the merchant and/or TPP account.  The settlement shall include the following:

a) Merchant /TPP settlement 

b) Reconciliation

c) Approved adjustments

The merchant settlement, reconciliation and approved adjustments shall be drawn from the EBT contractor’s bank account.  

The EBT contractor shall provide unsettled funds and reporting as required by State and Federal guidelines.
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.4.2-3
	Produce settlement reports.  Daily settlement reports and data must be transmitted to the State via batch processing. At a minimum, these reports must be available as specified by the State and may include the following:

a) Daily Activity Reports

Provide detail and summary information on clients and terminal (merchant, ATM, third party, network, etc.) transaction activity.

b) ACH Activity Reports

Provide detail and summary information on money movement initiated to settle client transaction activity (e.g., withdrawals and purchases).

c) Clearing Reports

Provide detail and summary information on financial activity and money movement necessary to settle client transaction activity (e.g., withdrawals and purchases).

d) Financial Report

FAP Redemption Report (FNS002) 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.4.2-4
	Produce settlement reports.  Daily settlement reports and data must be transmitted to the State via batch processing. At a minimum, these reports must be available as specified by the State and may include the following:

a) Daily Activity Reports

Provide detail and summary information on clients and terminal (merchant, ATM, third party, network, etc.) transaction activity.

b) ACH Activity Reports

Provide detail and summary information on money movement initiated to settle client transaction activity (e.g., withdrawals and purchases).

c) Clearing Reports

Provide detail and summary information on financial activity and money movement necessary to settle client transaction activity (e.g., withdrawals and purchases).

d) Financial Report
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.4.2-5
	Conduct settlement, reconciliation, and reporting of transactions to ensure merchants and their processors are reimbursed accurately and merchant shall be reimbursed within 24 hours of a transaction. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.4.3
State Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.4.3-1
	Perform the necessary drawdowns of Federal funds and transfer of State funds to the EBT contractor’s bank account.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.4.3-2
	Send an additional estimated EFT for cash programs with the normal EBT payment to the EBT contractor the business day prior to the state holiday. The amount of the additional payment shall represent expenditures for all date(s) which the EBT contractor would receive a payment under normal operating conditions (when a State holiday occurs on a Wednesday, on Tuesday the EFT would include the actual payment for Monday, and an estimated payment for Tuesday. Under normal operating conditions the State would make a payment for Tuesday expenditures on Wednesday). 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.5
State and Federal Reporting.  DPHHS and USDA-FNS use EBT reports for monitoring, adjusting, and reconciling the Montana EBT system. The reports are key in assuring timely, accurate management of all input, output, payment disbursement, security and all activities related to or produced by the system. The table below specifies reporting service expectations for each program.
For sample of reports, please refer to the Bidder’s Library. 

3.2.11.5.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.5.1-1
	All reports shall have the option to be displayed on the screen, output to a printer, or saved to a file in an MS Excel compatible format.
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-2
	Produce reports with the data equivalent to the report library for SNAP and Cash EBT, as currently received by the State. Some existing reports will be modified as mutually agreed to with the EBT contractor.  A current listing of EBT reports is available in Montana’s EBT system user guide, which is available in the Bidder’s Library. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-3
	Meet the informational and reporting needs of the State, FNS, and USDA throughout the contract period.  The EBT contractor shall work with the State to confirm the content and schedule of all reports. The frequency of reporting is presented in the current Montana EBT system user guide, which is available in the Bidder’s Library.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-4
	Provide daily account activity reports reflecting all account actions received from the State via batch and/or on-line administrative terminal processing. Activity reports are presented in the current Montana EBT system user guide, which is available in the Bidder’s Library.  These reports may be migrated or further segregated at the discretion of the EBT contractor, and in accordance with State approval. These reports shall be provided in an electronic format.  
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-5
	Provide to the State, a parameterized, electronic ad hoc report of EBT benefit authorizations/transactions processed which includes, at a minimum, the following searchable data elements:

a) EBT program type

b) EBT account number

c) State program unique identifier

d) SSN, if applicable

e) Case number, if applicable

f) Participant name

g) Date and time benefit authorization data was received

h) Date and time benefit authorization data was processed (posted)

i) Transaction type 

j) Transmission type

k) Acquirer ID (BIN) 

l) Merchant ID

m) Source 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-6
	The EBT contractor shall notify the State via an agreed upon process of benefit authorization exceptions, including, but not limited to rejected benefit authorization attempts and reason for rejection (i.e., duplicate authorization).
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-7
	Produce an account maintenance report.  The report shall provide a comprehensive listing of all account maintenance actions processed by the EBT system over the preceding business day. This report must include both on-line and batch account maintenance actions. This shall be a daily electronic report.
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-8
	Produce an administrative action report.  The report must provide a listing of all administrative actions received and processed by the EBT system. Administrative actions shall include changes to participant, case, or account data (e.g., participant name or address), expungements, re-obligations, and hold benefits. The EBT contractor must send an expunged benefit detail (daily aging file) coinciding with the daily cut off. This shall be a daily electronic report. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-9
	Produce account audit reports.  Account audit reports shall provide a detailed audit trail of all system functions and transactions that impact the account balance or status of an account. This shall be an electronic, parameterized, ad hoc report.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-10
	Produce batch processing reports daily that adhere to the WIC interface specifications.  Batch processing reports shall be used by the EBT contractor and State to ensure the complete and accurate transfer of data during nightly batch processing. 
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-11
	Produce batch processing reports daily that adhere to agreed to specifications with SNAP and Cash programs.  Batch processing reports shall be used by the EBT contractor and State to ensure the complete and accurate transfer of data during nightly batch processing.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-12
	Produce security and fraud reports.  Security and fraud reports shall support the data requirements of both federal and state agencies responsible for ensuring the integrity and proper use of benefits to be distributed by the EBT system. The data requirements for security and fraud investigation have been divided into three categories:

a) Participant Fraud and Compliance:

The EBT contractor shall work with the State to define a parameterized, ad hoc reporting functionality to be provided to the State for the investigation of participant fraud. Data requirements for this report include, but are not limited to, the following:

· Transaction Data

· EBT account number

· Transaction amount

· Merchant authorization number

· Date, time

· Benefit type (SNAP, Cash)

· Transaction type (i.e., on-line, purchase, reversal, withdrawal, manual, etc.)

b) Participant Statistics

· Number of PIN attempts

· Number of card replacements

· Number of manual transactions

· Total number of transactions

· Number of out of state transactions 

· Number of refund transactions 
c) Merchant Data
· Date

· Time

· Benefit type

· Terminal identifier

· EBT account number

· Transaction amount

· Transaction type

· Record of manual vouchers submitted by merchants

· Electronic copy of vouchers with search parameters accessible to the State for viewing
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-13
	Produce security and fraud reports.  Security and fraud reports shall support the data requirements of both Federal and State agencies responsible for ensuring the integrity and proper use of benefits to be distributed by the EBT system. The data requirements for security and fraud investigation have been divided into two categories:

a) Participant Fraud and Compliance:

The EBT contractor shall work with the State to define a parameterized, ad hoc reporting functionality to be provided to the State for the investigation of participant fraud. Data requirements for this report include, but are not limited to, the following:

· Transaction Data

· EBT account number

· Transaction amount

· Merchant authorization number

· Date, time

· Benefit type (SNAP, Cash or WIC)

· Transaction type (i.e., on-line, purchase, reversal, withdrawal, manual, etc.)

b) Participant Statistics

· Number of PIN attempts

· Number of card replacements

· Number of manual transactions

· Total number of transactions
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-14
	Produce system performance reports.  In general these reports shall be parameterized, ad hoc reports unless otherwise noted. System performance reports shall be used by federal and state agencies to monitor the operations and performance of the EBT system, customer service operations, and the IVR.  These reports must provide statistical information on the system utilization and response time. Data to be provided includes, but is not limited to, the following:

a) Response Time Analysis

Response time analysis information including: a statistical summary of response time by merchant-terminal, ATM, third-party, and network acquirers.

b) Utilization Reports

Utilization reports providing statistical information (i.e., capacity utilization) on: the number and amount of transactions processed by card, case, merchant-terminal, ATM, third party, and/or network.

c) System Availability

To ensure compliance with the system availability requirements specified in this document and the FNS EBT Regulations, the EBT contractor must provide a monthly report of the system availability, including a detailed documentation and explanation of both scheduled and unscheduled downtime and processing interruptions.

d) Transaction Activity Reports

Daily and monthly statistical reports on transaction activity including the number and type of transactions requested and processed per hour, day, and month.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-15
	Customer service performance reports are used by federal and state agencies to monitor the operations and performance of the EBT system, customer service operations, and the IVR system.  The EBT contractor shall furnish the State various monthly reports relating to statistical information on the system utilization and response times. These reports shall provide information from the first day of a reporting month to the last day of a reporting month. Reports parameterized must be separated to provide specific information on participant/cardholder, merchant, and State of Montana representative calls handled by the IVR and calls handled by a live customer services representative (CSR). Data to be provided in reports shall include, but are not limited to, the number of inquiries related to:

a) Participant/Cardholder

· Account statements

· ATM/POS related

· Balance inquiry

· Benefit availability

· Claim status

· PIN change

· PIN related

· Report complaint

· Report fraud

· Disconnected before assistance

· Total participant calls answered

b) Merchant

· Manual authorization debit 

· Merchant questions

· Disconnected before assistance

· Total merchant calls answered

· Transaction issues

c) State Staff

· Calls from local offices

· Card activation

· Card status

· Total State of Montana calls answered

d) General

· Daily number of calls handled in English and Spanish

· Daily number of calls handled by automated voice response unit 

e) Participant/Cardholder Merchant

· Daily number of calls handled by CSR
· Monthly top 50 excessive callers

· Monthly summary of average hold time per call when callers choose to leave the IVR to speak to a live CSR.

· Response time analysis information including a statistical summary of response times by merchant-terminal, ATM, third-party and network acquirers.

· Utilization reports providing statistical information (i.e. capacity utilization) on the number and amount of transactions processed by card, case, merchant-terminal, ATM, third-party and/or network.

· Monthly report on the IVR availability, including a detailed documentation and explanation of both scheduled and unscheduled downtime or processing interruptions.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-16
	Customer service performance reports are used by Federal and State agencies to monitor the operations and performance of the EBT system, customer service operations and the IVR system.  The EBT contractor shall furnish the State various monthly reports relating to statistical information on the system utilization and response times. These reports shall provide information from the first day of a reporting month to the last day of a reporting month. Reports parameterized must be separated to provide specific information on participant/cardholder, merchant and State of Montana representative calls handled by the IVR and calls handled by a live CSR. Data to be provided in reports shall include but is not limited to the number of inquiries related to:

a) Participant/Cardholder

· Account statements

· ATM/POS related

· Balance inquiry

· Benefit availability

· Claim status

· PIN change

· PIN related

· Report complaint

· Report fraud

· Disconnected before assistance

· Total participant calls answered

b) Merchant

· Merchant questions

· Disconnected before assistance

· Total merchant calls answered

· Transaction issues

c) State Staff

· Calls from local offices

· Card activation

· Card status

· Total State of Montana calls answered

d) General

· Daily number of calls handled in English and Spanish

· Daily number of calls handled by automated voice response unit 

e) Participant/Cardholder Merchant

· Daily number of calls handled by CSR
· Monthly top 50 excessive callers

· Monthly summary of average hold time per call when callers choose to leave the IVR to speak to a live CSR.

· Response time analysis information including a statistical summary of response times by merchant-terminal, ATM, third-party and network acquirers.

· Utilization reports providing statistical information (i.e. capacity utilization) on the number and amount of transactions processed by card, case, merchant-terminal, ATM, third-party and/or network.

· Monthly report on the IVR availability, including a detailed documentation and explanation of both scheduled and unscheduled downtime or processing interruptions.
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-17
	Cost Allocation Reports. These monthly reports provide data to allow the State to allocate common costs to benefiting programs. This report shall include but not be limited to transactions and balance inquiries per program type.

The EBT contractor shall work with the State to develop specific report content and layout. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-18
	Provide to the State a parameterized, electronic ad hoc report of EBT accounts established, which includes, at a minimum, the following data elements:

· EBT program type

· EBT account number

· State program unique identifier

· Date and time account set-up information received

· Date and time account established

· Transmission type (batch or on-line)

The EBT contractor shall also notify the State of account set-up exceptions, including, but not limited to rejected set-up requests and reason for rejection (i.e., duplicate case number, demographic information, etc).
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-19
	WIC Activity File. The EBT contractor shall provide a daily file that transfers monetary details of all WIC transactions and reversals that affect the daily settlement to M-SPIRIT. 
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-20
	Meet the reporting requirements of FNS as specified in 7 CFR 274.  At a minimum, the EBT contractor must provide:

a) BRD Retailer Redemption Data

The EBT contractor must provide detailed daily SNAP redemption data to the FNS BRD. The data format and requirements of this file shall be specified by FNS. At a minimum, data elements required in this file include:

· FNS retail merchant authorization number

· Date of SNAP redemption

· Total daily amount of food assistance redemptions by merchant. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-21
	Provide FNS compliance investigations and reporting.  At a minimum, the EBT contractor shall advise, assist, and appropriately act to assist Federal agencies and the State in detection and investigations of abuses by stores, participants, or workers. This may entail cooperation with various authorities of both Federal and State agencies that are responsible for compliance with SNAP Program laws and regulations. 

Any merchant participating in any of the programs may become subject to monitoring and investigations by the Retailer Investigation Branch, USDA Office of Inspector General, the IRS, Secret Service, or local police departments. Participants are subject to investigation by state program authorities and occasionally others. The State and the EBT contractor must cooperate in these investigations by creating participant cases, providing benefit access cards, and providing information. Access to information concerning these matters shall be restricted both at the State and the EBT contractor so that the investigations are not compromised. The EBT contractor must provide the following assistance:

a) Creation of accounts and issuance of cards and PINs to be used by the investigators.

b) Acceptance of benefit authorizations to fund investigative accounts possibly on an irregular basis as needed by the investigators.

c) Provide reports on the investigative accounts showing the amounts funded to the cases and the transaction histories.

d) Provide information from the system as needed for evidentiary purposes.

e) Provide extract files of store transaction history on a regular basis to the FNS. The format for these files shall be specified by FNS.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.5.1-22
	The EBT contractor shall advise, assist, and appropriately act to aid the State and USDA-FNS in detection and investigation of fraud and abuse by retailers, recipients, or state staff, including reporting unusual activity. The EBT contractor shall cooperate with State and Federal agencies responsible for compliance with laws and regulations for all programs support under the agreed upon contract.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.5.2
Performance Expectations.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.5.2-1
	Establish a reports manual describing all standard reports to be generated by the EBT contractor. In addition, the reports manual shall provide a brief description of the data files provided to the State for internal report generation. The EBT contractor shall submit the final reports manual no later than nine months after contract award date. 

The reports manual shall be updated within one week of any changes to the report parameters or specifications that are documented in the manual. The manual shall be maintained in an agreed upon electronic media. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.5.2-2
	Provide ad hoc reports with no additional cost to the State, in order for the State to respond to unusual circumstances not covered by standard reports.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.6
POS Terminal Deployment and Training.  At the point of sale, the EBT contractor will be responsible for the authorization of participant-initiated SNAP, Cash, and/or WIC transactions. The EBT contractor will have the capability to receive and process participant transactions from both ATM and POS terminals. The receipt and processing of these transactions will be in accordance to SNAP, Cash, and/or WIC transaction rules and regulations. 

The POS terminals deployed by the EBT contractor shall be industry standard and meet specified performance and technical standards as specified in 7 CFR § 274.1 through 274.8, in the areas of system processing speeds, system availability and reliability, system security, system ease-of-use, minimum card and terminal requirements, performance boding, and minimum transaction set.  The EBT contractor is responsible for ensuring that the EBT system meets the processing requirements and criteria established by FNS. The table below specifies POS deployment and training expectations for each program.

3.2.11.6.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.6.1-1
	The EBT contractor shall be able to trace all transactions back to the terminal of origin as well as the location of the terminal.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-2
	“Provision of Electronic Benefit Transfer (EBT) equipment for SNAP Retailers
Non-exempt SNAP Retailers:  Section 4002 of the Agricultural Act of 2014 now requires non-exempt retailers to pay for EBT equipment, supplies, implementation, and related services (“EBT equipment and services”) to participate in SNAP.  Retailers that become SNAP-authorized after March 21, 2014, must pay for their own EBT equipment and services.  Retailers authorized on or before March 21, 2014, and who have already been given free EBT equipment and services by the State may, at the State’s option, continue to use the EBT equipment and services for free until September 21, 2014.  Such SNAP-authorized retailers should arrange for lease or purchase of EBT equipment and services as soon as they can in order to ensure continued participation in SNAP.  
Exempt SNAP retailers - Provision of Electronic Benefit Transfer (EBT) equipment
Exempted retailers include Drug and/or Alcohol Treatment Programs, Non-profit Food Buying Co-ops, Shelters for Battered Women and Children, Communal Dining Faculties, Direct Marketing Farmers, Farmers’ Markets, Group Living Arrangements, Homeless Meal Providers, Military Commissaries , Meal Delivery Services and Senior Citizens’ Centers/Residential Buildings.  

The EBT contractor shall be responsible for ensuring all Exempt SNAP, Cash, and WIC merchants have appropriate equipment. As such, the EBT contractor shall be responsible for understanding the specific equipment needs of merchants and shall carry out the following responsibilities: 

a) Equipment deployment shall be conducted by the EBT contractor in complete compliance with 7 CFR 274, including lanes to be equipped, functionality, and services.

b) POS devices shall be capable of transmitting and receiving all EBT POS transactions.  

c) Installation, equipment setup, training, supplies (including but not limited to vouchers, decals, and manuals) shall be provided by the EBT contractor and all costs associated with these services shall be borne by the EBT contractor.

d) Any faulty equipment provided upon initial installation shall be repaired or replaced by the EBT contractor within 48 hours of a service call.  

e) Ensure that neither the EBT contractor nor the State shall pay for merchants’ existing communications resources if they are used for EBT.

Merchants shall contact the Contractor for repairs, replacements, etc.

As of May 2014, Montana had a total of 766 retailers of which 48 retailers that  are exempt, 451 retailers that are not exempt and 16 retailers that are non-exempt voucher only and the balance already have their own TPP.  These numbers fluctuate as enrollment/disenrollment changes. 

Since the cost of equipping non-exempt EBT only retailers will no longer be subsidized those costs may not be included in contract pricing.  Costs for equipping exempt EBT retailers must be listed separately from CPCM.”
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-3
	The State expects authorized Cash merchants to arrange for POS access for cash transactions. Merchants shall have the option of providing cash withdrawal services and cash back services based upon their internal policies. As such, the EBT contractor shall:

a) Market POS cash-back services to all authorized Cash merchants. Transaction fees incurred in conjunction with providing POS cash-back services shall not be charged to the State. Any transaction fees for POS cash-back transactions shall be negotiated between the EBT contractor and the merchants, and shall be reflected in merchant agreements. EBT Cash transaction Fees cannot be greater than fees charged for non EBT cash transactions.

b) Provide an on-going marketing and recruitment program for enrolling merchants to provide cash-back access to participants.  Except for POS deployment provided for authorized Cash and SNAP merchants, the State shall neither acquire POS equipment nor be party to any agreements for POS services. 
	N/A
	Y
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-4
	The State expects authorized Cash merchants to arrange for POS access for cash transactions.  Merchant shall have the option of providing cash withdrawal services and cash back services based upon their internal policies. As such, the EBT contractor shall:

a) Provide an on-going marketing and recruitment program for enrolling merchants to provide cash-back access to participants.  Except for POS deployment provided for authorized Cash and SNAP merchants, the State shall neither acquire POS equipment nor be party to any agreements for POS services. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-5
	Promote and market POS terminal services to food and other retail merchants and encourage them to provide POS cash-back services. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-6
	Develop information and recruitment methods to encourage all Montana and border merchant (food merchant and cash benefit redemption merchants) to participate in EBT and/or acquire terminal services, including printed materials and brochures that promote acceptance of the EBT program and market cash-back participation. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-7
	Accept and process POS transactions for merchants accepting the EBT contractor-deployed POS terminal services, either directly or through subcontractor arrangement. Each merchant choosing to accept the marketed POS services or to use other POS services shall be making a business decision to do so.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-8
	Certify and assure that TPPs connected to the EBT system comply with FNS regulations and other State requirements. At a minimum, TPP agreements shall include the following requirements:

a) Terminal IDs – TPPs shall give each terminal a unique ID and include those terminal IDs as part of their transaction messages. The EBT contractor shall include those IDs in the ALERT data submitted to FNS.

b) Transactions – TPPs shall be able to support the entire transaction set included in the FNS regulations. The EBT contractor shall be able to process all of these transactions.  (Authorization, verification, financial presentment, file actions, reversal, administrative and network management messages)

c) Interoperability – TPPs shall be able to process transactions for cards issued by all states for all POS equipment they support.

d) Balance information – TPPs shall be able to display remaining balance on the printed receipt for all POS equipment they support.

e) Serving only state or FNS-authorized merchants – TPPs shall only route SNAP transactions for merchants authorized by FNS to redeem SNAP benefits.
	OR
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-9
	TPPs are financial institutions, authorization processors, and/or merchants driving their own terminals that are capable of relaying transactions to the EBT contractor. Merchant shall have the opportunity to use TPPs if they so choose. To this end, the EBT contractor shall identify TPPs used by merchants that might participate in the Montana SNAP, Cash, and WIC programs. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-10
	Publish interface specifications and certification standards for TPP participation and make them available to TPPs. The EBT contractor, through merchant agreements, may have access to the Montana SNAP, Cash, and WIC programs by TPPs and shall ensure that TPPs comply with the requirements of this RFP.
	OR
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-11
	Enter into agreements with all merchants participating in the Montana SNAP, Cash and WIC programs, including TPPs.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-12
	The EBT contractors transaction processing application shall capture and retain transaction type information and shall match the transaction to the appropriate participant account (SNAP, Cash or WIC). 

At the POS, participants shall indicate an EBT transaction type (Cash, Food or WIC). This functionality may be provided by function keys, menu selection, or a combination of both. The appropriate function key(s) or menu item(s) shall be selected by the authorized cardholder when asked to select the appropriate benefit account. The transaction type shall be transmitted in the transaction message.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-13
	Support POS transaction sets including:

a) Balance inquiry 

b) Cancellation

c) Transaction confirmation

d) Reversal following purchase confirmation
	OR
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-14
	The EBT contractor shall facilitate multiple tender purchases in a single transaction if the merchant’s software system can support it.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-15
	Support EBT card readers in local offices used by local staff and participants to support programs. 
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-16
	Ensure that all POS devices deployed to Montana EBT-only merchants will have the appropriate software loaded prior to shipping.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-17
	Where appropriate, the EBT contractor shall supply EBT-only merchants with proprietary merchant materials to support the use of the EBT-only POS software and transaction acquiring services for the Montana SNAP, Cash and WIC EBT Program.  The EBT contractor shall also provide POS overlays, manuals and quick reference guides for the selected device.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-18
	If a merchant withdraws, is disqualified, or involuntarily withdraws from the EBT program, the EBT contractor shall not process any transactions from the merchant. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-19
	Except as provided for manual and/or key-entered transactions, each original SNAP, Cash and WIC Transaction shall be initiated by swiping the EBT Card through the Magnetic Stripe Reader (or inserting the Card into the ATM reader) and by the cardholder keying in the PIN at the ATM or at the PIN Pad located at or in proximity to the POS terminal.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-20
	Ensure the confidentiality of a PIN during generation, issuance, storage, and verification. ATMs and POS terminals shall be configured in a manner such that only the cardholder may enter the PIN. PIN Pads on ATMs and POS terminals shall be designed and installed so that the cardholder is able to prevent others from observing the entry of the PIN value.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-21
	Ensure the confidentiality of a PIN during generation, issuance, storage, and verification.  POS terminals shall be configured in a manner such that only the cardholder may enter the PIN. PIN Pads on POS terminals shall be designed and installed so that the cardholder is able to prevent others from observing the entry of the PIN value.
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-22
	The first digit entered to the PIN pad shall be the high order digit (far left). The last digit to be entered shall be low order (far right). All ATM and POS terminals shall have an “enter key” function in order to indicate the completion of a variable length PIN. The clear key function is recommended to allow the cardholder to clear the PIN entry if an error has been made.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-23
	Conduct Level 1 and 2 Certifications for merchant systems as required by FNS.  For WIC, the EBT contractor shall comply with FNS Operating Rules WIC EBT Section 13.
	OR
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.6.1-24
	EBT contractor’s system shall possess a bi-directional interface with the State’s ESB. The ESB will relay files and messages to and from the EBT contractor’s system and the State’s information systems: M-SPIRIT, SFSL, CCI, and the SNAP and Cash programs’ information system (CHIMES EA).  

Interface Control Documents are available within the Bidder’s Library.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.6.2
Performance Expectations.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.6.2-1
	Provide POS terminal services and deploy terminals in compliance with 7 CFR 274.  
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.2-2
	Within two weeks of notification that the signed contract was received, the EBT contractor shall ensure that newly authorized merchants qualifying for EBT-only equipment is installed. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.6.2-3
	Any faulty equipment provided upon initial installation shall be repaired or replaced within 24 hours of a service call.  The EBT contractor may be able to extend the replacement period to 48 hours of the service call if DPHHS receives a waiver from FNS or a determination to do so is made based on state policy.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.7
Merchant Management.  Part of the services provided by the EBT contractor includes the management of the relationship with the merchant community. As part of this service, the EBT contractor will collect merchant data and shall work with DPHHS to define the frequency of data processing activities associated with the management of merchant information. 

3.2.11.7.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.7.1-1
	At a minimum, provide the following merchant management responsibilities:

a) Manage the relationship with the merchant community and shall maintain the associated data in the program management information systems.

b) Review incoming SNAP and Cash merchant data received through the Federal Retailer Electronic Data Exchange (REDE) interface, with the EBT4 file provided by FNS to determine the merchant’s level of participation so the appropriate retail contract can be issued. 

c) Contact the SNAP and Cash merchant by phone to discuss the EBT program and their desire to participate. 

d) Update the information in the retail management screens in the EBT contractor’s EBT system contract.

e) Retain the hard copy contract returned by the merchant.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.7.1-2
	The EBT contractor shall electronically capture and maintain merchant data for SNAP, Cash and WIC programs. Merchant data shall include but not be limited to the following:

a) Established merchant categories. The EBT contractor shall work with the State to define these merchant categories.

b) Account data to support settlement processing.

c) Demographic data (e.g. contact information, location information)

The EBT contractor shall work with the State to define the frequency of information data processing. The EBT contractor will receive the merchant data from a WIC data source as well as from a SNAP and Cash data source.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.8
Deployment of Farmer Equipment.  Montana WIC operates a Montana WIC Farm Direct program that authorizes farmers to accept WIC Fruit and Vegetable Benefits with a single agreement.  Authorized farmers may sell their Montana WIC Farm Direct eligible produce at a farmers' market, at a roadside stand, from the back of a truck, or at their farm.

A majority of farmers that currently participate in this program operate strictly in a paper benefit and cash environment.  Many of these farmers have never accepted credit or debit transactions.  There are currently 140 farmers participating in WIC Farm Direct. Montana is looking to the EBT contractor to provide creative electronic options for authorized farmers to submit POS transactions. Technology solutions used should be tried and tested.  The farmers participating in the WIC program do not have the same POS restrictions as SNAP and Cash merchants. 

SNAP uses farmers’ markets as type of merchant. For SNAP, both markets and farmers may be authorized as retailers by FNS.  In addition, some markets are authorized in SNAP under a single umbrella, although the market may include multiple sites.  The EBT contractor shall comply with the Federal regulations related to the SNAP farmers’ market.
3.2.11.8.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.8.1-1
	Accept and process WIC POS transactions from authorized farmers’ handheld devices.  
	Y
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.8.1-2
	Provide response transactions in format accepted by standard handheld device POS applications.
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.8.1-3
	Assist authorized farmers with troubleshooting POS handheld device hardware and software application issues. 
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.8.1-4
	Assist WIC program in defining minimum POS handheld device hardware and software requirements in order for authorized farmers to submit POS transactions.
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.8.1-5
	Accept and process POS transactions from authorized farmers’ handheld devices.  The farmer shall be FNS-authorized to support these types of transactions.  
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.8.1-6
	Provide response transactions in format accepted by standard handheld device POS applications. The farmer shall be FNS-authorized to support these types of transactions.
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.8.1-7
	Assist FNS-authorized farmers with troubleshooting POS handheld device hardware and software application issues.  
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.8.1-8
	Assist SNAP program in defining minimum POS handheld device hardware and software requirements in order for FNS-authorized farmers to submit POS transactions.
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.8.1-9
	Facilitate the operation of the farmer’s terminal. Some level of integration will be required with the farmer’s equipment. The EBT contractor shall be required to interface with the State selected farmer’s POS.
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	


3.2.11.9
EBT Card Specifications, Production, and Distribution to Recipients.  Currently, SNAP and Cash programs utilize a magnetic stripe card. The EBT contractor will be producing and supplying magnetic stripe cards for EBT issuance to participants. The table below specifies card production and distribution expectations for each program.  The EBT cards shall have the necessary design to comply with specifications and standards relating to cards used for financial transactions. The EBT contractor shall be responsible for the processes and functions to produce, issue, replace and distribute/deliver cards to participants and maintain a card-management database. As part of the establishment of EBT card services, the EBT contractor shall provide necessary data, processes, tools, equipment and supplies to meet card and PIN issuance requirements. 

A diagram of the current Montana SNAP and Cash EBT card is presented on a brochure in the Bidder’s Library.  

3.2.11.9.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.9.1-1
	Design, develop, implement and maintain EBT swipe cards consistent with industry card standards and in support of State policy. The EBT contractor will maintain a supply of Montana Access card stock in a secure controlled area as approved by the DPHHS auditors.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.9.1-2
	The EBT card shall comply with the specifications of the International Standards Organization (ISO) and American National Standards Institute (ANSI) (ISO 7813).
The EBT card shall also comply with the FNS WIC EBT Technical Implementation Guide (Version 2012, Dated: September 30, 2012) and FNS Operating Rules, WIC, EBT.
	OR
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.9.1-3
	Produce and distribute new and ongoing replacement EBT swipe cards to participants and other designated stakeholders in accordance with state policy. The EBT contractor shall distribute new cards to all current participants at time of implementation of the new EBT system no less than 14 calendar days prior to the month of implementation. The EBT contractor shall clearly communicate to merchants and participants the activation date of the new EBT cards.   State policy currently allows changes to be made to the primary cardholder information.  As such, the EBT contractor shall issue new cards when the primary cardholder changes. The benefits shall remain on the same account, but a new card associated with the new primary cardholder account information shall be maintained.

Card production shall meet or exceed the current production and distribution specifications:

a) Secure, efficient, dual-accountability, DPHHS Auditor-approved process for printing, stuffing and mailing EBT cards, on a business-day basis.  

b) Utilize debit card stock approved by the State. 

c) Work with the State to design the graphics and information on the new EBT card.

d) Card distribution shall include an insert containing current production text, to accompany each card, and a State-supplied EBT brochure.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.9.1-4
	Support State EBT card distribution activities to enable distribution of cards at State’s discretion from local OPA offices. Support activities include but are not limited to:

a) Supply cards and equipment to local OPA offices
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.9.1-5
	Produce and distribute backup EBT swipe cards for large-scale emergency card production.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.9.1-6
	At a minimum, the front of the card shall include:

a) Primary Account Number (PAN) shall be displayed fully on the face of the EBT card  

b) Cardholder name shall be thermally printed on the obverse of the card, with the exception of cards issued over the counter. 

c) State specified logo.  
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.9.1-7
	At a minimum, the back of the card shall include:

a) A high coercivity magnetic stripe

b) The statement “Unauthorized use of this card is a violation of law”

c) The statement “Do not write your PIN on this card”

d) Toll free number for Merchant/Manual Authorizations (xxx)

e) Toll free number for participants (xxx)

f) Toll free number for TTY (xxx)

g) Web page URL for accessing account information

h) The statement “If found please destroy” 

i) The following statement “The USDA, HHS, and DPHHS are equal opportunity providers and employers”

j) A panel of tamper proof material that allows a cardholder to sign his or her name for use in cardholder identification. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.9.1-8
	The EBT card shall be capable of initiating an electronic fund transfer.
	OR
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.9.1-9
	Notify cardholders that the signature panel shall be signed upon receipt of the card. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.9.1-10
	Contain a 16-digit numeric field that provides the means of identifying the card issuer and the participant to whom the card was issued. Card prefixes shall be ISO assigned and shall be used only for the Montana EBT program. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.9.1-11
	BIN / IIN (Institution Identification Number): a number which begins immediately after the start sentinel and consists of six contiguous digits. It is a unique identifier for the card issuer of the EBT program. This number shall be in compliance with ISO 7813 and include the following:

a) Discretionary Field: a three-digit number that may be used to identify the GDI (or the state from which the card originates).

b) Customer Identification: a nine digit number which uniquely identifies the customer.

c) Check Digit: the last digit in the PAN, which is used to validate the PAN.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.9.1-12
	Card shall be non-expiring. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.9.1-13
	Encode the Service Code Field on all cards with the designated numeric value as specified by DPHHS.
	N/A
	
	
	
	

	3.2.11.9.1-14
	Maintain security features on card.  Cards are designed to deter counterfeiting and lifting of data from the magnetic stripe.  Security features include:

a) Nonwhite reverse: The card shall have a colored reverse

b) Contain a tamper evident signature panel. 

c) Have two signature panels: one for the printed name (on front of card) and one for the signature (on back of card).

d) Liability Language and Instructions: "Do Not Write PIN on Card" shall be printed on the card. 

e) A toll free number for reporting lost or stolen cards shall be printed on the card.

f) Magnetic stripe: The State requires high-coercivity magnetic stripe.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.9.1-15
	Provide the functionality to add access to new benefit programs and/or accounts to an existing card. The EBT contractor and the State will negotiate the addition of new programs at a later date should programs be added.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.9.1-16
	Receive and process cards that are returned undeliverable.  The maximum timeframe in which the EBT contractor shall hold an undeliverable card shall be in accordance with State policy.  The EBT contractor shall redistribute the card to the participant when the new address information is received. The new address information may come directly from the participant or the State. The EBT contractor shall notify the State through a daily report identifying returned cards by participant name, card number, case number and reason for return.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.9.1-17
	Two card issuance methods shall be used:

Method 1 - Mail Cards:

If EBT contractor card issuance by mail is indicated in the Demographic File, the EBT contractor must assign a PAN and issue a fully encoded and personalized Montana EBT Card to the client. The card must meet the requirements specified in this section. The EBT contractor must propose a secure card activation procedure for cards that are mailed to the client. The EBT contractor will be liable for loss or misuse of the card until the client activates it. A card issuance request received by the EBT contractor by 11:59 p.m. Mountain Time will be delivered to the Post Office no later than 3:00 p.m. on the next business day for mailing to the client.

Method 2 - Over the Counter Card Issuance:

Offerors must propose a method for State and local agencies to provide clients with the same day over the counter (OTC) card and PIN issuance. OTC card issuance will be executed by a card issuance/PIN selection transaction from an administrative terminal in a local State agency office. The PAN for OTC card issuance must include a number identifying OTC cards as OTC. Offerors must propose a means for requesting, delivering (including delivery timeframes from request date), tracking, and accounting for card stock inventoried at State agency offices. The EBT contractor will be liable for loss or misuse of cards or card stock until the card stock is received at the designated State location(s). If it is necessary to place equipment in the State agency offices to meet the requirements for this method, the offeror must clearly specify the equipment requirements and price the equipment as specified in the instructions on pricing responses.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.9.1-18
	Card Replacement

The EBT contractor must provide the functionality to replace lost, stolen, or non-functioning EBT cards. A replacement card must carry a new PAN. A PAN will not be reissued. Client training will instruct a client to report a lost, stolen, or non-functioning Montana EBT Card to the toll free customer service number help line for deactivation. The CSR must use an agreed upon or reliable voice password(s), including the current mailing address identified on the administrative terminal, and either the card holder’s social security number, date of birth, or other data available from the cardholder’s master file for client identification if the PAN is not available. Methods for issuing replacement cards will be the same as the issuance options. In replacing cards, the EBT contractor must also meet the timeframes for card and PIN issuance specified in the card issuance specifications. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.9.2
Performance Expectations. 

	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.9.2-1
	Issue a replacement card within three calendar days of request.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.9.2-2
	Issue a new card timely so that the participant will receive the card within seven calendar days of request.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.9.2-3
	Notify the State when a card is returned. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.9.3
State Responsibilities. 

	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.9.3-1
	Report any changes of address affecting the status of a returned card. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.10
PIN Establishment and Maintenance.  For an EBT card to be activated, participants must perform EBT contractor established card activation procedures. These activation procedures will include the ability for participants to specify their own PINs. Once a card has been activated, subsequent transactions will be performed in a secure manner, including encryption capabilities. For security purposes, SNAP, Cash, and WIC EBT cards need to be deactivated immediately when a card is reported lost, stolen, or non-functioning.  A PIN is required along with swiping the Montana Access debit card in order for participants to authorize and complete a transaction at the time of purchase. Participants may change their PIN at any time and may receive assistance and training if requested; or if they encounter problems. The table below specifies PIN establishment expectations for each program.
3.2.11.10.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.10.1-1
	Specify card (PAN) activation procedures. The EBT contractor shall require a positive, secure action (such as a call or PIN selection transaction) that conforms to program management information systems’ requirements.  
	OR
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.10.1-2
	Deactivate the SNAP, Cash and WIC EBT Card (PAN) immediately when a card is reported lost, stolen, or non-functioning. The EBT contractor will be liable for any transaction by a card after it has been reported lost, stolen, or non-functioning and/or has been de-activated. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.10.1-3
	Maintain and report records of participant reports of lost, stolen, or nonfunctioning EBT cards. Such tracking shall include recording of card number, the date and time of the report, condition (reason for reporting) of the card, and other information to be negotiated between the State and the EBT contractor. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.10.1-4
	Track transaction attempts by a deactivated card. Such tracking shall include recording of card number, the date, time, and location of transaction attempts, and other information to be negotiated between the State and the EBT contractor.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.10.1-5
	Support customer selected PINs. The cardholder PINs shall conform to the requirements of the program management information systems.
	OR
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.10.1-6
	Maintain responsibility for PIN verification.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.10.1-7
	Federal regulations require minimum encryption standards using the Data Encryption Standard (DES) from the point of entry of a PIN. The National Institute for Standards and Technology (NIST) announced that Triple DES will replace DES as the federal data encryption standard. Current industry encryption practices have already updated to 3DES or derived unique key per transaction (DUKPT) for encryption of PINs entered at the point-of-sale. Montana desires a solution that is consistent with the revised NIST standards and industry practices to the extent possible.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.10.1-8
	ATMs and POS terminals shall be capable of accepting and securely encrypting PINs. The value of the entered PIN shall not be displayed in plain text or be disclosed by audible feedback. The clear text value of the entered PIN shall never be printed, electronically recorded or written to software. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.10.1-9
	Require all merchants to instruct its employees that they shall never request participants to disclose their PINs.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.10.1-10
	PIN storage procedures shall comply with ANSI Standard X9.81983. It is recommended that PINs never be stored. If stored, PINs shall be encrypted under a unique PIN encryption key not used for any other purpose. Access to stored, encrypted PINs shall be strictly controlled.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.10.1-11
	Participants will obtain a minimum four digit PIN through PIN assignment by the EBT contractor or by selection at a PIN selection terminal. The PIN offset shall reside at the EBT host; not on the EBT card.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.10.1-12
	For cards issued through the mail to the designated participant, the PIN for the associated card shall be selected by way of the participant IVR or a participant-service web portal. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.10.1-13
	Reinstate a suspended participant card as directed by the State.
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.10.1-14
	Clients shall select or change their own PIN using the Client IVR, program management information system or a client-service portal.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.10.1-15
	When a card is suspended or reinstated, the card status shall be communicated to the program’s management information system in real time.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.10.2
Performance Expectations.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.10.2-1
	After four successive invalid PIN attempts in a 24 hour period, the EBT contractor shall suspend the card for 24 hours. The EBT contractor shall be able to override 24-hour suspension if the participant calls in to reset PIN. The EBT contractor shall track invalid PIN attempts and transaction attempts by a suspended card. Such tracking shall include recording of card number, the date, time, and location of transaction attempts, and other information to be negotiated between the State and the EBT contractor.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.11
Customer Service Support (Merchant and Cardholder).  To support the EBT system, the EBT contractor will provide customer related activities and functions to both EBT system merchants and participants. The table below specifies customer service expectations for each program.
Merchants expect help desk support to address questions (for example about payment and APL). A live customer service will be provided after completing an IVR system. An escalation path will be provided for all decision-making processes. Additionally, a portal will be provided to merchants where they may inquire upon account information, transactions, timeframe items, and remaining balances. 

Participants require customer support services for setting/resetting PINs as well as issues related to the EBT card. Like merchants, an escalation path will be provided for all decision-making processes. Participants will also have access to a participant web portal. 

Support of POS terminals will be the responsibility of the EBT contractor.  

3.2.11.11.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.11.1-1
	Provide a single call center telephone contact number (toll free) that queue’s the calls and distributes them to the agents, based on the appropriate agent for the program.  After hours calls are routed to the appropriate help desk support center. The EBT contractor’s call center shall be located within the United States. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-2
	During regular business hours, provide participant/cardholder customer service support.  Support shall consist of the following minimum functions:

a) Answer merchant and participant calls.

b) Different programs have different data elements required to confirm the identity of the participant/cardholder in the IVR. The EBT contractor shall confirm the identity of callers (participants, protective payees and authorized representatives).  

· For SNAP and Cash participants, the identity of the callers shall be confirmed using the card number, cardholder name and cardholder SSN that was captured and stored in the State eligibility system then passed to the EBT contractor.  For protective payees and authorized representatives, the caller shall be asked to provide the card number, cardholder name, and cardholder SSN that was captured and stored in the State eligibility system then passed to the EBT contractor. 

c) Provide participants information on the benefits available to them and their balances.

d) Provide information on the last 90 calendar days of transactions, or longer if requested against a card or account.

e) Provide information on Cash Direct Deposit pass-thru information that is contained in the EBT system including TANF Cash, TANF Child Support and Refugee Cash.  This information cannot be updated. 

f) Card activation takes place via the IVR. 

g) Deactivate lost, stolen and/or damaged cards.

h) Provide a control number to a participant to facilitate the changing of a PIN. 

i) Record problems that are encountered with the EBT contractor system in the contractor’s tracking system.

j) Support the resolution of the reported software problems.

k) Allow setup of an optional customer service password to expedite identification for future customer service requests. 
l) Fulfill the request for a replacement card.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-3
	During regular business hours, provide participant/cardholder customer service support.  Support shall consist of the following minimum functions:

a) Answer merchant (including farmers) and participant calls.

b) Different programs have different data elements required to confirm the identity of the participant/cardholder in the IVR. The EBT contractor shall confirm the identity of callers (participants and authorized representatives).  

· For WIC participants, the identity of the callers shall be confirmed using the card number, cardholder name and cardholder date of birth that was captured and stored in the State eligibility system then passed to the EBT contractor. For authorized representatives, the caller shall be asked to provide the card number, cardholder name, and cardholder date of birth that was captured and stored in the State eligibility system then passed to the EBT contractor. 

c) Provide participants information on the benefits available to them and their balances.

d) Provide information on the last 90 calendar days of transactions, or longer if requested against a card or account.

e) Card activation takes place via the IVR. 

f) Deactivate lost, stolen and or damaged cards.

g) Provide a control number to a participant to facilitate the changing of a PIN. 

h) Record problems that are encountered with the EBT contractor system in the contractor’s tracking system.

i) Support the resolution of the reported software problems.

j) Allow setup of an optional customer service password to expedite identification for future customer service requests. 
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-4
	During off hours (non-business hours), cardholder customer service support shall consist of the following minimum functions:

a) Confirm the identity of callers (participants, protective payees and authorized representatives).

b) Activate a card for protective payees and authorized representatives

c) Deactivate a card.

d) Provide a control number to a participant to facilitate the changing of a PIN.
e) Fulfill the request for a replacement card (for SNAP and Cash only)
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-5
	With regard to directing callers to the appropriate responsible party who can address their inquiry, cardholder customer service support shall consist of the following minimum functions:

a) Analyze reported issues to determine root cause and redirect to appropriate responsible party.

b) Ensure caller has the correct phone number to the appropriate local WIC clinic that can address their inquiry.

c) Escalate mission critical operational issues to the appropriate responsible party. 

d) Record requests for assistance and questions participants may have and ensure they have the correct phone number to the appropriate WIC clinic.
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-6
	At a minimum, provide the following support services for authorized merchants (including farmers):

a) Assist the merchant in obtaining an authorization number for SNAP manual vouchers.

b) Process requests for system documentation that is available for merchants.  

c) Record requests for assistance and questions merchants may have and refer those calls or requests to the appropriate responsible party for resolution.

d) Provide an approval number for manual voucher voice authorizations; assist with voiding voice authorization transactions; and provide information on clearing vouchers for payment. 

e) Clear completed manual retail vouchers for Montana EBT-only merchants when they mail the vouchers to the EBT contractor for processing.  A merchant has completed these vouchers with a voucher authorization approval number, which was generated by the EBT contractor’s system via the State’s IVR. 

f) Record problems that are encountered with the EBT contractor’s software in the contractor’s tracking system.

g) Support the resolution of the reported software problems.
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-7
	At a minimum, provide the following support services for authorized merchants (including farmers):

a) Process requests for system documentation that is available for merchants.  

b) Record requests for assistance and questions merchants may have and refer those calls or requests to the appropriate responsible party for resolution.

c) Record problems that are encountered with the EBT contractor’s software in the contractor’s tracking system.

d) Support the resolution of the reported software problems.
	Y
	Y
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-8
	Work with merchants to approve and clear manual SNAP vouchers so that the merchant can be paid. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-9
	Allow FNS authorized merchants to mail their manual vouchers to the Help Desk for assistance with clearing the voucher for payment. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-10
	Clear vouchers for FNS authorized merchants who are unable to clear vouchers on their POS terminal.
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-11
	Enable authorized State staff to access participant balance and transaction history data. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-12
	Manage the participation/acquiring of merchants in Montana. At the writing of this RFP, the State has an estimated 1,094 merchants (excluding ATMs). The State is extremely interested in the EBT contractor acquiring as many charge free ATM providers as possible. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-13
	For Montana authorized merchants, customer service support shall consist of the following:

a) 24x7 help desk via toll free number, to provide equipment diagnostics.

b) Accepting calls from EBT-only merchants who have been defined in the EBT contractor’s system.

c) Providing POS device software troubleshooting which includes identifying the root cause of the transaction processing issue.  They shall diagnose equipment problems and attempt to restore equipment operation.  

d) Tracking and recording of all reported incidents, from the incoming call through to resolution.  The calls are logged by the merchant customer support center in its call tracking system.  Call data is stored for 60 calendar days.

e) Downloading of any necessary applications to restore POS device operation. This solution includes a toll free phone number and a download server.

f) Perform POS transaction settlement and research on behalf of the merchant, according to FNS and State regulations and network rules. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-14
	For Montana authorized merchants, customer service support shall consist of the following:

a) 24x7 help desk via toll free number, to provide equipment diagnostics.

b) Accepting calls from EBT-only merchants who have been defined in the EBT contractor’s system.

c) Tracking and recording of all reported incidents, from the incoming call through to resolution.  The calls are logged by the merchant customer support center in its call tracking system.  Call data is stored for 60 calendar days.

d) Downloading of any necessary applications to restore POS device operation. This solution includes a toll free phone number and a download server.

e) Perform POS transaction settlement and research on behalf of the merchant, according to FNS and State regulations and network rules. 
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-15
	For EBT-only POS device merchants, customer service support shall consist of the following:

a) Escalation of telecommunication or business issues based on the EBT contractor and State of Montana escalation procedures.

b) Escalation of merchant or cardholder disputes to the EBT contractor for resolution.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-16
	Manage a system that meets or accomplishes, at a minimum, the following functional requirements:

a) The merchant databases shall be comprised of records of merchants authorized to participate in the SNAP, Cash and WIC programs.

b) Supports identification of merchants by program.

c) Ensures that accurate EBT transaction detail data pertaining to each merchant and program are captured.

d) Provide physical and access security to the merchant management data and ensure the privacy of confidential data.

e) Acquire electronically merchant authorization numbers from appropriate management information systems and maintain a mechanism for acquiring data updates.

f) For all transactions that originate from authorized locations, the EBT contractor shall validate the transactions according to the rules of the applicable program. For SNAP transactions, the FNS merchant authorization number shall be included in the transaction message. 

g) The EBT contractor shall accept and process all transactions for a merchant that occurred prior to the merchant’s termination date.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-17
	Manage a system that meets or accomplishes, at a minimum, the following functional requirements:

a) Support the capture of authorized date and termination date for WIC merchants. 
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-18
	The live customer service help desk representatives shall: 

a) Have the ability to provide information in Spanish and English. 

b) Ensure through technical design, resource allocation, and staffing that each merchant call is answered and attended in a manner consistent with industry standards for participant/cardholder help lines. 

c) Provide settlement information over the customer service help line to merchants.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-19
	Participant customer service shall address PIN requirements, how to change the PIN and any rules regarding how often a PIN can be changed. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-20
	Participant customer service shall address how to use the IVR and/or client-service portal to select and/or change a PIN.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.11.1-21
	Participant customer service shall address suspension of the card after four attempts at entering the PIN, and how to get the card reinstated.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.11.2
Performance Expectations.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.11.2-1
	Provide and maintain a participant cardholder customer service center housed and staffed within the United States of America, to provide current account and benefit access information via a toll-free, "1-800" number, 24x7 unless the State chooses to reduce these hours. If the hours for customer service are reduced, customer service shall be available 24 hours a day only for LOST/STOLEN cards transactions. The participant cardholder customer services Help Desk shall be accessible to all participant cardholders without charge or fee to them. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.11.2-2
	Participant cardholder customer service support shall be provided as follows:

Regular Business Hours - support shall be provided Monday through Friday 6:00 am to 8:00 pm Mountain Time except State holidays.  

Off-Hours - support shall be provided weekdays from 8:00 pm to 6:00 am Mountain Time Monday through Friday.  Weekend support shall be from 6 am Mountain Time Saturday through 6 am Mountain Time Monday. The EBT contractor shall work with DPHHS to determine whether reduced support services are provided by the EBT contractor at their local site, or through a remote help desk located in the United States.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.11.2-3
	Customer service support for authorized merchants shall be provided as outlined in this RFP and available 24x7 via a toll-free phone number for these merchants. In addition, the merchant customer support services shall provide the following: 

a) All calls are routed by an IVR system.  The IVR system passes those calls requiring additional assistance to a live customer support representative at the EBT contractor’s merchant customer service center.  

b) The IVR and merchant customer service center shall provide support in English and Spanish.  

c) Shall only accept calls from authorized merchants that have been defined in the EBT contractor’s system.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.11.2-4
	Provide and maintain a merchant customer service help desk to provide settlement information, manual FNS transaction authorization, general problem resolution and current account and benefit access information via a toll-free 800 number, 24x7. The merchant customer services help desk shall be accessible to all authorized merchants participating in the Montana EBT programs without charge or fee to the merchants.

The IVR and customer service help desk shall be used exclusively for EBT support.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.11.3
State Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.11.3-1
	The State shall work with the EBT contractor to establish protocols for escalation of policy and program questions to State resources. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.12
Customer Service Support (DPHHS).  The EBT contractor will extend customer service support to State staff to ensure DPHHS can support Montana’s SNAP, Cash, and/or WIC program participants and EBT services effectively. 

3.2.11.12.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.12.1-1
	Provide support for all State user problems.  Problems relating to hardware, network, or program policy are directed to the appropriate referral source. The EBT CSR shall be familiar with SNAP, Cash, and WIC programs and be able to speak clearly and fluently in English. The EBT contractor help desk shall accept requests for assistance via any of the following media: 

a) Electronic mail

b) Fax notices

c) Direct telephone line to human CSR(s)
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.12.1-2
	Non-emergency Technical Support

Provide support for all State user technical problems including hardware, software, and network. Technical contact shall be experienced with EBT system operations, be able to speak clearly and fluently in English, and be available via direct phone line or message (email or phone) 7:30 a.m. – 5:30 p.m. Mountain Time on all State of Montana workdays and on-call outside of standard hours. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.12.1-3
	Emergency Technical Support

Provide support for all State user technical problems including hardware, software and network. Technical contact shall be experienced with EBT system operations, be able to speak clearly and fluently in English, and be available via direct phone line or message (email or phone) 24x7 on-call. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.12.2
Performance Expectations.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.12.2-1
	Maintain an EBT contractor help desk that offers full operational capability to State staff from 7:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. Mountain Time.  The EBT contractor shall:

a) Receive, record and track all requests for assistance and prepare incident reports when required.  

b) Provide appropriate input to the EBT contractor status-reporting activities.

c) Respond to non-emergency requests for technical support within two hours of receipt of message.

d) Respond to emergency requests for technical support within 10 minutes of receipt of message. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.13
IVR Services.  The EBT contractor will provide an IVR system to provide both participants and merchants guidance through the customer service process. The IVR will provide services such as current account balances to participants/cardholders and distribute the calls to the correct helpdesk. An escalation path will be provided for all decision-making processes. The table below specifies IVR service expectations for each program.
3.2.11.13.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.13.1-1
	Establish an IVR system to provide participant information regarding current account balances and benefit access information to participant/cardholder.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.13.1-2
	Participants shall be able to perform the following actions through the automated customer service IVR:

a) Request EBT account status by program (Cash, Food or WIC)

· Current Balance 

· Last benefit deposit

b) PIN selection

c) PIN reset, if current PIN is known

d) Report lost/stolen card

e) Card activation
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.13.1-3
	Current account balances and a rolling one-year transaction history for each account (Cash and SNAP) shall be maintained for on-line access through the web portal or the customer service IVR. At a minimum, the IVR system transaction histories shall include:

a) Participant name 

b) Participant unique ID 

c) PAN

d) EBT account number

e) Benefit program identifier

f) Transaction amount

g) Transaction date

h) Transaction time

i) Merchant name
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.13.1-4
	Information regarding account balances shall be available to the client 24 hours per day through the Customer Service IVR system toll free number, POS terminals with balance inquiry capability and web portal. Transaction history regarding Cash, SNAP, WIC and cash accounts shall be available to the client 24 hours per day through the customer service IVR toll free number, POS terminals, or web portal.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.13.1-5
	Initial calls to the merchant and participant cardholder customer service help desk shall be answered by an IVR. The State reserves the right to review and approve the transaction flow and content of all IVR messages, prompts, and customer service scripts. The EBT contractor cannot change IVR messages or menu functions without prior approval by the State.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.13.1-6
	The IVR shall have the ability to handle calls through voice recognition or by numerical prompts through the telephone. The IVR shall prompt the caller to indicate whether they are using a touch-tone telephone. If no response is recognized, the call shall automatically be transferred to a CSR. At a minimum, the IVR shall prompt and provide responses in English and Spanish. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.13.1-7
	The EBT contractor’s customer service center shall have ability to voice record participant and merchant calls. The voice recordings shall be retained by the EBT contractor for a mutually agreed upon period between the State and contractor. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.13.2
Performance Expectations.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.13.2-1
	Performance standards regarding the number of rings prior to the call being answered and the average time callers are on hold shall be consistent with call center industry standards for customer service.  The EBT contractor is obligated to meet the following minimum standards:

a) IVR/CSR shall be available 99.9 percent of the time during the hours specified in this RFP, excluding scheduled outages.

b) An average of 85 percent of calls (IVR and CSR) shall be picked up within 25 seconds.

c) 10 percent of calls to be picked up in 60 seconds.

d) A minimum of 95 percent of calls shall not receive a busy signal measured over a three-month period or a period defined by the State.

e) A call automatically placed on hold prior to the caller receiving a prompt for caller response does not meet the definition of “answered” for the purposes of this contract.

f) Provide a response for average wait time for calls on hold.

g) Define measures to be taken to accommodate escalated call volumes.

h) Lost and stolen cards request shall be given top priority in the call wait queue.

i) 97 percent of all calls for CSR shall be answered within two minutes measured over a three month period; the remaining three percent to be answered in three minutes.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.13.3
State Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.13.3-1
	The State reserves the right to review and approve the transaction flow and content of all IVR messages, prompts, and customer service scripts.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.14
Web Portal.  The EBT contractor shall implement a web portal that provides supportive resources to State users, local WIC offices, participant cardholders and merchants. These supportive resources will provide numerous functions, including such activities as viewing account balances, viewing transaction history, and performing EBT maintenance. Reports on the use of the web portal will be made available to the State. Access to the web portal will follow the user security profiles used to manage access to the EBT web portal system. The table below specifies web portal service expectations for each program.
3.2.11.14.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.14.1-1
	Provide for a variety of user security profiles to enable the State to manage State user access to the EBT system. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.14.1-2
	Provide reports on users, including name, status, and security profile, and shall be available on-line. In addition, the EBT system must provide information on user activity to assist the State in the detection and investigation of internal fraud. This data must be available daily and include, at a minimum:

a) User identification information (e.g., name, security identification number or code, supervisor, and office location).

b) The number of failed log-on attempts for a given user identification number or code.

c) The number and type of functions (e.g., authorization increases, cards issued/replaced and expedited or emergency benefit issuance) processed during a State user session (e.g., business day).
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.14.1-3
	In order to support the nutrition assessment conducted by WIC local offices, local staff shall be able to perform the following functions via the web portal: 

a) View current account balance. 

b) View, sort, select and export transaction data including adjustments, reversals, and cancellations. The portal shall allow for additional filtering on transaction data by food item. The data shall be exportable in a format that could be used in standard spreadsheet software. 
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.14.1-4
	The participant cardholder shall be able to perform the following functions via the web portal:

a) View and print the participant’s account balance listing each item in the prescription, the remaining balance for each item, and the last day to use. This shall be displayed in a printable format. 

b) View client’s transaction history )) or the current benefit set listing date and time and items purchased in the transaction. 

c) Perform EBT account maintenance: PIN setup, reset PIN, and report lost/stolen cards.
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.14.1-5
	The participant cardholder shall be able to perform the following functions via the web portal:

a) View and print their account balance. This shall be displayed in a printable format.

b) View and print their transactions history (at a minimum, last 10 transactions). This shall be displayed in a printable format.

c) Perform EBT account maintenance: PIN setup, reset PIN, and report lost/stolen cards.
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.14.1-6
	The EBT contractor’s web portal shall support the following functions related to account setup and maintenance:

a) The EBT contractor shall manage initial portal account access by assigning user names and temporary passwords. A user’s initial access of the portal shall require the user to replace the temporary password. 

b) Portal shall allow all users (State program, local office, participant cardholder, and merchant) to maintain portal access accounts that reflect the user’s need (role-based security) to specific data. Merchants’ account management and data access should support corporate access as well as store-specific access. 

c) Portal shall support forgotten password functionality allowing user to receive a new temporary password and require the user to reset password during subsequent visit to portal. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.14.1-7
	The merchant shall be able to perform the following functions via the web portal:

a) View, sort, select and export transaction data including adjustments, reversals, and cancellations. The data shall be exportable in a format that could be used in standard spreadsheet software.

b) View, sort, select and export settlement data. The data shall be exportable in a format that could be used in standard spreadsheet software.

The merchant shall be able to enter date/time range, select transaction type(s), and select store(s) to filter the transaction and settlement data. 

Access to merchant transaction data should only be done on private portion of portal protected by user name and password security. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.14.1-8
	State program staff shall be able to perform the following functions via the web portal: 

a) View current account balance for a specific participant.

b) View, sort, select and export a specific participant’s transaction data including adjustments, reversals, and cancellations. The portal shall allow for additional filtering on participant’s transaction data by food item. The data shall be exportable in a format that could be used in standard spreadsheet software.

c) View and print the participant’s account balance listing each item in the prescription, the remaining balance for each item, and the last day to use. This shall be displayed in a printable format. 

d) View participant’s transaction history (at a minimum, last 10 transactions) for the current benefit set listing date and time and items purchased in the transaction. The State program shall be able to enter date/time range, select transaction type(s), and select store(s) to filter the transaction and settlement data.

e) View, sort, select and export merchant transaction data including adjustments, reversals, and cancellations. The data shall be exportable in a format that could be used in standard spreadsheet software. The State program shall be able to enter date/time range, select transaction type(s), and select store(s) to filter the transaction and settlement data.

f) View, sort, select and export merchant settlement data. The data shall be exportable in a format that could be used in standard spreadsheet software.
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.14.1-9
	Access to client account and transaction data as well as merchant data should only be done on private portions of the web portal, and protected by user name and password security.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.15
Hot Site Services.  The EBT contractor will provide an off-site back up computer system and support material in a secure facility. These backups shall be performed daily and be in an encrypted form. The policies and procedures relating to these hot sites and backup locations will follow industry best standards. The table below specifies hot site service expectations for each program.
3.2.11.15.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.15.1-1
	Provide physical floor space and power to host and run off-site backup of the EBT contractor’s EBT backup computer system and its associated peripheral equipment (tape drives, etc.) in a secure facility. The EBT contractor’s facilities shall include raised flooring, air conditioning, fire protection, electrical outlets, and an alternate power source.
	OR
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.15.1-2
	Provide technical resource assistance with hardware installation and configuration, network line orders, network testing and software testing for ongoing changes or upgrades to the backup system so it is kept in sync with the primary site.  
	OR
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.15.1-3
	Provide installation and start up technical resource support, as necessary or by request by DPHHS to confirm the availability of services that run on the backup system to ensure services will run without interruption in the event of failover or converted operations to the EBT contractor’s facility.  DPHHS staff shall typically communicate with the EBT contractor hot site staff by telephone or microcomputer to manage the process via long distance.
	OR
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.15.1-4
	Maintain two sites (primary operations site and hot site) capable of running the EBT system. These sites shall not be within 100 miles of each other in the event that there is a disaster. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.15.1-5
	Maintain daily backups of system data. The backups shall be stored in a different location than the EBT system. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.15.1-6
	The data in the hot site shall fully mirror the data in the primary site. The State and the EBT contractor will mutually agree upon the data synchronization lag between the hot site and primary site. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.15.1-7
	All data transmission by the EBT system shall be encrypted. All backed-up EBT data shall be stored in encrypted form. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.15.1-8
	Adhere to industry best practices for physical security of the system and data and maintain 24x7 secured access to the facilities where the primary and hot sites reside and where backup data is stored. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.15.1-9
	Provide access to DPHHS and authorized State staff, as necessary, by request of DPHHS. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.15.2
Performance Expectations. 

	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.15.2-1
	Provide 24x7 support to assist State IT staff in the event of a problem, emergency, or disaster situation requiring immediate attention to restore the EBT system’s transaction processing and ongoing operations.  
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.15.2-2
	The hot site housing the EBT system shall be fully functional within five minutes of declaration by the EBT contractor, the State or Federal agency of the primary system failure. The hot site shall conform to all performance standards set forth in this RFP.  
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.15.2-3
	Conduct an annual disaster recovery exercise including operations of the hot site with the State demonstrating their compliance to approved processes defined in the EBT contractor’s Disaster Recovery Plan.   The EBT contractor shall provide the State with test results of the annual recovery exercise within 30 calendar days of receipt of test results.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.15.3
State Responsibilities. 

	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.15.3-1
	Approve the EBT contractor’s Disaster Recovery Plan. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.15.3-2
	Participate in the annual disaster recovery exercise with the EBT contractor.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.15.3-3
	Review and approve annual disaster recovery exercise test results.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.16
Application Support and Production Recovery for Forms, Reports, and Procedures.  In preparation for a disaster, the EBT contractor will support Montana in the development of a disaster recovery plan and approach. This includes providing backup/recovery necessary to ensure continued operation of critical computer resources and providing benefits to program participants. The EBT contractor will update the plan and its approach to a disaster support system as required to meet changes to Federal and State response requirements. 

3.2.11.16.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities. 

	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.16.1-1
	Provide an evaluation of the types of service interruptions that may impact the EBT system’s operations and therefore require the use of a disaster recovery plan and process. The EBT contractor shall establish and maintain a disaster recovery plan that shall be approved by the State prior to the pilot operations period.  The plan shall include:

a) Disaster declaration criteria and associated timeframes as deemed acceptable to the State.

b) For each potential interruption type, detailed steps to be taken to survive and recover from the interruption. 

c) Provisions to ensure that benefits continue to be accessible to cardholders. Outline the resources committed to each proposed contingency plan (i.e., people, systems, telephone lines, and operation sites) and indicate whether the contingency plan has been tested under real or simulated conditions. 

d) A communication matrix that outlines the roles and responsibilities and communication protocol that will be followed during a disaster, including a State and merchant notification process informing them of alternate means of authorizations that are in place.

e) A description of an alternate means of authorization of EBT transactions during short-term outages in the event that an outage occurs, and a disaster has not been formally declared.

f) A statement attesting that the backup and recovery of Montana’s EBT system shall not be delayed because the EBT contractor is recovering other Sate’s EBT systems. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.17
Security and Privacy.  The EBT system creates and maintains information of a sensitive nature and must have controls to ensure that only properly authorized personal have access to inquire upon or update this data. In ensuring the appropriate level of security, the EBT system security program will include administrative, physical, technical, and system controls. 

The security of SNAP participant information is regulated and specific details are found at 7 C.F.R. 272.1(c). 

For a copy of the Montana Technical Security Plan, please refer to the Bidder’s Library. 

3.2.11.17.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.17.1-1
	Prepare a security plan detailing, at a minimum, the security provisions and proposed user profiles established within the EBT system. The EBT contractor shall submit an approved System Security Plan no later than 90 calendar days from the contract start date for SNAP and Cash and prior to the start of Pilot Operations for WIC.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.17.1-2
	Adhere to Montana’s technical standards for security. A copy of Montana’s Technical Security Plan can be found in the Bidder’s Library.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.17.1-3
	Provide physical and access security to all EBT data and ensure the privacy of confidential data.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.17.1-4
	Employ systems access User ID and password controls according to State policy. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.17.1-5
	Ensure security controls to be used by the EBT contractor and/or any subcontractor(s) in the performance of services required under the contract are that of EFT industry standards and convention in ensuring a sound and secure EBT operating environment.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.17.1-6
	Ensure that an appropriate level of security is established and maintained in connection with the EBT services provided pursuant to the contract. The EBT contractor shall process information that has been designated sensitive, but unclassified. Sensitive, but unclassified information is any information that the loss, misuse or unauthorized access to or modification of could adversely affect the national interest of the conduct of federal/state programs, or affect the privacy to which individuals are entitled under Section 552a of Title 5, United States Code (the Privacy Act), but which has not been specifically authorized under criteria established by an Executive Order or an Act of Congress to be kept secret in the interest or national defense or foreign policy.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.17.1-7
	Ensure that automated information systems and networks which process, store, or transmit sensitive, but unclassified information meet the requirements for controlled access (C2) level protection as evaluated by the National Security Agency or NIST. The application of US Treasury Directive (TD) P 71-10, Department of the Treasury Security Manual, to automated information systems, applications and facilities operated by the Department of Treasury directly, or by its designated depository financial Institutions and contractors, is required.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.17.1-8
	Comply with regulations issued by the USDA FNS for EBT system security requirements at 7 CFR 274.8(b)(3) and with state automated data processing and information retrieval systems at 7 CFR 277.18(p).
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.17.1-9
	Utilize physical security and access control systems to limit access to facilities used to produce cards, process data, or house any sensitive data to those authorized personnel and authorized visitors. The control systems shall have the capability to detect and report attempted unauthorized entries into the facility.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.17.1-10
	Regulate access to primary and backup data centers in such a way that the flow of all persons can be monitored and controlled by a security staff or other control process. This shall be accomplished through the utilization of closed circuit television camera systems, card reader access systems, intrusion detection alarm systems or similar systems.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.17.1-11
	Ground level and second story windows shall have positive locking devices installed. If conditions allow, windows shall be made inoperable The State recommends that first and second story windows be covered with solid material, such as steel bars. The State would consider alternative security elements if the operations are conducted in an interior secure environment. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.17.1-12
	Access to operational sites shall be controlled and limited to authorized personnel.  Employee access to controlled areas within the operational site shall be controlled by electronic access or other comparable procedure. Guests, including EBT contractors, shall be required to sign-in and shall be assigned a temporary identification badge, or other comparable control, to be permitted access to the facility. Guests shall be escorted at all times by authorized personnel.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.17.1-13
	All data on portable media, including, but not limited to: magnetic tapes, diskettes, removable disk packs, paper listings, and microfiche shall be in secure access controlled storage areas with access limited to authorized personnel, when not being used by computer operations. All data on portable media must be encrypted. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.17.1-14
	The primary and backup processing sites, as well as the tape storage areas, shall be equipped with fire detection and suppression systems that detect and suppress fire in the incipient stage. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.17.2
Performance Expectations.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.17.2-1
	The EBT data processing and telecommunications facilities shall be secured 24x7. The entrance(s) to the information systems or telecommunications facility shall provide for controlled entry and be secure against forced entry.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.17.2-2
	EBT contractor facilities shall be locked at all times when authorized personnel are not present. If undetected entry can occur while the facility is occupied, countermeasures shall be implemented to restrict unauthorized access.

a) Keys shall never be left in locks or hidden in an area near the lock. The distribution of keys shall be strictly limited and an effective control system established.

b) Cipher or proximity/swipe card type devices may be used during duty hours to control entry into a facility. However, during non-duty hours, the cipher lock shall not be used as a sole locking device. The cipher combination shall be protected by shielding the user of the locking mechanism against observation by unauthorized personnel and shall be periodically changed.

c) Upon termination of an employee, the employee’s access to facilities shall be terminated including but not limited to disabling swipe cards, changing locks, and cipher codes to prohibit access by the terminated employee. The EBT contractor will shall work with the State to establish mutually agreed upon procedures for terminating access to the EBT contractor’s facility.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.18
Audit Services.  The books, records, documents, and accounting practices of the EBT contractor relevant to the contract are subject to audit at any reasonable time and upon notice by the State, USDA-FNS, or their duly appointed representatives. 

3.2.11.18.1
Audit Services.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.18.1-1
	Support State and federal audit requests for information. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.18.1-2
	Where an auditor or the State needs information not available via the web portal, the EBT contractor shall supply the requested data on a mutually agreed upon time and media. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.18.1-3
	All information changes shall be traceable to the originating system, merchant, and/or user that initiated the change. Traceability shall include a unique identifier for each entity and the date/time of the change. This information shall be reportable. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.18.1-4
	Any data modification done by a general-purpose tool (e.g., general purpose query mechanism) shall be traceable to the user that made the change.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.19
Training (Merchant).  The EBT contractor will be responsible for the development of instructions and delivery of training materials on all merchant systems, applications, and other tools provided by the EBT contractor. Additionally, the EBT contractor will be responsible in providing help desk support to assist merchants with any questions or needed training activities. 

Training will be tailored to each specific program’s needs and requirements. The table below specifies training service expectations for each program.
3.2.11.19.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities. 

	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.19.1-1
	Provide train-by-mail training to all authorized EBT-only merchants. Training materials shall be sent with the POS equipment. Each shipment includes installation instructions and a toll-free number for equipment support assistance.  Following mail delivery of the POS equipment to the merchant, the EBT contractor’s CSR will call the merchant to assist with any questions or needed training activities. 

Currently there is an estimated 744 SNAP and TANF merchants and 350 WIC merchants.  The breakdown is as follows:

744 SNAP and TANF Merchants:

Total voucher merchants: 21

Total EBT-only merchants: 497

Total TPP merchants: 226

350 WIC Merchants:

Total farmer merchants: 150

Total retail merchants: 200

ATMs are not included in the merchant estimates.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.19.1-2
	The State requires that any conversion of EBT system data be invisible to the participants and that they are not negatively impacted in their ability to redeem their benefits due to conversion.  Conversion of data should also be invisible as possible to the merchant and State employees. Upon conversion, the EBT contractor shall specify comprehensive conversion and training plans for participants, State and county administrative staff and authorized merchants.

The participant training plans shall include provisions for communicating with English and Spanish language participants. The training package shall include but may not be limited to written materials. In summary, the core service requirement is the preparation of comprehensive training plans and training materials for participants, merchants and State administrative staff. Any training facilities used shall adhere to the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) for both physical access and actual training materials. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.19.1-3
	Work with the State SNAP, Cash, and WIC program staff to research, develop a plan, and produce participant training materials regarding the use of the EBT card at POS systems used at all authorized Montana merchants.  
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.19.1-4
	Issue written training materials and a training video and/or online instruction and video training to all merchants participating in the Montana EBT program. Technical materials regarding settlement procedures, EBT transaction sets, and other topics required to enable a merchant to participate in EBT shall also be issued. The EBT contractor shall track completion of training by merchants. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.19.1-5
	Provide written training materials for authorized merchants, for the life of the contract. In addition to materials provided on paper or other presentation media, training materials shall be provided on electronic media (i.e. CD) in a word processing application approved by the State. Merchant training materials shall cover the following topics:

a) EBT transaction functionality

b) EBT settlement

c) Operation and use of EBT POS equipment and use of the EBT card

d) System security and access control

e) EBT merchant customer service functionality

f) Instructions on how to access customer service.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.19.1-6
	Coordinate and provide face-to-face training for all authorized WIC merchants.   DPHHS estimates 350 merchants will need training, of which 150 are farmers.  
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.19.1-7
	Provide training materials and training on new equipment for EBT-only merchants. Training on EBT-only terminals will be provided to merchants in a group setting, where possible, and Local Agency Retailer Coordinators (LARCs) will assist with or conduct trainings, as needed.  Regardless of the training approach, training on the new equipment will cover, at a minimum, the following:

a) Set-up of the device

b) Security set-up and logging into the device

c) Instruction on all transaction types

d) How to print and read reports

e) How to reconcile transactions and payments

f) Troubleshooting problems

g) Who to contact for support

All users of the EBT-only device shall receive a training manual from the EBT contractor that provides step-by-step instructions on the use of the equipment. The manual needs to be available in paper and electronic, online format. They will also have access to a merchant help line to receive assistance for the device at any time.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.19.1-8
	For integrated stores the EBT contractor shall train a single representative from an integrated store, and that representative will be responsible for ensuring that all of their store’s cashiers are trained.  It is the integrated stores responsibility to develop specific training materials and train their staff on how WIC transactions should be conducted with their stores’ POS system.  Some large chain merchants may have developed training materials unique to their stores and terminals, for EBT implementations in other states that can be shared with their stores in Montana.  
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.19.1-9
	Provide training and associated support materials on the merchant web portal component for the EBT system.
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.19.1-10
	Provide instructions for activating the EBT card and other materials as directed by the State for new and/or replacement cards. See card distribution statistics in the Bidder’s Library for the number of new and replacement cards distributed annually. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.19.1-11
	Work with the State to define process and materials for conducting outreach to new merchants. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.19.2
Performance Expectations. 

	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.19.2-1
	The CSR shall contact the authorized merchant within 10 calendar days of the POS equipment and training materials being distributed to the merchant. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.20
Training (Farmer Specific).  The EBT contractor will be responsible for the development of instructions and delivery of training materials on all WIC farmer systems, applications, and other tools provided by the EBT contractor. Additionally, the EBT contractor will be responsible in providing help desk support to assist farmers with any questions or needed training activities. 

Training will be tailored to WIC program needs and requirements. 

3.2.11.20.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.20.1-1
	The EBT contractor shall provide training to farmers on the hardware and software for conducting WIC EBT transactions. 
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.20.1-2
	Provide written training materials for participating farmers, for the life of the contract. In addition to materials provided on paper or other presentation media, training materials shall be provided on electronic media (i.e. CD) in a word processing application approved by the State. Farmer training materials shall cover the following topics:

• EBT transaction functionality

• EBT settlement

• Operation and use of any EBT compatible equipment

• System security and access control

• EBT farmer customer service functionality

• Instructions on how to access customer service, including instructions on use of IVR technology used to support access to farmer information

The State may require the EBT contractor to develop and distribute an EBT farmer training video for use by participating farmers.
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	


3.2.11.21
Training (DPHHS).  The EBT contractor will be responsible for the development of instructions and delivery of training materials on all systems, applications, and other tools provided by the EBT contractor to DPHHS staff.  Additionally, the EBT contractor will be responsible in providing help desk support to assist with any questions or needed training activities. 

Training will be tailored to each specific program’s needs and requirements.  

3.2.11.21.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.21.1-1
	Provide training materials for all systems, applications, and other tools provided by the EBT contractor and accessed by the State including but not limited to customer service tools. The training materials shall outline procedures for State and local agency staff at all DPHHS locations (including the OPA offices) on the functionality of the EBT System. Training should be tailored to each program’s needs and in some cases may include some face-to-face training. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.21.1-2
	Provide detailed training and manuals on the Settlement and Reconciliation process. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.21.2
State Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.21.2-1
	Identify and provide to the EBT vendor, a listing of State staff that require training. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.22
Training (Participant).  The EBT contractor will be responsible for the development of instructions, delivery of training, and outreach materials deliverable through the mail and the web portal. Additionally, the EBT contractor will be responsible in providing help desk support to assist participants with any questions or needed training activities. 

Training will be tailored to each specific program’s needs and requirements. The table below specifies training service expectations for each program.
3.2.11.22.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.22.1-1
	Produce and distribute at the direction of the State, printed training material specific to the Cash and SNAP programs. 

The EBT contractor shall work with the State to develop the training material content. Materials shall be written in easy-to-understand language, at a fifth grade reading level. The quantity of each training material product shall be adequate to supply participants for the life of the contract.  A copy of the current training brochure titled “Using Your Montana Access Card” is available in the Bidder’s Library. 
	N/A
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.22.1-2
	Work with the State to define the process for managing changes to the training and outreach materials. The State shall review and approve any training and outreach materials prior to distribution and production for all programs. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	


3.2.11.22.2
Performance Expectations.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.22.2-1
	The EBT contractor shall provide requested printed materials at the designated destination within two weeks of the initial request. 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.22.2-2
	Develop training content for EBT contractor supplied equipment and card use.  Training content shall be provided to the State for inclusion in participant and merchant training materials established by the State.
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	


3.2.11.23
Compliance with Governing Regulations.  In this section, DPHHS requests confirmation from offerors that the following governing regulations will be met.  It is the EBT contractor’s responsibility to obtain and apply the most current federal rules and regulations throughout the duration of the contract.  These regulations provide the guidance and federal specifications required in the administration of EBT services for SNAP, TANF, and WIC.  
3.2.11.23.1
EBT Contractor Responsibilities.
	ID #
	Requirement Statement
	Program Applicability
	Offeror Response

	
	
	WIC
	Cash
	SNAP
	OCC
	Response

	3.2.11.23.1-1
	Comply with 7 CFR Part 246
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.23.1-2
	Comply with 7 CFR Part 274
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.23.1-3
	Comply with 7 CFR Part 277
	N/A
	N/A
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.23.1-4
	Comply with 26 CFR Part 1, 31 and 301
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.23.1-5
	Comply with FNS Operating Rules, WIC, EBT
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.23.1-6
	Comply with FNS WIC EBT Technical Implementation Guide (Version 2012, Dated September 30, 2012)
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.23.1-7
	Comply with FNS WIC EBT Universal Interface Specification Document (v.4.1)
	Y
	N/A
	N/A
	
	

	3.2.11.23.1-8
	Comply with IRS Final Rule:  Information Reporting of Payments Made in Settlement of Payment Card and Third Party Network Transactions issued pursuant to the Housing Assistance Tax Act of 2008
	Y
	Y
	Y
	
	

	3.2.11.23.1-9
	Comply with the Temporary Payroll Tax Cut Continuation Act, SEC. 4004. Spending Policies for Assistance Under State TANF Programs
	N/A
	Y
	N/A
	
	


SECTION 4:  OFFEROR QUALIFICATIONS

All subsections of Section 4 not listed in the "Instructions to Offerors" on page 3 require a response.  Restate the subsection number and the text immediately prior to your written response.
To enable the State to determine the capabilities of an offeror to perform the services specified in this RFP, the offeror shall respond to the following regarding its ability to meet the State's requirements.  THE RESPONSE, "(OFFEROR'S NAME) UNDERSTANDS AND WILL COMPLY," IS NOT APPROPRIATE FOR THIS SECTION.

NOTE:  Each item must be thoroughly addressed.  Offerors taking exception to any requirements listed in this section may be found nonresponsive or be subject to point deductions.
4.1
OVERVIEW AND TECHNICAL PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

This section of the RFP describes the format and additional content requirements for the technical proposal.  In an effort to promote equality and consistency during the proposal evaluation process, offerors are cautioned that the Department expects proposals to comply with the format and content requirements as described in this section and in Section 1.6, using tabs separating each proposal section as indicated.  Failure to respond to a specific requirement may be used as the basis for rejection of the proposal.  Proposal headings and titles shall not construe content.  
Offerors should reference the procurement schedule, discussions of the procurement process, and rules in Section 1.  An overview of the evaluation process for proposals is presented in Sections 2 and 6.  

The technical proposal must present a full and complete description of the qualifications of the offeror and its staff to carry out the requirements set forth in this RFP, as well as the approach and methods the offeror proposes to use in completing the scope of work. 

No reference is to be made to any pricing information or elements of cost within the technical proposal.  If any element of pricing or cost is referred to in the transmittal letter or any part of the Technical Proposal, the offeror may be disqualified.  
4.2
State's Right to Investigate and reject

The State may make such investigations as deemed necessary to determine the offeror's ability to perform the services specified.  The State reserves the right to reject a proposal if the information submitted by, or investigation of, the offeror fails to satisfy the State that the offeror is properly qualified to perform the obligations of the contract.  This includes the State's ability to reject the proposal based on negative references.

4.3
TRANSMITTAL LETTER (TAB 1)
The transmittal letter must be submitted on official business letterhead and contain the firm’s name and address.  The letter must clearly indicate the name, title, mailing address, telephone number, and facsimile number of the offeror’s representative with the authority to bind the company to the proposal, and to answer questions concerning the proposal.  The transmittal letter must identify all materials and enclosures being forwarded as a response to this RFP and must be signed by the individual authorized to commit the offeror company to the scope of work proposed.  In addition, the transmittal letter must include:

1. Identification of the corporation or other legal entity submitting the proposal and all subcontractors.  Non-Montana corporations must register with the Montana Secretary of State as a foreign corporation to conduct business in Montana and appoint a resident agent to accept service of process to conduct business in Montana.  Any foreign corporation, a limited liability company, limited liability partnership, or limited liability limited partnership must affirm that it currently has a Certificate of Authority to do business in Montana.  Proof of such certification/licensure shall be provided upon request by the State.  See Secretary of State’s website: http://sos.mt.gov/ for more information.

2. Disclosure of the intended use of subcontractors, if any.  If no subcontractors are to be used, then a statement indicating that must be included. 
3. A statement that the offeror’s proposal is a binding offer, and that the contents of the proposal (including persons specified to implement the project) of the offeror will become contractual obligations if the offeror is selected.
4. A statement of affirmative action that the offeror does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, age, sex, marital status, political affiliation, national origin, or handicap and complies with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act.
5. A statement that by submitting a proposal, the offeror affirms its acceptance of the RFP requirements without exception, and its willingness to enter into a contract containing substantially similar terms to the contract published with this RFP as Appendix B. 
6. An attached completed W-9 form. 

7. Disclosure of all current or pending contracts of a similar size with any state and all bids or proposals submitted to any state, but not yet awarded.
8. A statement that no cost or pricing information has been included in the technical proposal.
9. A statement identifying all conflicts of interest or potential conflicts of interest related to the services described in this RFP, as outlined in Title 2 Chapter 2 Montana Code Annotated (MCA).  If a conflict of interest or potential conflict of interest is identified, include a plan to mitigate the conflict of interest.
10. A statement that the offeror has reviewed the information and artifacts made available in the Bidder’s Library and is responsible for ensuring that they have access to the most current information presented in the library. The library contains information such as program caseload, call volume statistics, a listing of participating/authorized retail stores, farmers, farmers’ markets, sample program reports and other relevant information referenced throughout this RFP.  A list of documents that are available electronically in the Bidder’s Library at the time of release of this RFP is presented in Appendix F.  The Bidder’s Library is available online at  http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/SolicitationDefault.aspx.
4.4
MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS CHECKLIST (TAB 2)
Appendix C of this RFP contains a mandatory requirements checklist that must be submitted as part of the technical proposal.  All checklist pages shall be signed and dated.  

The mandatory items shall be addressed by acknowledgement of, or agreement with, the corresponding item identifier listed on the checklist in Appendix C.  Indicate agreement with or acknowledgement of an item with a check mark or “X” next to the item and a signature at the bottom of the page.  Each item shall be separately marked and each page separately signed.

The mandatory requirements checklist is for guidance only and is not intended to be a comprehensive list of all requirements of this RFP.

4.5
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (TAB 3)
The Executive Summary must not exceed five typewritten pages.  Font size must be 11 point or larger.  Pages are defined as one side of a page only.  These parameters apply to all subsections with page limits.  Charts, tables, or other explanatory graphics are included in the page count but font size requirement of 11 point or larger does not apply to charts, tables or other explanatory graphics.
The executive summary must highlight the contents of the technical proposal in such a way as to provide evaluators with a broad understanding of the entire proposal.  It must contain a concise overview summarizing the offeror’s understanding of Montana’s current EBT program services and intention for operating and expanding EBT services to the WIC program, qualifications of key personnel, and approach to the coordination and support necessary to achieve the scope of work described in this RFP.  The offeror must emphasize the most important features offered by its proposed approach and methodology.  The Executive Summary must conclude with a discussion of the corporate commitment to the performance of this contract.

4.6
CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS (TAB 4)

Corporate Qualifications including the Corporate Capabilities and Commitment, Corporate Integrity, and Previous Successful Experience must not exceed 10 typewritten pages.  Charts, tables, or other explanatory graphics are included in the page count but font size requirement of 11 point or larger does not apply to charts, tables or other explanatory graphics. 

4.6.1 
Corporate Capabilities and Commitment.  In this section of the proposal, the offeror must present material describing its corporate capability to successfully perform this contract.  This section must highlight specific details regarding previous experience, current contractual obligations, and corporate resources.  Offerors must address each of the following items in detail in their responses to this section: 

1. Provide a corporate organization chart of the firm that is submitting the proposal.  If the firm is a subsidiary of a parent company, the organization chart must be that of the subsidiary firm.  The chart must display the firm's structure and the organizational placement of the oversight for the Montana EBT Services project. The organization chart must include names and be dated.

a. If companies are partnering in response to this RFP, organization charts must be included for all firms.  

2. Provide a project organization chart of the proposed group or team of staff who will be managing and responsible for overseeing and carrying out the day-to-day operations and tasks directly and indirectly impacting the Montana EBT Services project.  The proposed project work team organization chart must include names of individuals, descriptive job titles or positions, and be dated.

3. Identify the name and telephone number of the person who will be responsible for signing the contract and indicate the signing person's relationship with the firm.  

4. Disclose the legal structure and history of the offeror’s organization, including, but not limited to, the names and credentials of the owners and executives.

5. Offerors (through a combination of the offeror only, subcontractor(s) only, or both) must have experience designing, building, implementing, operating and managing a successful electronic benefits or funds transfer system to be considered qualified. The offeror shall specifically identify all current EBT system government-funded contracts the offeror and any partnering company has and any recent contract awards and their status.  Provide details of this experience(s), including the project status, contract start date, scheduled start of operations, contract term, location where it occurred, the size and type of system (or subsystem) involved, and how this experience translates into the offeror’s ability to successfully support and manage ongoing operations for the Montana Access System project.

6. Describe how the offeror and all partnering companies will address any potential conflicts between workload underway on those contracts and the Montana EBT Services project.

7. Describe the other staff resources that are available as short-term support for specialized needs or on a continuing basis as needed.  Describe how local project management can access these resources.

8. Describe the offeror’s and any partnering company’s corporate technical infrastructure and resources available, including, but not limited to, information system architecture and relevant technical base.  In addition, describe the approach used to provide the technical support and expertise needed to execute the services described in this RFP.

4.6.2
Corporate Integrity.  By submitting a proposal in response to this RFP, the offeror certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it, its principals, and proposed subcontractors: 

1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for disbarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions. 

2. Have not within a three-year period preceding the proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property. 

3. Are not presently under investigation for, indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in Paragraph 2 above. 

4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

5. Are in compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, if a publicly traded company.

6. Are responsible corporate entities, possessing the capability in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements and the integrity and reliability that will ensure good faith performance.

4.6.3
Previous Successful Experience.  In this section of the proposal, the offeror must present material describing its previous successful experience with EBT service projects similar to the scope of work described in this RFP.  This section must highlight specific details regarding previous experience that convincingly demonstrates successful work achieved in the industry, preferably in state government.
4.7
STAFFING REQUIREMENTS  (TAB 5) 
The offeror’s response to the staffing requirements include the proposed personnel and qualifications, staffing approach, staff replacement approach, and overall descriptions of how the offeror will meet the stated staffing requirements must not exceed 10 typewritten pages.  Note that resumes and references are included in another subsection, so are not relevant to the page limitations for this section.

DPHHS expects high quality results and is committed to conducting this project in a cost effective and timely manner.  The contractor is responsible for meeting this expectation by maintaining appropriate staffing levels throughout the term of the contract and adjusting its resources as necessary to maintain the required level of service.  The contractor will be required to maintain office space and equipment in Helena for its onsite personnel. 

The contractor must provide qualified staff to perform the activities required in this RFP. The key contractor staff must be available onsite in Helena, Montana during the contract period, unless DPHHS grants permission otherwise.  

4.7.1
Personnel and Qualifications.  Both the contractor and its proposed staff must have a proven track record with similar systems to ensure the success of this project.  The contractor must use experienced and qualified professionals.  The contractor must provide key personnel, who have previous experience of providing quality work on projects of similar scope and size, to ensure successful daily operations of Montana Access.  In addition to the “key personnel” the contractor must provide all other necessary staff to support those key personnel in the operations of this contract.  At a minimum, key personnel must include:

a. Account Manager

b. Project Manager

c. Operations Manager

d. Software Development Lead

e. Testing Lead

f. Training Lead

g. Customer Service Manager

If the offeror is proposing to employ a key staff member to fill more than one position, information specific to how that will be done and how all the requirements relating to this RFP will be carried out, must be clearly addressed in the Responsibilities and Duties section in the table example below on how staff will produce and perform all of the required functions, activities and deliverables relating to the combined job duties.  

DPHHS will approve qualifications with valid offeror explanations of how that individual is qualified to fulfill the role’s responsibilities.  All proposed individuals must be able to demonstrate the experience being cited. 

Each key personnel must be listed similar to the format below and must include responsibilities and duties that will be performed, qualifications and the name of the proposed key personnel. 

	Key Personnel Information (complete one form for each staff person)

	Name
	

	Role
	

	Responsibilities and Duties
	

	Qualifications
	· Number of years of experience with a government human services EBT system.

· Number of years of supervisory experience.

· Type of degree from an accredited college or university.  
· Number of years and level of responsibility/experience managing accounts for projects designing, developing, implementing, and operating large-scale systems.
· Number of years/experience developing software for a government human services system preferably an EBT system.

· Successful experience integrating system(s) with enterprise architecture.


Any professional staff reporting directly to the contractor project manager will also be considered key personnel and will require approval of DPHHS.  

All support staff who will be working directly on the Montana EBT Services project must also be listed in a similar format and must also include general responsibilities and duties that will be performed, qualifications and the name of the proposed personnel.  
4.7.2
Department Approval of Contractor Staff and Subcontractors.  The Department reserves the right to approve or disapprove, in advance and in writing, all of the contractor’s staff and any subcontractor assigned to this contract or to require the reassignment of any contractor employee found unacceptable to DPHHS.

At DPHHS’s discretion, DPHHS may also request general background checks on all contractor staff.  The Department has the right to request that any personnel be removed or replaced at any time for any reason if it is determined to be in the best interest of DPHHS.

The Department must approve any exceptions to the qualifications listed above for key and support personnel.  

All key personnel, except offsite back up and off hours Help Desk staff need to be located in Helena unless Department approves otherwise.
4.7.3
Staff Replacement Requirements.  Consistency in contractor personnel will maximize the project’s success.  Both the contractor and DPHHS invest in contractor staff, to familiarize them with Montana policies, Department needs, and other project-specific information.  Staff rotation or turnover creates efficiency losses, which must be minimized.  The contractor must supply DPHHS with an updated organization chart and staffing plan identifying each of the staff on a quarterly basis or whenever a key person is replaced. 
4.7.4
Timeframes.  The contractor must be fully staffed throughout the contract term.  If a key staff member leaves on his or her own accord, for circumstances beyond the contractor’s control, the contractor must replace this individual within two weeks.  The contractor must notify DPHHS if this timeframe cannot be met, and document the contractor’s hiring attempts.
4.7.5
Department Approval.  Project key personnel may not be reassigned or added during the project without the prior written consent of DPHHS’s project manager.  The Department’s project manager reserves the option to request a change in the successful offeror’s project personnel at his/her sole discretion, but would not exercise this option without cause and negotiation with the offeror.

Proposed subcontractors may not be changed, reassigned or added during the project without the prior written consent of DPHHS project manager.  

4.8
REFERENCES (TAB 6)

There are no page limits for References. Offeror shall provide complete and separate Appendix D, Client Reference Form, for three references that are using or have used services of the type proposed in this RFP.  The references must include state governments for whom the offeror, preferably within the last 10 years, has successfully managed or operated an electronic benefits or funds transfer system for disbursement of government sponsored benefits or cash; or electronic commerce in lieu of cash. References must be from entities other than the Montana DPHHS.
A responsible party of the organization for which the services were provided to the client (the offeror's customer) must provide the reference information and must sign and date the form.  It is the offeror's responsibility to ensure that the completed forms are submitted with the proposal by the submission date, for inclusion in the evaluation process.  Any Client Reference Forms that are not received or are not completed may adversely affect the offeror's score in the evaluation process.  Client Reference Forms exceeding the specified number will not be considered.  The State may contact the client references for validation of the information provided in the Client Reference Forms.  If the State finds erroneous information, evaluation points may be deducted or the proposal may be rejected.

4.9
RESUMES (TAB 7)

Resumes should be limited to no more than three pages per key personnel position.  There are no page limits specified for the offeror’s Resumes subsection.  

A resume or summary of qualifications, work experience, education, and skills must be provided for all key personnel, including any subcontractors, who will be performing any aspects of the contract.  Minimum key personnel positions are listed in Section 4.7.1.  Include years of experience providing services similar to those required; education; and certifications where applicable.  Identify what role each person would fulfill in performing work identified in this RFP.

4.10
OFFEROR FINANCIAL STABILITY (TAB 8)

The Offeror Financial Stability subsection of the offeror’s proposal must not exceed five typewritten pages. Financial statements and notes may be attached as a separate addendum and are not included in the page count.
Offerors must demonstrate their financial stability to perform all contract phases specified by providing the following: 

1. Financial statements, preferably audited, for the offeror, for the three consecutive years immediately preceding the issuance of this RFP.  Statements must include:

a. Balance Sheet

b. Income Statement

c. Notes to the Financial Statements

d. Statement of Changes in Financial Position or Statement of Cash Flows

e. Auditor's Report

2. Copies of any quarterly financial statements that have been prepared since the end of the period reported by its most recent annual report.

3. A statement that clearly discloses the offeror's or any subcontractor's status relative to any court protected financial status during the past five years.

4. Disclosure of any and all judgments, pending or expected litigation, or other real or potential financial reversals that might materially affect the viability or stability of the bidding organization, or warrant that no such condition is known to exist.

5. Identify whether the offeror is a stand-alone or parent company, or a subsidiary of another company.  If a subsidiary, include financial statements and notes for the parent company.

6. Disclosure of other public entities/government agencies with which the offeror has contracts and the size of the contracts.

Additionally, all offerors must provide affirmation that they can comply with the following:

7. Offeror has the financial stability to carry out at least six months of services during any period of this agreement without reimbursement for the services or expenses.

8. Offeror has the financial resources to fund the capital expenditures required under the agreement without advances by the State or assignment of any payments by the State to a financing source.

9. Each subcontractor providing services under this agreement has the financial resources to carry out its duties under this agreement.

10. The offeror’s methods of accounting are consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

4.11
CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATIONS (TAB 9)
Contractor Qualifications must not exceed 55 typewritten pages.
4.11.1
Experience with EBT Systems.  Offerors shall describe:

1. Length of time the organization has been providing EBT services to the public and/or private sector.  Offeror’s organization shall have a minimum of five years of experience.  Describe experience.
2. Description of the EBT contractor’s background and experience in providing the full range of EBT services for SNAP, Cash, and/or WIC or related government programs.  The offeror should discuss the potential challenges that they anticipate and provide suggestions for overcoming barriers.
3. Experience providing the financial services component as part of the contractor’s EBT services function.  Discuss the pros and cons of the EBT contractor providing the financial services function versus the State contracting with another vendor to provide the banking function. 
4. Implementing EBT services with multiple stakeholder groups with varying levels of state and federal program requirements.

5. Experience complying with technical standards including but not limited to, ASC X9, Inc. standard for WIC EBT.  Discussion of its use of the ANSI X9.93 standard message and any required batch formats for electronic transaction processing.  Additionally, discuss experience with industry card standards.
6. Experience working with state and federal government agencies on EBT projects requiring certification.  Discuss successes and challenges met during certification efforts.  

7. Experience working with EBT or similar implementation projects requiring a pilot operations effort.  Discuss work done to plan, prepare and execute pilot operation activities.
8. Experience bringing innovative approaches to clients that have helped them meet or exceed their EBT service needs.   

9. Experience in helping clients gain efficiencies in EBT functions and services such as EBT card production and other areas.

10. Describe your client experiences (preferably in the EBT industry) in which cost containment opportunities were realized.

11. Describe how you’ve leveraged EBT technology and equipment for clients in past engagements that created opportunities for improved or streamlined services, cost savings or other efficiencies for your client.
4.11.2
Staff Experience and Qualifications.  Offerors shall describe:

1. Experience working with stakeholder groups that are relatively new to a program such as the WIC farmer merchant population.  Discuss successes and challenges met in working with this or similar program stakeholders.
2. Experience in staying abreast and committed to federal initiatives affecting the provision of EBT services for SNAP, Cash, and/or WIC programs.
3. Experience providing customer service to program participants, merchants and government agency stakeholders.  The EBT contractor shall describe the length of time, various systems used to provide customer support.  Discuss the methods in which customer support has been provided (i.e., web portal, IVR, help desk, and other delivery methods used).

4. Experience providing training to project stakeholders similar to the training scope of work described in this RFP.   Discuss successes and challenges met in working with similar program stakeholders.
5. If a subcontractor is proposed, the EBT contractor shall describe their subcontractor’s experience working on EBT services projects for SNAP, Cash, and/or WIC or related government programs.  

6. The functions and capacity in which the subcontractor(s) contributed to an EBT services project.  

7. Discuss communication practices employed and approach used to ensure coordination of project functions, activities between EBT contractor and subcontractor(s).
4.12
APPROACH TO PROJECT SERVICES (TAB 10)
The Approach to Project Services subsection, which includes responses to subsections 4.12.1 through 4.12.6, must not exceed 70 typewritten pages.  Charts, tables, or other explanatory graphics are included in the page count. 
In this section of the proposal, offerors shall discuss their approach to meeting the tasks and activities described in Sections 3.2.1, 3.2.2.4, 3.2.4 through 3.2.9, and 3.2.11.  
4.12.1
Approach to Transition Planning and Project Management Task. Offerors shall describe their project management approach, methodology, and tools that will be employed on the Montana EBT Services project.  The approach to project management shall align with the project management activities described throughout Section 3.2.1.  Offerors shall describe:  
1. Their approach to project management for all phases and tasks as well as project control tools to be used during the contract.  Offeror must provide project management on an ongoing basis throughout the contract.  The deliverables associated with the transition planning and project management function must be completed according to the State-approved work plan.  The EBT contractor is required to adhere to the standards described by the Project Management Institute (PMI) in the Project Management Body of Knowledge (PMBOK).  All projects and plans must conform to the industry best practices.

2. The offeror’s description of their project management approach must include information regarding the following components of the Project Management Plan:

a. Risk Management

b. Issue Management

c. Change Management

d. Configuration Management

e. Communication Management

f. Resource Management

g. Quality Management

h. Work Plan Management

3. Offerors shall submit a preliminary project work plan as part of the proposal. The project work plan should convincingly demonstrate to DPHHS what the offeror intends to do, the timeframes necessary to accomplish the work, and the offeror’s plan for meeting the overall responsibilities of the contract.  The preliminary plan shall be in an industry standard format for project work plans.  At a minimum, the work plan shall include but not be limited to:

a. Gantt charts that show all proposed project activities

b. Deliverables;

c. Milestones (see key milestone dates presented in RFP Section 3.2.1.3)
d. Task conflicts and/or interdependencies;

e. Estimated time frame for each task; 

f. Estimated work (hours) for each task;

g. Assigned resources by title and number; and

h. Overall estimated time frame from project start to completion for both EBT contractor and DPHHS activities.

1. Approach to Project Status Reporting.  Offerors shall describe their project status reporting approach, methodology, and tools that will be employed on the Montana EBT Services project.  The approach to project status reporting shall align with the requirements described in Section 3.2.1.4 through 3.2.1.9.
2. Approach to Project Communication.  Offerors shall describe their approach to project communication and tools that will be employed on the Montana EBT Services project.  The approach to project communication shall align with requirements described in Section 3.2.1.10.
3. Approach to Deliverable Review and Approval Process.  Offerors shall describe their approach to the deliverable development, submission, review and approval process that will be employed on the Montana EBT Services project.  The approach and process shall align with the activities described in Sections 3.2.1.11 and 3.2.1.12.  DPHHS expects that deliverables:

a. Conform to the acceptance and adequacy standards dictated by DPHHS.

b. Will be delivered within mutually agreed-upon time frames, as specified in this RFP or in the project work plan.

c. Will be accompanied by a Deliverable Acceptance Request (DAR) that must be completed and returned to contractor within a mutually agreed upon time period.  The TSD-PMB project manager/lead and the applicable customer project manager must sign DARs.  

4. Approach to Change Control and Approval Process.  Offerors shall describe their change control approach, methodology, and tools that will be employed on the Montana EBT Services project.  The approach shall align with the activities described in Section 3.2.1.13  Offerors shall describe:  

a. Approach to change management.

b. Explanation of items to be managed through the change control and approval process (and examples of exclusions).

c. How proposed changes will be reviewed, approved, and managed through completion.

d. Systems or tools used to support the change control and approval process.

e. Proposed roles and responsibilities of offeror and DPHHS.
5. Approach to Transition Planning Process.  Offerors shall describe their approach and processes to be used to migrate current EBT services for SNAP and Cash programs, introduction of the WIC program to EBT, how processes will be tested, and contingency plans for problems that may occur during the migration.
4.12.2
Approach to Compliance with Governing Regulations.  Offerors shall describe their approach to ensuring compliance with governing regulation.  The approach shall align with the project activities described in Section 3.2.2.4.  Offerors shall describe:
1. Understanding of Montana’s SNAP, Cash, and/or WIC programs, their uniqueness and specific federal requirements for program administration.

2. Understanding of government regulations pertaining to the administration of EBT processing for SNAP, Cash, and/or WIC programs.
4.12.3
Approach to Design and Development Task  Offerors shall describe in detail their approach to successfully performing the design and development task of the proposed EBT solution.  DPHHS desires a partner with established processes for designing and developing a project of this type and complexity. The approach shall align with the project activities described in Section 3.2.4 through 3.2.5. 

1. Offeror shall describe its approach to capturing information necessary to document the design of the EBT system. The approach should describe any expectations the offeror has with regard to DPHHS staff’s participation in the documentation of the EBT system design. The detailed system design shall include but not be limited to the following information:

a. A functional design that provides a functional overview and a description of the operating environment, procedures and workflow of the EBT system. 

b. A detailed system design that describes the total system configuration including system hardware, functionality, file layouts, message and file flows, AVRS scripts, data elements, system interfaces, settlement and reconciliation functions, and the system security plan.

2. Approach to development of EBT system
a. Offeror shall describe its approach to development of the EBT system.  The approach should also address the Unit Testing effort that shall be accomplished as part of the development phase. 

b. In addition, the offeror shall describe its approach to conversion of data to support the seamless transition from the current contractor’s system to the new EBT system. Offeror shall provide a detailed approach of how conversion will be done, what data the offeror expects to have to convert to support EBT processing in the new system, how data conversion testing will be done, and what conversion activities will be done during specific phases of the DDI. The Conversion Plan that will be delivered during the development task will need to include a detailed conversion testing approach. The approach should describe any expectations the offeror has in regards to DPHHS staff’s participation during the development phase.  

3. Approach to Testing including defect management

a. Offeror shall describe its approach to testing including defect management. The approach shall describe all phases of testing including system, integration, regression, performance, stress/volume, and user acceptance testing. Offeror can exclude the description of unit testing that shall be covered under the approach to development. The approach should describe any expectations the offeror has in regards to DPHHS staff’s participation during the testing phases.

4. Approach to 1 and 2 level certification of systems
a. Offeror shall describe its approach to conducting 1st and 2nd level certification of systems. The approach shall describe any expectations the offeror has in regards to DPHHS staff and Merchant participation during the certification effort.

5. Approach to Transition from incumbent to new EBT contractor
a. Offeror shall describe its approach to transitioning service responsibilities from the current contractor. The approach to transition shall describe how the offeror will coordinate with DPHHS and the current contractor, how transition issues and risks will be tracked, and how information will be shared between contractors. The approach shall describe any expectations the offeror has in regards to DPHHS staff and the current contractor to make the transition successful.

4.12.4
Approach to Implementation Tasks (Statewide and Farmer Implementation).  Offerors shall describe their approach to successfully performing the implementation task activities and deliverables as described throughout Section 3.2.6 and 3.2.7. 

Offeror shall describe its approach to planning and executing the implementation task, how implementation and post-implementation issues and risks will be tracked, and how the offeror will communicate status of the implementation during the implementation and post-implementation period. The offeror’s Implementation Plan shall contain a detailed implementation schedule that outlines tasks required to implement the EBT system. The approach shall describe any expectations the offeror has with regard to DPHHS and the current EBT contractor’s staff to provide assistance during the implementation task.
4.12.5
Approach to Operations Phase.  Offerors shall describe their approach to successfully performing operations phase activities and meeting deliverable expectations as described throughout Section 3.2.8.  DPHHS desires a partner with established operational processes for executing the scope of services of the type and complexity described in this RFP.  Information shall include:

1. Approach to providing the full scope of EBT services for the SNAP, Cash, and/or WIC programs as described in RFP Sections 3.2.8.1 and 3.2.11.  As part of the response, the offeror shall acknowledge their commitment to accomplishing the core EBT functional requirements.
2. Approach to keeping DPHHS abreast of operational status information and issues through reporting protocols.
3. Approach to the tools that will be deployed on the Montana EBT project to support operational services.
4.12.6
Approach to Contract Turnover Task.  Offerors shall describe their approach to successfully performing the contract turnover task activities and deliverables as described throughout Section 3.2.9.

4.13
CORE EBT FUNCTIONAL REQUIREMENTS WORKSHEET (TAB 11)
There are no page limits specified for the offeror’s Core EBT Functional Requirements Worksheet.  

In this section of the proposal offerors must address each of the detailed core EBT functional requirements as presented in tables in Sections 3.2.11 through 3.2.11.23.1-9.  Offerors shall complete the worksheet by inserting the appropriate Offeror Compliance Code within the designated “OCC” column.  Valid values for the Offeror Compliance Code column are (a) Comply, (b) Propose Alternative Solution, (c) Subcontractor.  The Response column may remain blank for requirements marked (a) Comply.  Offerors should carefully review the description of the designations used in the worksheet columns and instructions for completing the worksheet as presented in RFP Section 3.2.11.

4.14
SERVICE ORGANIZATION’S INTERNAL CONTROL ASSESSMENT (TAB 12)
Offerors responding to solicitations related to Financial and IT Services must provide assurance they have Internal Controls over the processing of transactions included as part of this RFP.  As a service organization, offerors must demonstrate they have adequate controls and safeguards over data and transactions maintained and processed on behalf of the State.
4.15
ORAL PRESENTATIONS
Offerors must be prepared to have the key personnel assigned to this project complete an oral presentation in Helena, Montana.  The State reserves the right to (1) to have presentations from only the two highest scoring offerors; (2) to have presentations from all offerors within 10% of the highest scoring offeror; (3) to have presentations from all offerors who are deemed to have a passing score prior to the presentation process; or (4) have no presentations,  at the State's discretion.  

Offerors selected to participate in oral presentations will be notified by the State in advance. For planning purposes, the State will submit an agenda and specific guidance as deemed appropriate to promote productive and efficient oral presentations.
Offerors will be required to bring certain key personnel to the oral presentations.  The following key staff must be present at a minimum.  If the offeror is proposing to have a key staff member filling more than one position that information must be clearly addressed at the time of the oral presentation on how staff will produce and perform all of the required functions, activities and deliverables for the combined job duties.  Dual accountability, security issues and deadlines cannot be compromised.  Offerors are welcome to bring additional staff at their discretion.

a. Account Manager
b. Project Manager
c. Operations Manager

d. Software Development Lead
e. Testing Lead
f. Training Lead

g. Customer Service Manager

DPHHS reserves the right to schedule and conduct interviews with offerors’ proposed key staff following the oral presentations if in the best interest of the State.  

SECTION 5:  COST PROPOSAL
5.1
COST PROPOSAL

The Cost Proposal must be submitted as a separate document from the Technical Proposal.  The Cost Proposal must include a full and complete price to cover the offeror's expenses that are anticipated as necessary to carry out the requirements set forth in this RFP.  Costs must be broken down into schedules and separated out by tabs as shown below in Section 5.3.  

5.2
Cost Proposal Requirements
5.2.1
Price Schedule Format.  Price schedules are provided in Section 5.3.  Each Proposal Price Schedule must be clearly marked as to which schedule, TAB and component it addresses.   

Offerors must submit a complete cost proposal for the option(s) they are proposing.  The options are:
· SNAP, Cash, WIC

· WIC only

· SNAP, Cash 

Each program will be scored independent of the others. i.e., SNAP CPCM costs will be scored against all SNAP CPCM  costs, Cash CPCM costs against all Cash  CPCM costs, WIC CPCM costs against all WIC CPCM costs. See Section 6.2.3 for further detail on scoring.  The cost of equipping non exempt EBT only reatailers will no longer be subsidized and those costs may not be included in contract pricing.  Costs for equipping exempt EBT retailers must be listed separately from CPCM.  Please refer to section 3.2.11.6.1-2 for Section 4002 of the Agricultural Act of 2014.
Offerors who propose both SNAP, Cash, and WIC options will have a 10% bonus added to their Technical Score and a 10% bonus added to their Cost Score.

For informational purposes, offerors are to provide WIC Farmer’s Market Implementation on Pricing Schedule B and requested rate information on Pricing Schedule C.  Offerors shall adhere to the specific instructions provided in Section 5.3 when completing their cost proposals.   

5.2.2
Contract Base Time Period.  The contract base period begins July 1, 2015 and runs through June 30, 2018.  The decision to extend the contract beyond the contract base period is at the discretion of the Department.  
5.2.3
Contract Related Costs.  All proposed costs passed to DPHHS for reimbursement, as part of this RFP must be disclosed.  Explain or provide detail for each line item if using the "Other" category.  If using the "Other" category it is not necessary to include all day-to-day costs for general office supplies (e.g. paper, pens, office furniture, copier and fax supplies, etc.) by each item but the category must clearly explain the items being proposed in that line item entry.  The offeror may insert or delete lines within the Proposal Price Schedule tables as necessary.

5.2.4
Licenses.  The contractor is responsible for licensing all operating system components necessary to develop and run applications in the contractor development environment.  Production, QA, test, and hosting environments will be licensed by the State.  The offeror must disclose and include costs for all subsequent licenses that DPHHS must purchase to successfully host all of the system elements.

5.2.5
Proprietary Tools.  The offeror must disclose and include all proprietary tools and costs to the State that the Department must purchase in order to successfully host all of the system elements.

5.2.6
Price Schedules and TAB Format.  The offeror must sign and date each Proposal Price Schedule in ink by an individual authorized to legally bind the business submitting the proposal.  The Cost Proposal must be separate from the Technical Proposal, must be sealed as a separate document and must be clearly labeled on the outside:

COST PROPOSAL in response to

RFP15-2883P
Montana SNAP, Cash, and/or WIC EBT Services COST PROPOSAL

The offeror must organize and label the Cost Proposal pricing schedules in the following manner.  

	Tab No.
	Sched. No.
	Schedule Name

	1
	A-1 & A-2
	Total Costs (CPCM and WIC Implementation Services)

	2
	B
	WIC Farmer’s Market Implementation – Informational Use Only

	3
	C
	Hourly Labor Rates – Informational Use Only


In Tab 1 of the Cost Proposal, the offeror must acknowledge the requirements contained in this section of the RFP, and provide a summary of the Cost Proposal elements to follow.  The offeror must also provide any assumptions used in developing the Cost Proposal that are relevant to the Department’s understanding of the costs cited in the Cost Proposal.  In no way, should the offeror construe this instruction as meaning that it can change the format of the Proposal Pricing Schedules or provide anything less than the information requested in the Proposal Pricing Schedules contained in Section 5.3. The offeror may provide additional detail as attachments to the Cost Proposal, however, if the offeror feels that detail is helpful in supporting any assumptions or otherwise adds to the clarity of the Cost Proposal.
5.3
Pricing Schedules 

TAB 1 - Pricing Schedule A-1: Cost Per Case Month

The proposed cost consists of two components: 1) the CPCM cost component for the SNAP, Cash, and/or WIC programs and 2) the total WIC implementation services cost component.  
The CPCM Component presented in Pricing Schedule A-1 accounts for 80% of the total cost proposal point score if offering all options (SNAP, Cash, WIC).  This 80% (or 200 points) is divided by program:

· SNAP will be worth a maximum of 144 points which is 72% of the 200 points, because they have approximately 72% of the total monthly caseload.

· Cash will be worth a maximum of 8 points which is 4% of the 200 points, because they have approximately 4% of the total monthly caseload.

· WIC will be worth a maximum 48 points which is 24% of the 200 points, because they have approximately 24% of the total monthly caseload.

The CPCM Component presented in Pricing Schedule A-1 accounts for 80% of the total cost proposal point score if bidding the WIC only option.  WIC will be worth a maximum of 200 points which is 100% of the 200 points, because they have 100% of the total monthly caseload.
The CPCM Component presented in Pricing Schedule A-1 accounts for 100% of the total cost proposal point score if bidding SNAP, Cash option.  This 100% (or 250 points) is divided by program:

· SNAP will be worth a maximum of 238 points which is 95% of the 250 points, because they have approximately 95% of the total monthly caseload.

· Cash will be worth a maximum of 12 points which is 4% of the 250 points, because they have approximately 5% of the total monthly caseload.

The WIC implementation Cost Component total accounts for 20% of the total cost proposal point score.  Costs associated with the CPCM calculation and WIC implementation services shall be separate and not duplicated in any way.  

Pricing Schedule A-1: Cost per Case Month is the offeror’s proposed CPCM.  The cost of equipping non exempt EBT only reatailers will no longer be subsidized and those costs may not be included in contract pricing.  Costs for equipping exempt EBT retailers must be listed separately from CPCM.  Please refer to section 3.2.11.6.1-2 for Section 4002 of the Agricultural Act of 2014.
The Proposal Pricing Schedule must be signed and dated.  Only fill out the cost for the components you are proposing.
	Program
	Proposed Cost Per Case Month

	SNAP CPCM Cost Proposal 
	$

	Cash Program CPCM Cost Proposal
	$

	WIC Program CPCM Cost Proposal
	$


Note any explanations, disclosures, or additional information here.

__________________________________________________________________________

Signature



Title




Date 
TAB 1 - Pricing Schedule A-2: Total WIC Implementation Cost Component

Pricing Schedule A-2: Total WIC Implementation Cost Component, presents the total proposed cost associated with implementing WIC EBT services as described in this RFP. 
With regard to POS equipment, the WIC program will pay for POS equipment distributed during implementation and therefore POS equipment costs shall be included as part of WIC’s implementation service cost in Schedule A-2.  Additionally, all other equipment costs (e.g., for test environments or other state related purposes) to support implementation shall also be included in Schedule A-2, and excluded from any WIC CPCM calculations and proposed cost presented in Schedule A-1.  

WIC will not pay for POS equipment costs after implementation and therefore the offeror shall ensure that the following costs are excluded from Schedule A-2:

a. On-going POS equipment purchase

b. On-going POS equipment maintenance costs 

c. On-going POS equipment replacement costs

The Proposal Pricing Schedule must be signed and dated.

	WIC Program - Implementation Services Cost Proposal

	
	Product/Service
	Total Proposed Costs



	1
	WIC Implementation Services
	

	2
	POS Equipment Costs at Implementation
	

	3
	Other Equipment Costs at Implementation
	

	
	Total
	


Note any explanations, disclosures or additional information here.

__________________________________________________________________________


Signature



Title




Date

TAB 2 - Pricing Schedule B: WIC Farmer’s Market Implementation – Informational Use Only
The following Pricing Schedule will not be considered in cost proposal evaluations.  This schedule should include all costs associated with implementing a Farmer’s Market for WIC.  If the Department elects to implement a Farmer’s Market the costs for said implementation will be as defined in this schedule.  
The offeror should insert or delete additional lines as necessary.  The Proposal Pricing Schedule must be signed and dated.

	WIC Farmer’s Market - Implementation Services Cost Proposal

	
	Product/Service
	Total Proposed Costs



	1
	Farmer’s Market Implementation Services
	

	2
	POS Equipment Costs at Implementation
	

	3
	Other Equipment Costs at Implementation
	

	
	Total
	


__________________________________________________________________________

Signature



Title




Date 
TAB 3 - Pricing Schedule C: Hourly Labor Rates – Informational Use Only
The following Pricing Schedule will not be considered in cost proposal evaluations. Hourly labor rates shall be provided to the State for informational use to estimate and negotiate future State-initiated requests for system or service enhancements. The State requests hourly labor rates for the periods identified in the table below. 

The offeror should insert or delete additional lines as necessary.  The Proposal Pricing Schedule must be signed and dated.

	Schedule F - Cost Proposal

Hourly Labor Rates Cost Proposal

	
	Position or Job Title
	Hourly Rate

1/1/2015
through

12/31/2015
	Hourly Rate

1/1/2016
through

12/31/2016
	Hourly Rate

1/1/2017
through

12/31/2017

	
	Example: Systems Analyst
	$40/hr
	$40/hr
	$42/hr

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	


Note any explanations, disclosures or additional information about Schedule F here.

__________________________________________________________________________

Signature



Title




Date 
SECTION 6:  EVALUATION PROCESS
The State of Montana will conduct a comprehensive, fair, and impartial evaluation of each proposal received through a fair and methodical evaluation process.  Proposals will be evaluated on:

a. Proposed Service

b. Cost of Service

The DPHHS evaluation committee will perform the evaluation and make an award recommendation to the DPHHS selection committee, which will make a final recommendation to the State Procurement Bureau.  The evaluation process will include the following steps:

a. Review proposals to determine if all minimum mandatory requirements have been met

b. Review Technical Proposal content, references, and assign a preliminary score to each criterion for each proposal

c. Conduct oral presentations, at the State’s option and if the State deems it necessary, for technically qualified offerors to demonstrate their proposed service

d. Request clarification if necessary and at the State’s option
e. Adjust points or ratings as necessary

f. Review and score Cost Proposals

g. Make final selection recommendation to the State Procurement Bureau

The Technical Proposal evaluation, including the technical proposal material and oral presentations, is worth 80% of the total evaluation points.  The Cost Proposal will be evaluated separately and is worth 20% of the total evaluation points.  The cost proposal score is comprised of two components: 1) total CPCM and 2) total WIC implementation cost.  
6.1
basis of Evaluation

The evaluator/evaluation committee will review and evaluate the offers according to the following criteria based on a total number of 1,365 points:
	Category
	Total Possible

Points
	

	Technical Proposal
	900
	

	Technical Proposal Bonus for SNAP, Cash, WIC proposals
	90
	

	Oral Presentations (Optional)
	100
	

	Cost Proposal (for WIC Only and SNAP, Cash, WIC proposals)

Total CPCM (80% of total possible cost proposal points)
WIC Implementation Cost (20% of total possible cost proposal points)

	250
	

	Cost Proposal (SNAP, Cash proposals)

Total CPCM (100% of total possible cost proposal points)

	250
	

	Cost  Proposal Bonus for SNAP, Cash, WIC proposals
	25
	

	Total Possible Points:
	1,365
	


The Contractor Qualifications, Approach to Project Services, and Oral Presentation portions of the proposal will be evaluated based on the following Scoring Guide.  The Contractor’s Previous Successful Experience, Financial Stability, Corporate Integrity, and Client Reference Forms portions of the proposal will be evaluated on a pass/fail basis, any offeror receiving a “fail” may be eliminated from further consideration.  The Cost Proposal will be evaluated based on the formula set forth below.

Any response that fails to achieve a minimum score per the requirements of Section 2.4.5 will be eliminated from further consideration.  A “fail” for any individual evaluation criterion may result in proposal disqualification at the discretion of the procurement officer.

SCORING GUIDE

In awarding points to the evaluation criteria, the evaluator/evaluation committee will consider the following guidelines:
Superior Response (95-100%):  A superior response is an exceptional reply that completely and comprehensively meets all of the requirements of this RFP.  In addition, the response may cover areas not originally addressed within this RFP and/or include additional information and recommendations that would prove both valuable and beneficial to the agency. 

Good Response (75-94%):  A good response clearly meets all the requirements of this RFP and demonstrates in an unambiguous and concise manner a thorough knowledge and understanding of the project, with few deficiencies noted.  
Fair Response (60-74%):  A fair response minimally meets most requirements set forth in this RFP.  The offeror demonstrates some ability to comply with guidelines and requirements of the project, but knowledge of the subject matter is limited.

Failed Response (59% or less):  A failed response does not meet the requirements set forth in this RFP.  The offeror has not demonstrated sufficient knowledge of the subject matter.
6.2
EVALUATION CRITERIA

6.2.1
Technical Proposal Pass/Fail Criteria.  The offeror’s previous successful experience, corporate integrity, and financial stability are evaluated on a pass/fail basis.  The evaluation committee will use the criteria in the following table when evaluating these areas.
	Contractor Previous Successful Experience

	Criterion
	RFP Section
	Point Value

	Understanding of Montana’s Project and Previous Successful Experience 
	4.6.3
	Pass/Fail

	Financial Stability

	Criterion
	RFP Section
	Point Value

	Financial Stability and Internal Controls 
	4.10 and 4.14
	Pass/Fail

	Corporate Integrity

	Criterion
	RFP Section
	Point Value

	Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion
	4.6.2.1
	Pass/Fail

	Fraud or Criminal Offense, Antitrust Activities, Theft, Forgery, Bribery, Falsification or Destruction of Records, False Statements, and Stolen Property
	4.6.2.2

4.6.2.3
	Pass/Fail

	Public Transactions Terminated for Cause or Default
	4.6.2.4
	Pass/Fail

	Compliance with Sarbanes-Oxley Act
	4.6.2.5
	Pass/Fail

	Capable of Fully Performing the Contract Requirements.
	4.6.2.6
	Pass/Fail

	Client Reference Forms

	Criterion
	RFP Section
	Point Value

	Client Reference Form #1
	Appendix D
	Pass/Fail

	Client Reference Form #2
	Appendix D
	Pass/Fail

	Client Reference Form #3
	Appendix D
	Pass/Fail


6.2.2
Technical Proposal Scored Criteria.  The technical proposals will be evaluated by the evaluation committee using the evaluation criteria included in the table below.  Technical proposal criteria account for 1000 points, with 900 points for the technical proposal review, and 100 points reserved for the evaluation of oral presentations for qualified offerors, if deemed necessary.
Offerors who propose both SNAP, Cash, and WIC options will have a 10% bonus, 10% of their Technical Proposal Score, added to their total Technical Score.
Note:  Reference checks will also be made as part of the evaluation.  Reference checks may not be limited to specific customer references cited in the proposal but may include other State staff and vendor groups served on other contracts. Reference checks will be evaluated on a pass/fail basis.
The table below provides the breakdown of points for each of the scored evaluation criteria that will be considered by the evaluation team.

	Contractor Qualifications


26% of TOTAL points for a possible 325 points

	Criterion
	RFP Section
	Point Value

	Experience with EBT Systems and References
	4.6.1, 4.8, and 4.11.1
	130

	Corporate Capabilities and Commitment
	4.6.1
	75

	Staff Experience and Qualifications
	4.7, 4.9, and 4.11.2
	120

	Approach to Project
Services

46% of TOTAL points for a possible 575 points

	Criterion
	RFP Section
	Point Value

	Approach to Project Management 
	4.12.1 1-3

(3.2.1 through 3.2.1.3)
	25

	Approach to Project Status Reporting
	4.12.1 4

(3.2.1.4 through 3.2.1.9)
	25

	Approach to Project Communication
	4.12.1 5

(3.2.1.10)
	25

	Approach to Deliverable Review and Approval Process
	4.12.1 6

(3.2.1.11 through 3.2.1.12)
	25

	Approach to Change Control and Approval Process
	4.12.1 7

(3.2.1.13)
	25

	Approach to Transition Planning
	4.12.1 8

(3.2.1.14)
	50

	Approach to Compliance with Governing Regulations
	4.12.2

(3.2.2.4)
	50

	Approach to Design and Development Tasks 
	4.12.3

(3.2.4 and 3.2.5)
	50

	Approach to Implementation Tasks (Statewide & Farmer)
	4.12.4

(3.2.6 and 3.2.7)
	100

	Approach to Operations Phase
	4.12.5

(3.2.8)
	75

	Approach to Contract Turnover Task
	4.12.6

(3.2.9)
	25

	Compliance with Core EBT Functional Requirements
	4.13

(3.2.11)
	100

	Oral Presentations 


8% of TOTAL points for a possible 100 points

	Criterion
	RFP Section
	Point Value

	Presentation of key staff and overall effectiveness to communicate qualifications and expertise of key staff
	4.15

	10

	Capability of the presentation team to communicate effectively with each other and with the state, based on presentation
	
	10

	Demonstration of proposed acceptance and compliance with core EBT functional requirements presented throughout RFP Section 3.2.11
	
	10

	Demonstration of proposed approach to account management
	
	20

	Demonstration of proposed approach to complying with EBT card specifications, production, and distribution services.
	
	20

	Demonstration of proposed solution for Gateway switch and transaction processing
	
	10

	Demonstration of proposed solution for Help Desk, Customer Service, IVR, and Web Portal services.
	
	10

	Demonstration of proposed solution for EBT only equipment and offline retailer support, retailer management
	
	10


Technical scores may be adjusted based on clarifications to technical proposals requested in writing by the State.
6.2.3
Cost Proposal Scored Criteria.  Cost Proposal criteria account for 250 points, which is 20% of the total score.  Cost Proposals will be submitted on pricing schedules as described in Section 5.  Cost Proposal points will be awarded based on:

Pricing Schedule A-1: CPCM Component 

Pricing Schedule A-2: WIC Implementation Cost Component 

For offerors bidding both options (SNAP, Cash and WIC), the total points for cost proposal are 250 points.  50 of these points are for WIC implementation component.  The remaining 200 pointswill be divided by program:

· SNAP will be worth a maximum of 144 points which is 72% of the 200 points, because they have approximately 72% of the total monthly caseload.

· Cash will be worth a maximum of 8 points which is 4% of the 200 points, because they have approximately 4% of the total monthly caseload.

· WIC will be worth a maximum 48 points which is 24% of the 200 points, because they have approximately 24% of the total monthly caseload.
Offerors who propose both SNAP, Cash, and WIC options will have a 10% bonus, 10% of their Cost Proposal Score, added to their total Cost Proposal Score.
Cash
For offerors bidding the SNAP, Cash option, the total points for cost proposal are 250 points.  50 of these points are for WIC implementation component.
For offerors bidding both options (SNAP, Cash and WIC), the total points for cost proposal are 250 points.
Each program will be scored independently of the others.  So all SNAP CPCM will be compared to all the other SNAP costs, no matter which option is being bid, etc.

Cost Scoring Method

CPCM Cost Component Scoring

Lowest overall cost receives the maximum allotted points for that component.  All other proposals receive a percentage of the points (decimals will be rounded to the nearest whole number) available based on their cost relationship to the lowest.  Example:  Total possible points for the SNAP CPCM cost component is 144.  Offeror A's cost is $20,000.  Offeror B's cost is $30,000.  Offeror A would receive 144 points.  Offeror B would receive 96 points ($20,000/$30,000) = 67% x 144 points = 96).

Lowest Responsive Offer Total Cost
x
Number of available points = Award Points

This Offeror's Total Cost

Each component (SNAP, Cash, WIC and WIC implementation) will be scored this way and the points for each component will be added together to get the offerors total cost proposal score.

WIC Implementation Cost Component Scoring

Lowest overall cost receives the maximum allotted points.  All other proposals receive a percentage of the points (decimals will be rounded to the nearest whole number) available based on their cost relationship to the lowest.  Example:  Total possible points for the WIC Implementation cost component is 50.  Offeror A's cost is $20,000.  Offeror B's cost is $30,000.  Offeror A would receive 50 points.  Offeror B would receive 33.5 points ($20,000/$30,000) = 67% x 50 points = 33.5).

Lowest Responsive Offer Total Cost
x
Number of available points = Award Points

This Offeror's Total Cost

The point scores from each cost component calculation are then added for a total cost proposal score.
APPENDIX A:  STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
By submitting a response to this invitation for bid, request for proposal, limited solicitation, or acceptance of a contract, the vendor agrees to acceptance of the following Standard Terms and Conditions and any other provisions that are specific to this solicitation or contract. 

ACCEPTANCE/REJECTION OF BIDS, PROPOSALS, OR LIMITED SOLICITATION RESPONSES: The State reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids, proposals, or limited solicitation responses, wholly or in part, and to make awards in any manner deemed in the best interest of the State. Bids, proposals, and limited solicitation responses will be firm for 30 days, unless stated otherwise in the text of the invitation for bid, request for proposal, or limited solicitation.

ALTERATION OF SOLICITATION DOCUMENT: In the event of inconsistencies or contradictions between language contained in the State’s solicitation document and a vendor’s response, the language contained in the State’s original solicitation document will prevail. Intentional manipulation and/or alteration of solicitation document language will result in the vendor’s disqualification and possible debarment.

DEBARMENT: The contractor certifies, by submitting this bid or proposal, that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction (contract) by any governmental department or agency. If the contractor cannot certify this statement, attach a written explanation for review by the State.

DISABILITY ACCOMMODATIONS: The State of Montana does not discriminate on the basis of disability in admission to, access to, or operations of its programs, services, or activities. Individuals who need aids, alternative document formats, or services for effective communications or other disability-related accommodations in the programs and services offered are invited to make their needs and preferences known to this office.  Interested parties should provide as much advance notice as possible.

FAILURE TO HONOR BID/PROPOSAL: If a bidder/offeror to whom a contract is awarded refuses to accept the award (PO/contract) or fails to deliver in accordance with the contract terms and conditions, the department may, in its discretion, suspend the bidder/offeror for a period of time from entering into any contracts with the State of Montana.

PAYMENT TERM: All payment terms will be computed from the date of delivery of supplies or services OR receipt of a properly executed invoice, whichever is later. Unless otherwise noted in the solicitation document, the State is allowed 30 days to pay such invoices. All contractors will be required to provide banking information at the time of contract execution in order to facilitate State electronic funds transfer payments.

RECIPROCAL PREFERENCE: The State of Montana applies a reciprocal preference against a vendor submitting a bid from a state or country that grants a residency preference to its resident businesses. A reciprocal preference is only applied to an invitation for bid for supplies or an invitation for bid for nonconstruction services for public works as defined in section 18-2-401(9), MCA, and then only if federal funds are not involved. For a list of states that grant resident preference, see http://gsd.mt.gov/ProcurementServices/preferences.mcpx.

REFERENCE TO CONTRACT: The contract or purchase order number MUST appear on all invoices, packing lists, packages, and correspondence pertaining to the contract.

SHIPPING: Supplies shall be shipped prepaid, F.O.B. Destination, unless the contract specifies otherwise.

TAX EXEMPTION: The State of Montana is exempt from Federal Excise Taxes (#81-0302402).

U.S. FUNDS: All prices and payments must be in U.S. dollars.

WARRANTIES:

Warranty for Services:
The contractor warrants that it performs all services using reasonable care and skill and according to its current description (including any completion criteria) contained in this contract.  State agrees to provide timely written notice of any failure to comply with this warranty so that the contractor can take corrective action.
Warranty for Software:  For a period of ninety (90) days from the date of receipt of software, the contractor warrants that:  (i) the unmodified software will provide the features and functions, and will otherwise conform to all published documentation including on the contractor's website; and (ii) the media upon which the software is furnished will be free from defects in materials and workmanship under normal use and service.

Warranty for Hardware:

The contractor warrants that hardware provided is free from defects in materials and workmanship and conforms to the specifications. 

The warranty period for provided hardware is a fixed period commencing on the date specified in a statement of work or applicable contract. If the hardware does not function as warranted during the warranty period and the contractor is unable to either:  i) make it do so; or ii) replace it with one that is at least functionally equivalent, State may return it to the contractor for a full refund.
The parties agree that the warranties set forth above do not require uninterrupted or error-free operation of hardware or services unless otherwise stated in the specifications.

THESE WARRANTIES ARE THE STATE’S EXCLUSIVE WARRANTIES AND REPLACE ALL OTHER WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.
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APPENDIX B:  CONTRACT

1.
Parties

2.
Purpose

3.
Term of Contract – Contract Contingent on Funding

4.
Services to be Provided

5.
Consideration and Payments

6.
Creation and Retention of Records

7.
Accounting, Cost Principles, and Audit

8.
Conflicts of Interest and Antitrust Violations

9.
Reporting of False Claims, Fraud and Other Criminal Matters

10.
Assignment, Transfer, Delegation, and Subcontracting

11.
Contract Performance Security – All Forms Accepted 

12.
Limitation of State Liability

13.
Indemnification

14.
Insurance Coverage

15.
Compliance with Business, Tax, Labor, and Other Laws

16.
Software Ownership and License

17.
Patent and Copyright Protection

18.
Contract Oversight
19.
Civil Rights

20.
Federal Requirements

21.
General Prohibition on Contracting with Federally Debarred Entities or Persons 

22.
Confidentiality of Personal Information and Compliance with the Federal HIPAA and HITECH Privacy and Security Requirements 

23.
Business Associate Obligations 

24.
Business/Corporate Trade Secret and Other Proprietary Information and Public Access

25.
Property 

26.
Public Information and Disclaimers 

27.
Technology Access for Persons Who Are Blind or Visually Impaired

28.
Departmental Guidance

29.
Registration of Out of State Entities

30.
Department Personnel

31.
Contractor Personnel

32.
Meetings and Reports

33.
Performance Assessments and Corrective Actions

34.
Event of Breach – Remedies

35.
Force Majeure

36.
Contract Termination

37.
Transition Assistance

38.
Choice of Law, Remedies, and Venue

39.
Scope, Amendment, and Interpretation of Contract

Attachment A:
Contractor’s RFP Response or Statement of Work

Attachment B:
Project Budget

Attachment C:
Department’s Certification Form (06-11)  

Attachment D:
OMB 424B (Rev. 7-97) Form

Attachment E:
Standard Form LLL

Attachment F:
Sources of HIPAA Information

Attachment G:
Department’s Notice of Privacy Practices

CONTRACT FROM THE MONTANA

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

CONTRACT NUMBER

1.
PARTIES 

THIS CONTRACT, is entered into between the Montana Department of Public Health and Human Services, (hereinafter referred to as the "Department"), whose address, phone number, and email address are P.O. Box 4210, Helena, Montana 59604,  406‑444‑____, and ____________________ , and the ________________________________________ whose nine digit Federal ID Number is ___________________________, and whose address, phone number, and email address are____________________, __________________, ________________, ______, ____________ ,.___.___._____, and __________________.

THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

2.
PURPOSE

The purpose of this Contract is to provide Electronic Benefit Transfer Contractor Services for Montana’s Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP); Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF); and Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children (WIC).
3.
TERM OF CONTRACT – CONTRACT CONTINGENT ON FUNDING

3.11
The term of this Contract for the purpose of delivery of services is from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018 unless terminated otherwise in accordance with the provisions of this Contract.  This Contract may be extended in two year intervals if the parties agree to the extension prior to the end of the current term of this Contract.  This Contract, including any renewals, may not exceed a total of ten (10) years, at the option of the State. 

3.2
The term of this Contract is subject to termination under Section 36 if at any time during the term of this Contract the Department determines 1) that the monies to fund this Contract are no longer available as a whole or in part through federal or state appropriation or authorization; or 2) the Contractor is failing as determined by the Department to meet any of the performance, fiscal and reporting requirements under this Contract.

3.3
The completion date of performance for purposes of issuance of final payment under this Contract is the date upon which the Department determines that: 1) there remain no further performance requirements or corrective actions to be performed by the Contractor; and 2) all final reports as required under this Contract are appropriately submitted and are satisfactory in form and content as determined by the Department. 

3.4
The Contractor, after termination of this Contract, remains subject to and obligated to comply with all legal and continuing contractual obligations arising in relation to its duties and responsibilities that may arise under this Contract including, but not limited to, state and federal reporting requirements, record retention, providing access and information for audits, indemnification, insurance, the protection of confidential information, recipient grievances and appeals, and property ownership and use.

4.
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED

The Contractor agrees to provide to the State Electronic Benefit Transfer (EBT) Services for Montana’s Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF or Cash) Program, and Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC).  Montana seeks a broad range of EBT services and functions to support the electronic delivery of health and human services and benefits to eligible participants in Montana. The EBT Contractor must support the Federal requirement of processing interoperable SNAP, Cash, and/or WIC transactions.  Services provided are more fully defined in Attachment A, Contractor’s response to RFP15-2883P.

5. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENTS
5.1
 Consideration

In consideration of the services to be provided through this Contract, the Contractor is to receive from the Department payment as set forth in Attachment B.  

5.2
Total Consideration Available

The total consideration provided to the Contractor for the purposes of this Contract may not exceed insert total amount.

5.3
Billing for Performance

The Contractor may only bill for services that have been performed.

5.4
Billing Procedures and Requirements
The Contractor must bill in accordance with the procedures and requirements adopted by the Department. The Contractor must submit invoices for payment on forms provided by the Department.  Invoices must be submitted to the Department in accordance with the following schedule:

Insert schedule.

5.5
Expenditures of Monies to be in Conformance with Authorities

The monies provided through this Contract must be expended in accordance with the federal and state authorities governing: 1) the delivery of the contracted for services, 2) the receipt and expenditure of the monies provided through this Contract, and 3) the conduct of the Contractor as a contractor for the State.

5.6
Withholding for Failure to Perform

The Department may withhold payment at any time during the term of the Contract and may withhold final payments under the Contract, if the Contractor is failing to perform its duties and responsibilities in accordance with the terms of this Contract and other authorities governing: 1) the delivery of the contracted for services, 2) the receipt and expenditure of the monies provided through this Contract, and 3) the conduct of the Contractor as a contractor for the State.

The Department will provide the Contractor written notice of both the amount of withhold and of the basis for the withholding of payment.
5.7
Adjustments to Consideration

The consideration provided to the Contractor under this Contract may be adjusted by the Department in its discretion based on audit findings, failings in the Contractor's delivery of services, or reductions of funding.  

5.8
Erroneous and Improper Payments

The Contractor may not retain any payments made by the Department that are erroneously made or improperly obtained by the Contractor, its employees, or its agents. An erroneously made payment or improperly received payment is a debt of the Contractor owing to the Department. The Contractor must immediately notify the Department upon determination that a payment may be erroneous or improper. The Contractor is obligated to return an erroneous or improper payment within 30 days of the Department’s request that the payment be returned. If the Contractor does not return the payment, the Department may deduct the payment from any future payments to be made to the Contractor. The Department may recover an erroneous or improper payment by a means available under law or through this Contract.

5.9
Sources of Funding

The sources of the funding for this Contract are insert amount from the state general fund and, for the balance, federal grants from the USDA Food and Nutrition Services (FNS).
6.
CREATION AND RETENTION OF RECORDS

6.1
The Contractor must maintain records documenting compliance with the performance and financial requirements stated in federal and state law and in this Contract along with incorporated attachments. Records include all written and electronic documents memorializing and reporting on performance and financial accounting and any other documents as required by this Contract, state and federal laws, or other authorities or as otherwise maintained by the Contractor. The Contractor, upon request, must make these records available in a timely and unrestricted manner to the Department, the federal Departments of Health and Human Services, Education, Energy, and Agriculture and to other authorized federal and state entities, their auditors, investigators and agents.

6.2
Records must be retained for a period of eight years from the completion date of this Contract. If any litigation, review, claim or audit is started before the expiration of the eight-year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, reviews, claims or audit findings involving the records have been resolved. 

6.3
The Contractor must provide the Department and its authorized agents with reasonable access to records the Contractor maintains for purposes of this Contract. The Contractor must make the records available at all reasonable times at the Contractor’s general offices.  

7.
ACCOUNTING, COST PRINCIPLES, AND AUDIT

7.1
Accounting Standards

The Contractor must maintain for the purposes of this Contract an accounting system of procedures and practices that conforms to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), as interpreted by the Department and other pertinent federal and state authorities, and that conforms to any other accounting requirements required by the Department or other entities or that may be required under 18-4-311, MCA or any pertinent federal and state authorities. The Department in its discretion may accept compliance for purposes of this section through the adoption by the Contractor of and the Contractor’s conformance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

7.2
Internal Controls

The Contractor must maintain and document an adequate system of internal controls that address the five elements of internal controls: 1) the control environment, 2) the risk environment, 3) the risk assessment, 4) the control activities, 5) information, communications, and monitoring.

7.3
Audits and Other Investigations

The Department, the federal Department of Health and Human Services, Agriculture, Energy, or Education and other authorized federal and state entities, their auditors, investigators and agents, in accordance with this Contract and applicable legal authorities, may conduct at any time during or after the term of this Contract audits and other investigations to assure the appropriate administration and expenditure of the monies provided to the Contractor through this Contract and to assure the appropriate administration and delivery of services delivered through this Contract. 

7.4
Records Access

The Contractor during the term of this Contract and for eight years thereafter must provide, in accordance with 18-1-118, MCA and other pertinent federal and state authorities, access to all of the Contractor’s records, materials and information including any and all audit reports with supporting materials and work documents pertinent to the delivery of services provided under this Contract.  Access is to be available for purposes of audit and other administrative activities and investigations.  Access must be provided in a timely and unrestricted manner and in a format acceptable to the Department. Access is to be available for the Department, and as applicable, the federal Departments of Health and Human Services, Agriculture, Energy, or Education, and other authorized federal and state entities, their auditors, investigators and agents.  The entities and their agents may record any information and make copies of any materials necessary for the conduct of an audit or other administrative activity or investigation.

7.5
Corrective Action

The Contractor must, as directed by the Department or other auditing and investigatory entities, take action to resolve adverse audit findings as identified by the Department or other entity. The Contractor must prepare a corrective action plan that addresses the particular audit findings necessitating corrective action and that specifies the actions the Contractor proposes to undertake.  The Department may direct the Contractor to modify the corrective action plan as the Department determines is necessary and appropriate.

7.6
For Profit Requirements 

A for-profit Contractor, receiving monies other than through a standardized rate reimbursement system, must comply with the accounting and audit requirements in 45 CFR 74.26(d) and the cost principles and procedures for commercial organizations in 48 CFR 31 concerning the use of the funds provided under this Contract in the version in effect on the date this Contract is designed by both parties.  Pursuant to 45 CFR 74.26(d), a "for-profit" organization may either have an audit conducted in accordance with the Federal Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations" or the Government Auditing Standards.

8.
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND ANTITRUST VIOLATIONS
8.1
The Contractor must comply with applicable state and federal laws, rules, and regulations regarding conflicts of interest in the performance of its duties under this Contract. The Contractor may not have any interest or acquire any direct or indirect interest that conflicts or would conflict in any manner or degree with its performance under this Contract. The Contractor must operate with complete independence and objectivity without actual, potential or apparent conflict of interest with respect to the activities conducted under this Contract. The Contractor must establish safeguards to prohibit board members, officers and employees from using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal gain.

8.2 
The Contractor, may not engage in any price fixing activities that violate the federal antitrust Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1 – 7. Collusion to fix prices may constitute further violations of federal legal authorities including those prohibiting mail or wire fraud and false statement. Violations by the Contractor of federal antitrust and other legal authorities are bases for termination of this Contract.

8.3
The Contractor, may not engage in any kickback schemes that violate the federal Anti-Kickback Act, 41 U.S.C. §§ 51-58
8.4
The Contractor may not violate 18-4-141, MCA or other applicable state legal authorities by colluding with other contractors for the purpose of gaining unfair advantages for it or other contractors or for the purpose of providing the services at a noncompetitive price or otherwise in a noncompetitive manner.
8.5
The Contractor may not enter into any Contract or other arrangement for the use, purchase, sale, lease or rental of real property, personal property or services funded with monies of this Contact if an employee, administrator, officer or director of the Contractor may receive a financial or other valuable benefit as a result. The Department may grant exceptions to this prohibition where it determines that the particular circumstances warrant the granting of an exception.

9.
REPORTING OF FALSE CLAIMS, FRAUD, AND OTHER CRIMINAL MATTERS

9.1
The Contractor and its employees, agents and subcontractors must report, relative to the federal source of the funding for this Contract, either to the Office Of Inspector General for the federal Department Of Health & Human Services, the federal Department Of Education or the federal Department Of Agriculture any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, contractor, subgrantee, subcontractor, or other person has submitted a false claim under the federal False Claims Act (31 U.S.C. §§ 3729–3733, the “Lincoln Law”) or has committed a criminal or civil violation of legal authorities pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct involving those funds.

9.2
The Contractor and its employees, agents and subcontractors must report to the Department or other appropriate state authority any credible evidence that an act in violation of the Montana False Claims Act, at Title 17, chapter,8, part 4, MCA, has been committed.
9.3


Any Contractor and its subcontractors furnishing items or services funded with Medicaid monies at more than a single location or under more than one contractual or other payment arrangement and receiving aggregate payments of Medicaid monies totaling $5,000,000 or more annually must comply with the requirements of 42 U.S.C. 1396a(a)(68). It is the responsibility of the Contractor to establish written policies to be presented in handbooks and otherwise for all employees that include detailed educational information about the federal False Claims Act and the other provisions specified in section 42 U.S.C. 1396a(a)(68).
10.
ASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, DELEGATION, AND SUBCONTRACTING

10.1
The Contractor may not assign, transfer, delegate, or subcontract, in whole or part, this Contract or any right or duty arising under this Contract unless the Department in writing from the Department’s Contract liaison expressly approves the assignment, transfer, delegation, or subcontract. Upon award of the Contract to the Contractor, delegations and subcontracts, if expressly stated by the Contractor in the Contractor’s proposal to the Department and if detailed as to the duties and responsibilities delegated or subcontracted and as to the parties that are to be the delegatees or subcontractors, stand as approved by the Department.

10.2
Any assignment, transfer, delegation, or subcontract entered into without express approval from the Department is null and void.

10.3
The Contractor must submit written requests for an assignment, transfer, delegation, or subcontract to the Department’s contract liaison as provided for in Section 30.

10.4
An assignment, transfer, delegation, or subcontract entered into by the Contractor must be in writing, must be subject to the terms and conditions of this Contract, and must contain any further conditions as may be required by the Department.

10.5
The Department’s approval of any assignment, transfer, delegation, or subcontract neither makes the Department a party to that agreement nor creates any right, claim or interest in favor of any party to that agreement against the Department.

10.6
The Contractor must immediately notify the Department of any litigation concerning any assignment, transfer, delegation or subcontract.

10.7
The Contractor must, in accordance with the provisions of this Contract regarding indemnification, indemnify and hold the Department harmless with respect to any suit or action arising out of or brought by any party to an assignment, transfer, delegation or subcontract.

11.
CONTRACT PERFORMANCE SECURITY 

11.1
Contract performance security must be provided in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit from a single financial institution and supplied on the State of Montana's designated form found at http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/GSDDocuments.aspx and entitled "Irrevocable Letter of Credit";
11.2
The Contractor must provide contract performance security based upon 15% of the contract total.

11.3
The contract performance security must be provided by the Contractor within 10 working days from the Request for Documents Notice.  

11.4
This contract performance security must remain in effect for the entire term of the Contract.  An irrevocable letter of credit must be issued to the State of Montana if this Contract is renewed.

11.5
The contract performance security must be provided to the State of Montana within 10 working days from the Request for Documents Notice. This security must remain in effect for the entire term of the Contract.  A new surety bond must be issued to the State of Montana if this Contract is renewed.

11.6
The contract performance security must be provided to the following address: State Procurement Bureau, P.O. Box 200135, Helena MT 59620-0135.

(See Title 18, chapter 4, part 3, MCA, Title 30, chapter 5, MCA, and ARM 2.5.502.)

12.  
LIMITATIONS OF STATE LIABILITY

Any liabilities of the State of Montana and its officials, employees and agents are governed and limited by the provisions of Title 2, chapter 9, MCA, for all acts, omissions, negligence, alleged acts or omissions, negligent conduct, and alleged negligent conduct related to this Contract.
13.
INDEMNIFICATION

13.1
The following apply for the purpose of this section:

13.1.1
“Contractor” includes the Contractor and any officer, employee, volunteer, agent, subcontractor, representative or assignee of the Contractor and any other person, partnership, corporation, or other legal entity performing work or services, or providing materials under this Contract for or on behalf of the Contractor.

13.1.2
“State of Montana” includes the State of Montana and the Department, and any of their officials, employees, volunteers or agents acting within the scope of their duties and responsibilities.

13.1.3
“Allegation of liability” includes both actual and alleged claims, demands, and legal causes of action.

13.2
The Contractor shall at its sole cost and expense indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State of Montana against any allegations of liability of any kind, including personal injury, death, or damage to property, and any resulting judgments, losses, liability, penalties, costs, fees, cost of legal defense and attorney’s fees in favor of third parties, including the officers, employees and agents of the Contractor.  

13.3
The obligation of the Contractor to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State of Montana under this Section extends only to losses, liabilities, damages, costs, or fees resulting or arising in whole or in part from any actual or alleged actions, failures, or omissions of the Contractor and of the State of Montana as jointly liable with the Contractor relating to performance under this Contract, including any actual or alleged:

· acts, errors, omissions or negligence, whether willful or not;

· failure or omission to perform the duties, responsibilities or services under this Contract; or

· failure to comply with any federal, state, and local legal authorities, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the services or work to be provided under this Contract or applicable to the work environment or employment practices of the Contractor.

The obligation of the Contractor to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the State of Montana under this section does not extend to losses, liabilities, damages, costs, or fees arising solely out of or resulting solely from the actions, failures, or omissions of the State of Montana.

13.4
The Department must give the Contractor notice of any allegation of liability and at the Contractor’s expense, the Department shall cooperate in the defense of the matter.

13.5
If the Department determines the Contractor has failed to fulfill its obligations as the indemnitor under this Section, the Department may proceed to undertake its own defense.  If the Department undertakes its own defense, the Contractor must reimburse the Department for any and all costs to the Department resulting from settlements, judgments, losses, liabilities, and penalties and for all the costs of defense incurred by the Department including but not limited to attorney fees, investigation, discovery, experts, and court costs.

14.
INSURANCE COVERAGE

14.1
General Liability Insurance

14.1.1
The Contractor must maintain for the duration of this Contract, at its cost, primary standard general liability insurance coverage. The coverage must include tort and other claims of liability arising from personal harms or losses, bodily injuries, death, or damages to or losses of real and personal property or from other liabilities that may be claimed in relation to the Contractor’s performance under this Contract. The insurance must cover claims as may be caused by any act, omission or negligence of the Contractor or the Contractor's officers, employees, agents, or assigns.
14.1.2
The Contractor must maintain general liability insurance occurrence coverage with combined single limits for bodily injury, personal harm or loss, and property damage or loss of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate per year.
14.1.3
The coverage must be from an insurer with a Best’s Rating of no less than A- or through a qualified self-insurer plan, implemented in accordance with Montana law and subject to the approval of the Department.
14.1.4 The coverage must be primary as to the State of Montana, its officials, employees, agents, and volunteers and must apply separately to each project or location. The coverage must specify that the State, inclusive if its officials, employees, agents, and volunteers, is covered as additional insured for liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the Contractor, inclusive of the insured’s general supervision of the Contractor’s officers, employees, and agents and of the Contractor’s performance, the services and products, and the completed operations, and arising in relation to the premises owned, leased, occupied, or used by the Contractor.

14.2
Professional Liability Insurance

14.2.1
The Contractor must maintain for the duration of this Contract, at its sole cost and expense, professional insurance coverage to cover such claims as may be caused by any error, omission, or other negligent act of the Contractor, as a professional, and any other employed or contractually retained professional staff to whom coverage may be made applicable.
14.2.2
The coverage must be occurrence coverage with combined single limits for each wrongful act of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate per year.
14.2.3
If “occurrence” coverage is unavailable or cost prohibitive, the Contractor may provide “claims made” coverage provided the following conditions are met: (1) the commencement date of this Contract must not fall outside the effective date of insurance coverage and it will be the retroactive date for insurance coverage in future years; and (2) the claims made policy must have a three-year tail for claims that are filed after the cancellation or expiration date of the policy.

14.2.4
The coverage must be from an insurer with a Best’s Rating of no less than A- or through a qualified self-insurer plan, implemented in accordance with Montana law and subject to the approval of the Department.
14.3
General Requirements

14.3.1
The Contractor, subject to review and approval of the policy by the Department, may obtain comprehensive coverage through an umbrella policy if the coverage amounts and conditions of the umbrella policy conform with the requirements of this Section.
14.3.3
The Contractor must provide the Department prior to performance with a copy of the certificate of insurance showing compliance with the requisite coverage. All insurance required under this Contract must remain in effect for the entire Contract period. The Contractor must notify the Department immediately of any material change in insurance coverage and must provide to the Department copies of any new certificate or of any revisions to the existing certificate issued.
14.3.4
The Department may require the Contractor to provide copies of any insurance policies pertinent to these requirements, any endorsements to those policies, and any subsequent modifications of those policies.
14.3.5
The Contractor’s insurance coverage is the primary insurance in respect to the State of Montana, inclusive of its officials, agents, employees, and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the State of Montana, its officials, employees, agents, and volunteers is in excess of the Contractor’s insurance and does not contribute with it.

14.3.6
Any deductible or self-insured retention must be declared to and approved by the Department.  At the request of the Department, the Contractor must:

14.3.6.1
Reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions in relation to the State, its officials, employees, and volunteers; or

14.3.6.2
Procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claims administration, and defense expenses.

14.3.7
For purposes of this section the term Contractor's agents is inclusive of subcontractors, representatives, assignees, volunteers, and any other person, partnership, corporation, or other legal entity performing work or services, or providing materials under this Contract.
15.
COMPLIANCE WITH BUSINESS, TAX, LABOR, AND OTHER LAWS

15.1
The Contractor assures the Department that the Contractor is legally authorized under state and federal business and tax laws to conduct business in accordance with this Contract.

15.2
The Contractor and its employees, agents and subcontractors are not employees of the State and the Contractor may not in any manner represent or maintain the appearance that they are employees.
15.3
The Contractor, at all times during the term of this Contract, must maintain coverage for the Contractor and the Contractor’s employees through workers’ compensation, occupational disease, and any similar or related statutorily required insurance program. The Contractor must provide the Department with proof of necessary insurance coverage as it may be issued to the Contractor and must immediately inform the Department of any change in the status of the Contractor's coverage.

15.3.1
If the Contractor has received, for workers’ compensation and other purposes, an independent Contractor certification from the Montana Department Of Labor And Industry as to the Contractor, the Contractor must provide the Department with a copy of the current certification and must immediately inform the Department of any change in the status of the Contractor's certification. If the Contractor’s occupation under Montana law is a recognized professional occupation that when practiced as an independent business may be conducted without the independent contractor certification, this requirement is not applicable.

15.4
The Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors must report to the Department or other appropriate state authority any credible evidence that an act in violation of the Montana False Claims Act, at Title 17, chapter 8, part 4, MCA, has been committed.

15.5
The Contractor, as a Contractor for the State, must comply on an on-going basis with the Montana prevailing wage requirements in Title 18, chapter 2, part 4, MCA unless the services contracted for are “human services” or one of the other exclusions from the prevailing wage requirement.

15.6
The Contractor may not use in the performance of its duties and responsibilities under this Contract a person as an independent contractor unless that person is currently and remains certified in accordance with Montana law as an independent contractor, or is otherwise exempt under Montana legal authorities from the requirement to possess an independent contractor certification.

15.7
The Contractor is solely responsible for and must meet all labor, health, safety, and other legal requirements, including payment of all applicable taxes, premiums, deductions, withholdings, overtime, and other amounts, which may be legally required with respect to the Contractor, the Contractor's employees, and any persons providing services on behalf of the Contractor under this Contract.

15.8
The Contractor must comply with all applicable federal and state laws, executive orders, federal administrative directives, federally approved waivers for program administration, regulations, and written policies, including those pertaining to licensing.

15.9
The Contractor may only employ, contract or otherwise engage personnel who are authorized to work in the United State in accordance with applicable federal and state laws.
15.10
Section 13.0 of this Contract regarding indemnification applies with respect to any and all claims, obligations, liabilities, costs, attorney fees, losses, or suits involving the Department that accrue or result from the Contractor’s failure to comply with this section, or from any finding by any legal authority that any person providing services on behalf of the Contractor under this Contract is an employee of the Department.
16.
SOFTWARE OWNERSHIPAND LICENSES
16.1
Custom Software
Any deliverable, including without limitation any software, developed by the Contractor with monies from the consideration for this Contract (the “Custom Software”), is the exclusive property of The Department. 

16.2
Ownership Rights
16.2.1
The Department owns all right, title, and interest in and to the deliverables provided by the Contractor, including without limitation the specifications, the work plan, and the custom software, except that the deliverables will not include the third party software and the associated documentation for purposes of this Section. The Contractor must take all actions necessary and transfer ownership of the deliverables to the Department, including, without limitation, the custom software and associated documentation on final acceptance or as otherwise provided in this Contract.

16.2.2
The Contractor must furnish custom software and documentation, upon request of the Department, in accordance with applicable state law. All deliverables, in whole and in part, are deemed works made for hire of the Department for all purposes of copyright law, and copyrights belong solely to the Department. To the extent that any such deliverable does not qualify as a work for hire under applicable law, and to the extent that the deliverable includes materials subject to copyright, patent, trade secret, or other proprietary right protection, the Contractor must assign, and hereby assigns, all right, title, and interest in and to deliverables, including without limitation all copyrights, inventions, patents, trade secrets, and other proprietary rights therein, including renewals thereof, to the Department.

16.2.3
The Contractor must, at the expense of the Department, assist the Department or its nominees to obtain copyrights, trademarks, or patents for all such deliverables in the United States and any other countries. The Contractor must execute all papers and give all facts known to it necessary to secure United States or foreign country copyrights and patents, and to transfer or cause to transfer to The Department all the right, title, and interest in and to such deliverables. The Contractor also may not to assert any moral rights under applicable copyright law with regard to such deliverables.
16.2.4
The Department has ownership and unlimited rights to use, disclose, duplicate, or publish all information and data developed, derived, documented, or furnished by the Contractor under or resulting from this Contract. Such data includes all results, technical information, and materials developed for and/or obtained by the Department from the Contractor in the performance of the services hereunder, including but not limited to all reports, surveys, plans, charts, recordings (video and/or sound), pictures, drawings, analyses, source and object code, graphic representations, computer programs and printouts, notes and memoranda, and documents whether finished or unfinished, which result from or are prepared in connection with the Services performed as a result of this Contract. 

16.3
Proprietary Notices
The Contractor must produce and include the Department’s copyright and other proprietary notices and product identifications provided by the Contractor on such copies, in whole or in part, or on any form of the deliverables.
16.4
Third Party Software and Documentation Licenses

16.4.1
The Contractor grants the Department a non-exclusive, perpetual, license for the Department to use the third party software and its associated documentation for its internal business purposes. The Department is entitled to use the third party software on the equipment or any replacement equipment used by the Department, and with any replacement third party software chosen by the Department, without additional charges. Terms in any licenses for third party software must be consistent with the requirements of this Section.

16.4.2
The licenses hereunder are granted as of the date when such third party software is installed and certified by the Contractor as operational, and the licenses must continue until the Department permanently discontinues the use of the third party software.

16.4.3
Prior to utilizing any third party software product that may be included as part of a software deliverable to the Department, The Contractor must provide to the Department copies of the license agreement from the licensor of the third party software to allow the Department to pre-approve the license agreement that must, at a minimum, provide the Department with necessary rights consistent with the short and long term goals of this Contract. The Contractor must assign to the Department the licenses for the third party software upon final acceptance.

16.4.4
The Contractor must, during the project, maintain any and all third party software products at their most current version or no more than one version back from the most current version. However, the Contractor may not maintain any third party software versions, including one version back, if any such version would prevent the Department from using any functions, in whole or in part, or would cause deficiencies in the system.

16.5
State and Federal Governments
In accordance with 45 CFR Part 95.617, and 7 CFR Part 277.18 (k) (1), all appropriate State and Federal agencies  have a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, translate, or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use for Federal Government purposes all materials, the custom software and modifications thereof, and associated documentation designed, developed, or installed with federal financial participation under this Contract, including but not limited to those materials covered by copyright, all software source and object code, instructions, files, and documentation composing the system.

17.
PATENT AND COPYRIGHT PROTECTION 

17.1
Third-Party Claim
In the event of any claim by any third party against the Department that the products furnished under this Contract infringe upon or violate any patent or copyright, the Department shall promptly notify Contractor.  Contractor shall defend such claim, in the Department's name or its own name, as appropriate, but at the Contractor's expense. The Contractor will indemnify the Department against all costs, damages, and attorney's fees that accrue as a result of such claim. Such indemnification will be conditional upon the following:

17.1.1
The Department will promptly notify the Contractor of the claim in writing; and

17.1.2
The Department will allow the Contractor to control, and will cooperate with the Contractor in the defense and any related settlement negotiations, provided that:

17.1.2.1
The Contractor will permit the Department to participate in the defense and settlement of any such claim, at the Department's own expense, with counsel of its choosing; and

17.1.2.2
The Contractor shall not enter into or agree to any settlement containing any admission of or stipulation to any guilt, fault, liability, or wrongdoing on the part of the Department, its elected and appointed officials, agents or employees without the Department’s prior written consent.

17.2
Product Subject of Claim
If any product furnished is likely to or does become the subject of a claim of infringement of a patent or copyright, then Contractor may, at its option, procure for the Department the right to continue using the alleged infringing product, or modify the product so that it becomes non-infringing or replace it with one that is at least functionally equivalent.  If none of the above options can be accomplished, or if the use of such product by the Department shall be prevented by injunction, the Department agrees to return the product to the Contractor on written request.  The Contractor will then give the Department a credit equal to the amount paid to the Contractor for the creation of the Work Product.  This is the Contractor's entire obligation to the Department regarding a claim of infringement.  The Department is not precluded from seeking other remedies available to it hereunder, including Section 12, and in equity or law for any damages it may sustain due to its inability to continue using such product.

17.3
Claims for Which Contractor is Not Responsible
The Contractor has no obligation regarding any claim based on any of the following except where the Contractor has agreed in writing, either separately or within this Contract, to such use that is the basis of the claim:

17.3.1
Anything the Department provided which is incorporated into a Work Product except:

17.3.1.1
Where the Contractor knew (and the Department did not know) such thing was infringing at the time of its incorporation into a Work Product but failed to advise the Department; or

17.3.1.2
Where the claim would not have been brought except for such incorporation;

17.3.2
The Department’s modification of a Work Product furnished under this Contract;

17.3.3
The use of a Work Product in a manner that could not be reasonably contemplated within the agreed upon scope of the applicable project; or

17.3.4
Infringement by a non-Contractor Work Product alone.

18.
CONTRACT OVERSIGHT

18.1
CIO Oversight
The Chief Information Officer (CIO) for the State of Montana, or designee, may perform contract oversight activities. Such activities may include the identification, analysis, resolution, and prevention of deficiencies that may occur within the performance of contract obligations. The CIO may require the Department to issue a right to assurance or a stop work order.

18.2
Right to Assurance
If the Department, in good faith, has reason to believe that the Contractor does not intend to, or is unable to perform, or has refused to perform or continue performing all material obligations under this Contract, the Department may demand in writing that the Contractor give a written assurance of intent to perform. Failure by the Contractor to provide written assurance within the number of days specified in the demand (in no event less than five business days) may, at the Department's option, be the basis for terminating this Contract under the terms and conditions or other rights and remedies available by law or provided by this Contract.

18.3
Stop Work Order
The Department may, at any time, by written order to the Contractor, require the Contractor to stop any or all parts of the work required by this Contract for the period of days indicated by the Department after the order is delivered to the Contractor.  The order shall be specifically identified as a stop work order issued under this clause.  Upon receipt of the order, the Contractor shall immediately comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the incurrence of costs allocable to the work covered by the order during the period of work stoppage.  If a stop work order issued under this clause is canceled or the period of the order or any extension expires, the Contractor shall resume work.  The Department Project Manager shall make the necessary adjustment in the delivery schedule or Contract price, or both and this Contract shall be amended in writing accordingly. 

19.
CIVIL RIGHTS

19.1
Discrimination Prohibited Federal and State Authorities
The Contractor, in accordance with federal and state law cited herein and as otherwise may be applicable, may not discriminate in any manner against any person on the basis of race, color, religion, creed, political ideas, sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, or national origin.
19.2
Montana Human Rights Act

The Contractor in the performance of this Contract must act in compliance with the applicable anti-discrimination requirements of the Montana Human Rights Act at part 3 of Title 49, chapter 2, MCA. 

19.3
Montana Governmental Code of Fair Practices

As implemented by this provision, the Contractor is prohibited by the Montana Governmental Code of Fair Practices at 49-3-205, 49-3-206, and 49-3-207, MCA from discriminating on the basis of race, color, religion, creed, political ideas, sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, or national origin in the performance of this Contract or in the delivery of state services or funding on behalf of the State.  The Contractor may not receive funds from the State if the Contractor engages in discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, creed, political ideas, sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, or national origin.

As implemented by this provision, the Contractor, in accordance with the Montana Governmental Code of Fair Practices at 49-3-207, MCA, must for purposes of performance of this Contract hire persons on the basis of merit and qualifications directly related to the requirements of the particular position being filled.

19.4
Compliance with Federal and State Authorities
The Contractor must comply with the applicable provisions of:

1.
The Montana Human Rights Act (49-2-101, et seq., MCA);

2.
The Montana Governmental Code of Fair Practices (49-3-101, et seq. MCA);

3.
The federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d, et seq.), prohibiting discrimination based on race, color, or national origin;

4.
The federal Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101, et seq.), prohibiting discrimination based on age;

5.
The Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. 1681), prohibiting discrimination based upon gender;

6.
Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), prohibiting discrimination based upon disability;

7.
The federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101, et seq.), prohibiting discrimination based upon disability;

8.
The federal Executive Orders 11246 and 11375 and 41 CFR Part 60, requiring equal employment opportunities in employment practices; and

9.
The federal executive Order 13166 requiring facilitation of access for persons with limited English proficiency to federally funded services.


19.5
Civil Rights Violations

The Department may undertake any and all actions, inclusive of contractual termination, necessary to remedy any prohibited discriminatory action by the Contractor or to remedy any failure by the Contractor to carry out an affirmative action as required in federal or state law.

19.6
USDA Non-Discrimination Requirements
In accordance with federal law and U.S. Department of Agriculture policy, the following provision governs expenditures of monies received from that Department:

The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) prohibits discrimination in all of its programs and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, gender, religion, age, disability, political beliefs, sexual orientation or marital or family status.  (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.)  Persons with disabilities who require alternative means for communication of program information (Braille, large print, audiotape, etc.) should contact USDA's TARGET Center at: (202) 720-2600 (voice and TDD).

To file a complaint of discrimination, write: USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, Room 326-W, Whitten Building, 14th and Independence Avenue, SW, Washington, DC 20250-9410 or call:(202) 720-5964 (voice and TDD).  USDA is an equal opportunity provider and employer.
20.
FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

20.1
Generally
20.1.1
The Contractor, in addition to the federal requirements specified in this Contract and any attachments to this Contract, must comply with the applicable federal requirements and assurances for recipients of federal grants provided in the federal OMB 424B (Rev. 7-97) form, known as "ASSURANCES - NON-CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS", and in the Department’s "CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH CERTAIN REQUIREMENTS FOR DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES (MAY 2011)".  Those assurance documents must be signed by the Contractor and submitted to the Department prior to the signing of this Contract.

20.1.2
The Contractor is responsible for determining which requirements and assurances are applicable to the Contractor.

20.1.3
The Contractor must ensure compliance of its subcontractors with the applicable federal requirements and assurances and any related reporting requirements.

20.2
Political and Lobbying Activities

20.2.1
Federal monies received by the Contractor under the terms of this Contract may not be used for any political activities by the Contractor, its employees or agents except as expressly permitted by state and federal legal authorities.
20.2.2
As required by 31 U.S.C. §1352 and 45 CFR §93.100 et seq., federally appropriated monies may not be used to influence or attempt to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of the U.S. Congress, an officer or employee of the U.S. Congress or an employee of a member of the U.S. Congress, in connection with the awarding of any federal Contract, grant or loan, the making of any cooperative agreement or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any federal Contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement.

20.2.3
If any funds other than federally appropriated funds are paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of the U.S. Congress, an officer or employee of the U.S. Congress or an employee of a member of the U.S. Congress in connection with this Contract, the Contractor must complete and submit to the Department the federally required form, "STANDARD FORM LLL".
20.2.4
Federally appropriated monies received through the programs of the federal Departments of Health and Human Services, Education, and Labor, as provided in Section 503 of H.R. 3547,"Consolidated Appropriations Act, Division H, Departments Of Labor, Health And Human Services, And Education, And Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2014", Pub. L. No. 113-76, or transferred pursuant to section 4002 of Public Law 111-148 for the funding of the Prevention and Public Health Fund in order to further fund the programs authorized by the Public Health Service Act for prevention, wellness and public health activities , and as may be provided by congressional continuing resolutions or further budgetary enactments, may not be used:
20.2.4.1
to fund publicity or propaganda, or for the preparation, distribution, or use of any kit, pamphlet, booklet, publication, electronic communication, radio, television, or video presentation designed to support or defeat legislation pending before the U.S. Congress or a state legislature, except for presentations to the U.S. Congress or a state or local legislative body as an aspect of normal and recognized executive-legislative relationships; 

 20.2.4.2
to support or defeat any proposed or pending regulation, administrative action, or order issued by the executive branch of any State or local government, except in presentation to the executive branch of any state or local government itself; 

20.2.4.3
to pay the salary or expenses of any grant or contract recipient, or agent acting for the recipient, related to any activity designed to influence enactment of legislation, appropriation, regulation, administrative action, or executive order proposed or pending before the U.S. Congress or a state government, state legislature, or local legislature or legislative body other than for normal and recognized executive-legislative relationships or participation by an agency or officer of a state, local or tribal government in policymaking and administrative processes with the executive brand of that government; 

20.2.4.4
to promote any proposed, pending or future federal, state or local tax increase; or

20.2.4.5
to promote any proposed, pending or future requirement or restriction on any legal consumer product including its sale or marketing, including but not limited to the advocacy or promotion of gun control.
20.2.5
The Contractor must cooperate with any investigation undertaken 
regarding the expenditure of funds for political or lobbying activities.
21.
GENERAL PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTING WITH FEDERALLY DEBARRED ENTITIES OR PERSONS
21.1
The Department, in accordance with The Federal Acquisition Streamlining Act of 1994, P.L. 103-355, and Executive Orders #12549 and #12689, is prohibited from contracting with any entity that is debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from participating in procurement activities funded with federal monies.  This prohibition also extends to contracting with an entity that has a director, officer, partner, person with beneficial ownership of more than 5 percent of the entity’s equity, employee, consultant, or person otherwise providing items and services that are significant and material to the entity’s obligations under this Contract with the Department if that person has been debarred, suspended or otherwise excluded from participating in procurement activities funded with federal monies. The general federal listing of debarred persons and entities for contracting purposes is maintained by the federal General Services Administration (GSA) at www.epls.gov.

21.2
If the Department finds that the Contractor is not in compliance with these contract related federal debarment requirements, the Department:

21.2.1
must notify the federal government;

21.2.2
may continue this Contract for its current term unless the Secretary of the federal Department of Health and Human Services or other authorizing federal authority directs otherwise; and

21.2.3
may only renew or otherwise extend the duration of the existing contract with the Contractor if the federal government provides to the Department and to Congress a written statement describing compelling reasons that exist for renewing or extending this Contract.

21.3
Reporting For Compliance With The Federal Transparency Act
21.3.1
For contracts with total consideration of greater than $25,000, the Contractor must comply as directed by the Department with the following reporting requirements of the Federal Funding Accountability And Transparency Act  (FFATA or Transparency Act), P.L. 109-282, as amended by Section 6202(a), P.L. 110-252-1. The Contractor, as a sub-recipient of federal monies, must prepare and submit reports to the Department in accordance with the schedule provided by the Department containing the following information:

21.3.2
name of the entity receiving the award; 

21.3.3
 the pertinent NAICS code for the Contractor’s business activity; 

21.3.4
the Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) identifier assigned to the Contractor or other unique identifier of the entity receiving the award; 

21.3.5
the DUNS identifier or other unique identifier assigned to the parent entity of the recipient, should the recipient be owned by another entity;

21.3.6
award title;

21.3.7
descriptive purpose of the funding action;

21.3.8
the amount of the award;

21.3.9
the transaction type;

21.3.10
the funding agency;

21.3.11
the Catalog Of Federal Domestic Assistance number for grant derived program funding ;

21.3.12
the program source;

21.3.13
the location of the entity receiving the award, including four data elements for the city, State, Congressional district, and country; and

21.3.14
the location of the primary place of performance under the award, including four data elements for the city, State, Congressional district, and country.

21.4
The Contractor is further required by the Transparency Act to report to the Department the compensation, as specified in this subsection, of the Contractor’s top 5 officers/executives as described in this section, if all of the following conditions apply:

21.4.1
 the Contractor is an entity as defined in this section;

21.4.2
the Contractor’s reported gross income in the previous tax year   totaled $300,000 or more;

21.4.3
the consideration for this Contract totals $25,000 or more at the time of signing or at any time during the term of this Contract, inclusive of extensions, that this Contract is amended to increase the consideration and the resulting total contract consideration is $25,000 or more;

21.4.4
the Contractor’s annual gross revenues total more than $25,000,000; and

21.4.5
more than 80% of the Contractor’s annual gross revenues are from federal awards as defined in this section.

21.4.6
The Contractor, though meeting the criteria 21.4, is not required to report the compensation of the Contractor’s top 5 officers/executives if the compensation information is designated by the federal government as classified information that is not subject to public release.
21.4.7
The compensation report required by 21.4 to be submitted is to present the individual names and total compensation, as defined in this section, of the five most highly compensated officers/executives of the Contractor for the most recent full calendar year. The report must be submitted annually during the term of this Contract on the anniversary of the initial date of submittal.

21.4.8
The compensation report required to be submitted by this subsection is to be titled “Officers/Executive Compensation Report” and is to be directed to Business and Financial Services Division of the Department through the following means:
DPHHS

Attn:  BFSD - FFATA Reporting

P.O. Box 4210                

Helena, MT  59604-4210

21.4.9
The Contractor, in lieu of compiling this report for the Department may submit, as may be currently available from the Contractor, the most current public report of compensation information as reported to the Security And Exchange Commission (SEC) under sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 through the Contractor’s annual proxy statement or as reported to the Internal Revenue Service under section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 through Section VII of the Contractor’s Form 990.
21.4.10
The most highly compensated officers/executives reporting is limited to persons who are engaged in governance and management and is not inclusive of highly compensated professionals such as physicians who do not participate substantively in governance or management.

21.4.11
The compensation report submitted to the Department by the Contractor must include the Contractor’s Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number issued through Dun and Bradstreet.

21.4.12
The compensation report submitted to the Department by the Contractor is due by the end of the month that follows the month in which the total of the monies obligated through this Contract is at $25,000 or more whether it occurs at the time of signing or at some later date due to a contractual amendment. Even if the total consideration for the Contract should be amended later to be less than $25,000, the Contractor is required to continue to provide the compensation report.

21.4.13
“Entity” for the purposes of compliance with this section is inclusive of a corporation, an association, a partnership, a limited liability company, a limited liability partnership, a sole proprietorship, a nonprofit corporation, any other legal business entity, a tribe or tribal entity, an institution of higher education and a state or local government.  It does not include a natural person if the contract is entered into with the natural person and performance is not related to any business or nonprofit organization that the person may own, control or operate. 

21.4.14
“Federal award” for the purposes of compliance with this section is inclusive of monies received by the Department through federal grants and contracts and is inclusive of the expenditures of federal monies under cooperative agreements.  It is inclusive of all forms of medicaid payment.  It does not include payments and reimbursements made to vendors of supplies, equipment, maintenance and other routine services.

21.4.15
“Total compensation” for the purposes of compliance with this section is inclusive of the cash and noncash dollar value earned by the official/executive during the contractor’s past fiscal year and includes the following (for more information see 17 CFR 229.402(c)(2)):

21.4.15.1
Salary and bonus;

21.4.15.2
Awards of stock, stock options, and stock appreciation rights. Use the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to the fiscal year in accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004) (FAS 123R), Shared Based Payments;

21.4.15.3
Earnings for services under non-equity incentive plans. Does not include group life, health, hospitalization or medical reimbursement plans that do not discriminate in favor of executives, and are available generally to all salaried employees;

21.4.15.4
Change in pension value. This is the change in present value of defined benefit and actuarial pension plans;

21.4.15.5
Above-market earnings on deferred compensation which is not tax-qualified; and

21.4.15.6
Other compensation. For example, severance, termination payments, value of life insurance paid on behalf of the employee, perquisites or property if the value for the executive exceeds $10,000.
21.5
Text Messaging While Driving

21.5.1
A Contractor and its subcontractors are requested to adopt and enforce policies, in accordance with Presidential Executive Order 13513, October 1, 2009, that ban text messaging by owners, officers, employees, agents and subcontractors while driving in contractor or employee owned or leased vehicles for purposes of the work contracted for through this Contract.
21.5.2
Contractors and subcontractors receiving funding through this Contract originating with the Centers For Disease Control And Prevention (CDC) of the federal Department Of Health And Human Services are prohibited from texting while driving a government owned vehicle or when using government furnished electronic equipment while driving ay vehicle.
21.5.3
Texting includes reading from or entering data into any handheld or other electronic device, including SMS texting, e-mailing, instant messaging, obtaining navigational information, or engaging in any other form of electronic data retrieval or electronic data communication.
21.5.4
Driving includes operating a motor vehicle on an active roadway with motor running, including while temporarily stationary due to traffic, a traffic light, stop sign or otherwise. It does not include operating a motor vehicle with or without the motor running when one has pulled over to the side of, or off, an active roadway and has halted in a location where one can safely remain stationary.
21.5.5
The Contractor and its subcontractors are responsible for ensuring that owners, officers, employees, agents and subcontractors are aware of the Contractor’s adopted policies and adhere to the requirements and prohibitions of those policies.

21.6
Certification Of Tax Compliance

If the Contractor receives $5,000,000 or more in funding from the federal appropriations for the programs of the federal Departments of Health and Human Services, Education, and Labor, as provided in Section 503 of H.R. 3547,"Consolidated Appropriations Act, Division H, Departments Of Labor, Health And Human Services, And Education, And Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2014", Pub. L. No. 113-76, the Contractor must certify in writing to the Department that to the best of its knowledge or belief the Contractor has filed all federal tax returns required during the 3 years preceding the certification, has not been convicted of a criminal offense under the Internal revenue Code of 1986, and has not, more than 90 days prior to certification, been notified of any unpaid federal tax assessment for which the liability remains unsatisfied unless the assessment is the subject of an installment agreement or offer in compromise that has been approved by the Internal Revenue Service and is not in default, or the assessment is the subject of a non-frivolous administrative or judicial proceeding.


22.
CONFIDENTIALITY OF PERSONAL INFORMATION AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE FEDERAL HIPAA AND HITECH PRIVACY AND SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

22.1
Generally

The Contractor, during and after the term of this Contract, must protect in accordance with applicable legal and policy authorities confidential personal consumer/recipient and departmental employee information obtained and used in the performance of contractual duties and responsibilities under this Contract.

22.2
Confidential Personal Information Held by the Contractor

All material and information containing consumer/recipient or departmental employee personal information provided to the Contractor by the Department or acquired by the Contractor on behalf of the Department, whether verbal, written, electronic and other media, or in other forms, is to be regarded as confidential information and may only be used or disseminated by the Contractor, its employees, subcontractors, agents or others for the purposes allowed for under this Contract and any governing legal and policy authorities.

22.3
Confidential Personal Information Defined

Personal information is personal information concerning a person: 1) who is a consumer or recipient of services delivered by a departmental program, 2) who is otherwise the subject of a departmental activity, or 3) who is a departmental employee. Confidential personal information is personal confidential information that, under one or more federal or state laws or regulations, is protected from general public access and release. Confidential personal information may be in a form: 1) that expressly serves to identify a person; 2) that based upon various descriptive aspects can be used to identify a person; or 3) that is descriptive of a person’s personal medical, physical, social, psychological, financial, eligibility for public services or benefits, or other personal circumstances. Personal information may appear in writing, electronic or in any other form. Confidential personal information may include but is not limited to a person’s name, social security number, driver’s license number, street and postal addresses, phone numbers, email address, medical data, health information, protected health information as defined for purposes of the federal HIPAA and HITECH Acts, programmatic individual eligibility information,  programmatic individual case information, programmatic payment and benefit information, and information obtained from the IRS or other third parties that is protected as confidential.

22.4
Contractor Compliance with the federal HIPAA and HITECH Acts and the Implementing Regulations Governing the Use and Possession of Personal Healthcare Information.

22.4.1
The Contractor, in relation to individually identifiable personal healthcare information used or possessed by the Contractor for or related to the purposes of performance under this Contract, must comply with the privacy and security requirements of the federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996 and the regulations implementing the HIPAA requirements at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 and the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH), enacted as part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, and the regulations implementing the HITECH requirements as they may be applicable to the Contractor and the services provided through this Contract. 
22.4.2
The Contractor, if a Business Associate as defined at 45 CFR 160.103, may not proceed to enter into this Contract or continue to perform under this Contract with the Department unless it is in compliance with the privacy and security requirements of federal HIPAA and HITECH necessary for its function as a Business Associate of the Department or as a Covered Entity. A Business Associate may provide one or more services that encompass legal, actuarial, accounting, consulting, data aggregation, management, administrative, accreditation, and financial functions and activities and may include: claims processing or administration; data analysis, processing or administration; utilization review; quality assurance; billing; benefit management; practice management; and repricing.  As a Business Associate the Contractor must comply with the further requirements and limitations that either appear in this Contract as the section “Business Associate Obligations” or appear with this Contract as an attached agreement titled “Business Associate Agreement”. If the Department has attached a Business Associate Agreement to this Contract, the Contractor must execute that Agreement in addition to this Contract.

22.4.3
The Department's Certification Form, attached to this Contract as Attachment C, must be signed by the Contractor. That form, containing various requirements necessitating the Contractor’s certification, provides for the Contractor's certification of its determination that, if it is legally subject, either as a Covered Entity or as a Business Associate as defined at 45 CFR 160.103, to the federal HIPAA and HITECH privacy and security requirements established in federal statutes and regulations, it is fully in compliance with those requirements as they may be applicable.

22.5
Security of Confidential Personal Information

The Contractor in its possession and use of confidential personal information for purposes of performance under this Contract must implement and use at all times electronic and other security measures, standards, and procedures that meet or exceed current best business practices among like entities and operations, are compatible with the technology and programs of the Department, and, if requested by the Department, have been reviewed and approved by the Department.

22.6
Notice by Contractor of Unauthorized Disclosures or Uses of Confidential Personal Information
The Contractor must immediately report to the Department in a confidential manner and with particular detail any unauthorized disclosures or uses of confidential personal information possessed by the Contractor, its employees, subcontractors, agents or others for the purposes of performance under this Contract.

22.7
Remedial Action
Upon discovery or notice that in the Contractor’s possession or handling of confidential personal information there has been a breach of confidentiality, the Contractor must undertake immediate measures to prevent further breach and to retrieve from the breach any written, electronic media or other tangible forms of the confidential information, to rectify any significant harm to the Department, and to protect the affected individual persons from further harm that may arise out of the breach.

22.8
Notice by Contractor of Investigations, Complaints, Litigation Concerning the Use and Protection of Confidential Personal Information
The Contractor must notify the Department in writing within five work days in the event that 1) the Contractor receives notice of a complaint lodged with, of an investigation initiated by, or of a determination made by the Office of Civil Rights (OCR) of the Department of Health and Human Services, the federal Department of Justice, or other federal entity that the Contractor is not in compliance with the federal HIPAA and HITECH Acts and the implementing regulations, or that 2) the Contractor receives notice of an administrative action or litigation initiated against the Contractor based on any legal authority pertaining to the protection of confidential information. The Contractor must provide the Department with a copy of any notice along with a copy of the relevant administrative or legal complaint and/or determination.

22.9
Cause for Termination
Failure of the Contractor to be in compliance with this provision or the Department's policies or federal and state legal authorities protecting confidential personal information, inclusive of the federal HIPAA and HITECH Acts and the implementing regulations governing the protection of confidential personal healthcare information, is cause for termination of this Contract by the Department.

23.
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE OBLIGATIONS
23.1
Business Associate Status
The Department is subject to and must comply with provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 ("HIPAA"), as codified at 42 U.S.C. §1320d-d8, and the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (the "HITECH Act"), enacted as part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, as codified at 42 U.S.C. §§ 300jj e t seq. and §§17901, et seq. and the implementing regulations for the two Acts at 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164.

The Department is a covered entity as defined in the Implementing regulations for the HIPAA and HITECH Acts. Under the HIPAA and HITECH Acts and the implementing regulations, a Business Associate, is an entity that performs or assists in the performance of an administrative or data function for the Department involving the use or disclosure of protected health information (PHI) for the Department.

23.2
Definitions that Apply to this Agreement
Terms used in this Agreement have the same meaning as those terms in the HIPAA and HITECH Acts and the implementing regulations.

23.3
Status as a Business Associate
The Business Associate agrees that it is a Business Associate of the Department, as defined at 45 CFR § 160.103, and further agrees that it is obligated to comply with the terms of this Agreement, with the requirements of the HIPAA and HITECH Acts and the implementing regulations, in accordance with DPHHS HIPAA policy 014.

23.4
Obligations of the Business Associate 
The Business Associate, as a business associate of the Department, must:

23.4.1
use or disclose PHI, including E-PHI, only as is permitted or required by this Agreement, in compliance with the Department’s minimum necessary standard policies and procedures, DPHHS HIPAA Policy 003, or by applicable law.

23.4.2
use appropriate safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of PHI and E-PHI other than as provided for by this Agreement or by law;

23.4.3
implement appropriate administrative, physical and technical security safeguards as set forth in 45 CFR §164.306, §164.308, and §164.312, that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of PHI and prevent use or disclosure of the PHI other than as provided for by this Agreement;

23.4.4
mitigate to the extent practicable and as may be directed by the Department any harmful effect that is known to the Business Associate of a use or disclosure of PHI by the Business Associate that is in violation of the requirements of this Agreement;

23.4.5
report in a timely manner as required by law and this Agreement to the Department any use or disclosure of the PHI not provided for by this Agreement inclusive of uses and disclosures of information that are not in compliance with the minimum necessary standard;

23.4.6
report to the Department any security incident, as defined in 45 CFR §164.304, of which it becomes aware, and at the request of the Department must identify: a) the date of the security incident, b) the scope of the security incident, c) the Business Associate's response to the security incident, and d) the identification of the party responsible for causing the security incident, if known;

23.4.7
enter, as required by 45 CFR §164.504, into Business Associate agreements containing the terms and conditions as required by the HIPAA and HITECH Acts and the implementing regulations and as are stated in this Agreement, with any subcontractors performing services in relation to the services being provided by the Business Associate for the Department that involve PHI; and

23.4.8
make internal practices, books, and records, including policies and procedures and PHI, relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business Associate on behalf of, the Department available to the Department, or to the Secretary of the federal Department of Health and Human Services in accordance with 45 CFR §164.408, in a time and manner prescribed by the Department or designated by the Secretary, for purposes of the Secretary determining the Department's and the Business Associate’s compliance with the Privacy Regulation, the Security Regulation and the HITECH Act;

23.4.9
document disclosures of PHI and collect information related to those disclosures necessary for the Department to respond to a request by a person for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR §164.528 and Section 13405(c) of the HITECH Act;

23.4.10
provide to the Department or a person, in time and manner prescribed by the Department, documentation necessary for the Department to respond to a request by a person for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR §164.528. Notwithstanding 45 CFR §164.528(a)(1)(i), the Business Associate must document disclosures of PHI made through an electronic health record to carry out treatment, payment or health care operations as provided by 45 CFR §164.506 in the six years prior to the date on which the accounting is requested, and to collect information related to such disclosures as required by the Secretary in regulation pursuant to Section 13405(c)(2) of the HITECH Act;

23.4.11
implement a response program, in compliance with Section 13402 of the HITECH Act and implementing regulations, and Subpart D of 45 CFR Part 164 that specifies the actions to be taken when the Business Associate detects or becomes aware of unauthorized access to information systems. The response program must include the following features.

23.4.11.1
The Business Associate must notify the Department, by facsimile or telephone, of any breach or suspected breach of its security related to areas, locations, or computer system which contain unsecured PHI, including, without limitation, any instance of theft, unauthorized access by fraud, deception, or other malfeasance or inadvertent access (an "incident") in accordance to 45 CFR §164.410 as promptly as possible, upon having reason to suspect that an incident may have occurred or determining the scope of any such incident, but in no event later than two (2) calendar days upon having reason to suspect that an incident may have occurred;

23.4.11.2
In the event of any incident, the Business Associate must provide to the Department, in writing, those details concerning the incident as the Department may request, and must cooperate with the Department, its regulators and law enforcement to assist in regaining possession of the unsecured PHI and in preventing its further unauthorized use, and take any necessary remedial actions as may be required by the Department to prevent other or further incidents; and

23.4.11.3
If the Department determines that it may need to notify any person(s) as a result of such incident that is attributable to the Business Associate's breach of its obligations under this Agreement, the Business Associate must bear all reasonable direct and indirect costs associated with the determination including, without limitation, the costs associated with providing notification to the affected person, providing fraud monitoring or other services to affected persons and any forensic analysis required to determine the scope of the incident;
23.4.11.4
The Business Associate, working in cooperation with the Department, must update the notice provided to the Department under this Agreement of the incident to include, to the extent possible and as soon as possible, the identification of each person whose unsecured PHI has been, or is reasonably believed by the Business Associate or the Department to have been accessed, acquired, used or disclosed during the incident and must provide any of the following information the Department is required to include in its notice to the person pursuant to 45 CFR §164.404(c):

23.4.11.4.1
A brief description of what happened, including the date of the Incident 
and the date the discovery of the incident, if known;

23.4.11.4.2
A description of the types of unsecured PHI that were involved in the Incident (e.g., Social Security Number, full name, date of birth, address, diagnosis);

23.4.11.4.3
Any steps the person should take to protect themselves from potential 
harm resulting from the Incident;

23.4.11.4.4
A brief description of what is being done to investigate the Incident, 
mitigate the harm and protect against future incidents;

23.4.11.4.5
Contact procedures for persons to ask questions or learn additional information which shall include a toll-free number, an e-mail address, Web site, or postal address;

23.4.11.4.6
This additional information must be submitted to the Department immediately at the time the information becomes available to the Business Associate;

23.4.12
 limit its use and disclosure of PHI created or received by the Business Associate from or on behalf of the Department to uses or disclosures as are permitted to the Business Associate under the applicable requirements of 45 CFR §164.504(e) and the HITECH Act and the terms of this Agreement.  The Business Associate must also comply with the additional requirements of Subtitle D of the HITECH Act that relate to privacy and that apply to covered entities and to the Business Associate as a business associate; 

23.4.13
 acknowledge and act upon an individual's request under 45 CFR §164.522(a)(1)(i)(A) that the Business Associate restrict the disclosure of the person’s PHI.

23.5
Permitted Uses, Disclosures and Limitations

23.5.1
Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, the Business Associate may use or

disclose PHI on behalf of, or to provide services to, the Department for the following 


purposes, if such use or disclosure of PHI would not violate the requirements of the


HIPAA and HITECH Acts and the implementing regulations if done by the Department 

or otherwise violate the minimum necessary policies and procedures of the Department:

23.5.2
The Business Associate may use PHI to report violations of federal and state laws to 



appropriate Federal and State authorities, consistent with 45 CFR §164.502(j)(1) and 


(2).
23.5.3
The Business Associate, as required by 45 CFR §164.504(e)(1)(iii), must terminate any  business associate agreement with a subcontractor that violates the requirements of 



this Agreement or the applicable law.
23.5.4
The Business Associate shall not directly or indirectly receive remuneration in exchange
 


for PHI that is created or received by the Business Associate from or on behalf of the 


Department.

23.6
Use and Disclosure for Business Associate’s Purposes 

23.6.1.
The Business Associate must use and disclose PHI that is created or received by the



Business Associate from or on behalf of the Department in compliance with each 


applicable requirement of 45 CFR §164.504(e) and the HITECH Act.


23.6.2
The Business Associate may use PHI for the proper management and administration of 


the Business Associate or to carry out the legal responsibilities of the Business



Associate provided that:




23.6.2.1
the disclosures are required by law;




23.6.2.2
the disclosures are expressly authorized in this Agreement by the 


Department; 




23.6.2.3
the Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances from the person 



to whom the information is disclosed that it will remain        confidential and used or further disclosed only for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the person; and




23.6.2.4
the Business Associate requires the person to whom the information is disclosed to report immediately any incident of which it is aware in which the confidentiality of the information has been breached.



23.6.3
The Business Associate may only use PHI for Data Aggregation purposes if the 


Department in this Agreement expressly authorizes those purposes and the Data Aggregation is permitted in accordance with 42 CFR §164.504(e)(2)(i)(B).



23.6.4
To the extent otherwise permitted by this Agreement, a communication that is described in the definition of Marketing in 45 CFR §164.501 for which the Department receives or has received Direct or Indirect Payment (excluding payment for Treatment) in exchange for making such communication, shall not be considered a Health Care Operation 




unless:

 


23.6.4.1
Such communication describes only a drug or biologic that is currently prescribed for the recipient of the communication and any payment received in exchange for making such a communication is reasonable in amount; or  




23.6.4.2
The communication is made by the Business Associate on behalf of the Department and the communication is otherwise consistent with this Agreement. No communication may be made by the Business Associate without prior written 






authorization by the Department.

23.7
Obligations of the Department
23.7.1
The Department must notify the Business Associate of any limitation(s) in the Department’s notice of privacy practices in accordance with 45 CFR §164.520, to the extent that such limitation may affect the Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI. A copy of the Department's Notice of privacy practice is attached to this Agreement and incorporated herein.

23.7.2
The Department must notify the Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of, permission by a person to use or disclose PHI, to the extent that such changes may affect the Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.

23.7.3
The Department must notify the Business Associate of any restriction to the use or disclosure of PHI that the Department has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR §164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect the Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.

23.7.4
The Department, except as may be expressly agreed to by the parties and stated in this Agreement, may not request the Business Associate to use or disclose PHI in any manner that would not be permissible under the requirements of the HIPAA and HITECH Acts and the implementing regulations if done by the Department.

23.8
Term and Termination
23.8.1
Term.  The Term of this Agreement shall be effective as of the effective date that the Business Associate begins delivery of its services and shall terminate when all of the PHI provided by the Department to the Business Associate, or created or received by the Business Associate on behalf of the Department, is destroyed or returned to the Department, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy PHI, protections are extended to such information, in accordance with the termination provisions in this Subsection.

23.8.2
Termination for Cause.  Upon the Department's knowledge of a breach, as defined in §164.402, by the Business Associate, the Department, at its sole discretion, must: 



23.8.2.1
provide an opportunity for the Business Associate to:



23.8.2.2
cure the breach; or 



23.8.2.3
end the violation and terminate this Agreement if the Business Associate does not cure the breach; or 



23.8.2.4
end the violation within the time specified by the Department; or



23.8.2.5
immediately terminate this Agreement if the Business Associate has breached a material term of this Agreement and cure is not possible; or



23.8.2.6
if neither termination nor cure are feasible, the Department must report the violation to the Secretary.

23.8.3
Upon the Business Associate's knowledge of a material breach by Department, the Business Associate must notify the Department of such breach in reasonable detail, and provide an opportunity for the Department to cure the breach violation:



23.8.3.1
if cure is not possible, the Business Associate may immediately




terminate this Agreement; or



23.8.3.2
if neither termination nor cure is feasible, the Business Associate shall report the violation to the Secretary.

23.8.4
The Department may unilaterally terminate this Agreement with the Business Associate upon thirty (30) days written notice in the event a) the Business Associate does not promptly enter into negotiations to amend this Agreement when requested by the Department pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, or b) the Business Associate does not enter into an amendment to this Agreement providing assurances regarding the safeguarding of PHI that department, in its sole discretion, deems sufficient to satisfy the standards and requirements of the HIPAA and HITECH Acts and the implementing regulations.


23.8.5
Effect of Termination


23.8.5.1 
Except as provided in this subsection, upon termination of this Agreement, for any reason, the Business Associate shall at the Department's sole discretion return or  destroy all PHI received from the Department, or created or received by Business
   Associate on behalf of the Department. This Agreement shall apply to PHI that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of the Business Associate. The Business  Associate shall retain no copies of the PHI.


23.8.5.2
In the event that the Business Associate determines that




returning or destroying the PHI is infeasible, the Business 



Associate must provide to the Department notification of the 



conditions that make return or destruction infeasible. Upon 



written Agreement by the Department that return or destruction of 



PHI is infeasible, the Business Associate must extend the




protections of this Agreement to such PHI and limit further uses




and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the




return or destruction infeasible, for so long as the Business




Associate maintains such PHI.

23.9
Miscellaneous

23.9.1
Regulatory References.  A reference in this Agreement to a section in the Privacy 
Regulation or Security Regulation means the section as in effect or as amended.


23.9.2
Amendment.  The Parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this




Agreement from time to time as is necessary for the Department to comply with the 


requirements of the HIPAA and HITECH Acts and the implementing regulations.

23.9.3
Survival.  The respective rights and obligations of the Business Associate under this 



Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement.


23.9.4
Interpretation.  Any ambiguity in this Agreement shall be resolved to permit the



Department to comply with the requirements of the HIPAA and HITECH Acts and the 



Implementing regulations.

24.
BUSINESS/CORPORATE TRADE SECRET AND OTHER PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND PUBLIC ACCESS
24.1
Contractual Information and Public Access

The information contained within this Contract and attachments, inclusive of Contractor’s proposal and its attachments, if any, and information otherwise provided to the Department in relation to this contractual relationship is not confidential and is available for public inspection and copying unless determined in accordance with federal or state law to be confidential as personal consumer, recipient or employee information or as business/corporate proprietary information that is protected from release.  To any extent required or allowed by law, the Department has the right to use for public purposes and to disclose to the public contractual information inclusive of reports, evaluations, statistics, and other management and performance information related to this Contract.

Confidential business/corporate trade secret or other proprietary information includes trade secrets as defined by Montana’s Uniform Trade Secrets Act, Title 30, Chapter 14, Part 4, MCA, and proprietary information such as corporate financial, structural, and personnel information that is legally recognized as proprietary in nature.  

All public contractual information is available from the Department for inspection during regular business hours.  The Contract liaison specified in this Contract should be contacted for purposes of inquiring as to the availability of and procedures for the release of public contractual information.

24.2
Perfecting Contractor’s Claim of Confidential Proprietary Information

The Department will only give consideration to a business/corporate claim of confidential trade secret or proprietary information if the Contractor has identified and segregated the information for which the claim is being asserted and has provided a detailed legal analysis supporting the claim of confidentiality. The Contractor must include with that claim the affidavit of legal counsel for the Contractor, on the form provided by the Department, titled “AFFIDAVIT FOR PROPRIETARY INFORMATION CONFIDENTIALITY”, attesting to the legal counsel’s legal relationship to the Contractor, acknowledging the primacy of federal and Montana law with respect to the claim, and indemnifying the Department with respect to defense and warranting the Contractor’s responsibility for all legal costs and  attorneys’ fees, should the Department accept the claim as legitimate and as a result be subjected to administrative or legal contest.

The Department will not consider information claimed by the Contractor to be confidential trade secret or proprietary information, if the information is legitimately available to the public without restriction through one or more other sources or has been legitimately released to the public otherwise by the proposer or other parties.

The Department will provide the Contractor timely notice of any administrative or legal request or contest from a third party seeking release of contractual and related information for which the Contractor has properly made a claim that the information is confidential as trade secret or proprietary information. If the Department determines that such information is subject to the public right to know and must be released as requested, the Department will provide the Contractor with notice of the intended release five working days prior to the date of the proposed release. The notice period is intended to allow the Contractor to make arrangements, if desired, to intervene through an appropriate legal forum to contest the release.

25.
PROPERTY 

25.1
For purposes of this provision the following definitions based on the pertinent federal regulations apply:

"Equipment" means tangible nonexpendable personal property, including exempt property, charged directly to the Contract having a useful life of more than one year and an acquisition cost of $5,000 or more per unit unless lower limits are otherwise established.

"Intangible property" means, but is not limited to, trademarks, copyrights, patents, and patent applications and such property as loans, notes and other instruments of property ownership, whether considered tangible or intangible.

"Personal property" means property of any kind of property except real property.  It may be tangible, having physical existence, such as equipment and supplies, or intangible, having no physical existence, such as data, copyrights, patents, or securities.

"Property" means, unless otherwise stated, real property, equipment, and intangible property.

"Real property" means land, including land improvements, structures, and appurtenances thereto, but excludes movable machinery and equipment. 

25.2
Property to be used for the purposes of carrying out the duties and responsibilities provided for in this Contract may be purchased with funds from this Contract only if authorized by the Department through the terms of this Contract.

25.3
Property purchased with federal funding must be purchased, managed, subject to regular inventory and marking processes, and disposed of in accordance with the pertinent provisions at 45 CFR §§ 74.32, 74.34, 74.35, 74.36, and 74.37 and 45 CFR §§ 92.31, 92.32,92.33 and 92.34.
25.4
At such time as the Contractor no longer contracts to deliver services to the Department or as directed by the Department during the term of the Contract, the Contractor agrees to deliver, as may be required by law or as may be directed by the Department, title to and possession of any property purchased with contractual monies to the Department or to any entity designated by the Department.

25.5
All patent and other legal rights in and to inventions arising out of activities assisted by funds from this Contract must be available, in accordance with 37 CFR Part 401 and any other applicable legal authority, to the public for royalty-free and nonexclusive licensing.  The Contractor must notify the Department promptly in writing of any invention conceived or actually reduced to practice in the course of performance of this Contract.  

25.6
The Department and any federal agency from which funds for this Contract are derived have, in accordance with 45 CFR §74.36 and 45 CFR §92.34, a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish or otherwise use and authorize others to use for Department and agency purposes any written, audio, or video material developed under this Contract.  
26.
PUBLIC INFORMATION AND DISCLAIMERS

26.1
All statements, press releases, and other documents or media pieces made available to the public describing the services provided with monies received through this Contract must be reviewed and approved by the Department prior to use, publication, or release. 

26.2
All materials, publications, media and other products, whether in hard copy, electronic or other form, produced with monies received through this Contract must be reviewed and approved by the Department prior to use, publication or release. In addition, all materials, publications, media and other products, whether in hard copy, electronic or other form, produced by the Contractor or its agents for distribution to or presentation to those local and state programs contracted with by the Department to engage in activities related to the purposes of this Contract, inclusive of public information distribution, must be reviewed and approved by the Department prior to use, publication or release.

26.3
The Contractor in developing and producing for the purposes expressed in subsections 26.1 and 26.2 of this section all materials, publications, media and other products, whether in hard copy, electronic or other form, may not access and use in any manner personal and other possibly confidential information or privileged information or data to which it has access through the Department and the Department’s agents and contractors, inclusive of those local and state programs contracted with by the Department to engage in contractual activities, unless the Contractor does so: 1) in full conformity with governing legal authorities and policies; 2) with the permission of the persons or entities from whom the information is to be obtained; and 3) with the review and approval by the Department prior to use, publication or release. Privileged information or data includes information and data produced, compiled or received for state and local contractual efforts by the Department or its agents and contractors, inclusive of  those local and state programs contracted with by the Department to engage in activities related to the purposes of this Contract

26.4
A Contractor providing consultation or training services to the public or departmental and other staff and professionals must inform audiences and trainees that any opinions expressed by the Contractor do not necessarily represent the positions of the Department.

26.5
The Contractor, in accordance with Section 503 of H.R. 3547,"Consolidated Appropriations Act, Division H, Departments Of Labor, Health And Human Services, And Education, And Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2014", Pub. L. No. 113-76, and as may be provided by congressional continuing resolutions or further budgetary enactments, must state in all statements, press releases, and other documents or media pieces made available to the public describing the services provided through this Contract and funded in part or in whole with federally appropriated monies received through the programs administered by the federal Departments of Health and Human Services, Education or Labor, the percentage and the monetary amount of the total program or project costs funded with federal monies and the percentage and the monetary amount of the total costs funded with non-governmental monies.  

26.6
The Contractor may not expend monies under this Contract for the purchase of any media time for publicity or advertising concerning the Department’s services available through this Contract or the Contractor’s services and performance under this Contract that financially or textually directly or indirectly supports, opposes, or associates the Department or the services made available through this Contract with any specific political agenda, political party, a candidate for public office, or a matter to be voted upon by the public. Media includes but is not limited to commercial and noncommercial print, verbal, and electronic media.

26.7
All public notices, information pamphlets, press releases, research reports, posters, public service announcements, web sites and similar modes of presenting public information pertaining to the services and activities funded with this Contract prepared and released by the Contractor must include the statement:

"This project is funded in whole or in part under a contract with the Montana Department of Public Health and Human Services.  The statements herein do not necessarily reflect the opinion of the Department."
27.
TECHNOLOGY ACCESS FOR PERSONS WHO ARE BLIND OR VISUALLY IMPAIRED
27.1
Information technology equipment and software purchased with monies under this Contract for use by departmental employees, program participants, or members of the public must provide, as required by 18-5-604, MCA, blind or visually impaired persons with access, including interactive use of the equipment and services, that is equivalent to that provided to persons who are not blind or visually impaired. 
27.2
The requirements of this provision are not applicable to the expenditure of monies derived through a standardized rate reimbursement system.

28.
DEPARTMENTAL GUIDANCE

The Contractor may request from the Department guidance in administrative and programmatic matters that are necessary to the Contractor's performance. The Department may provide such guidance as it determines is appropriate.  Guidance may include providing copies of regulations, statutes, standards and policies that are to be complied with under this Contract.  The Department may supply essential interpretations of such materials and this Contract to assist with contract compliance by the Contractor. The Contractor is not relieved by a request for guidance of any obligation to meet the requirements of this Contract. Legal services will not be provided by the Department to the Contractor in any matters relating to the Contractor's performance under this Contract.
29.
REGISTRATION OF OUT OF STATE ENTITIES
29.1
A business that is incorporated in a state other than Montana or in a foreign country and that is conducting business in Montana may be required by 35-1-1026 and 35-8-1001, MCA, to register with the Montana Secretary Of State Office. Further information concerning these requirements may be obtained through the Montana Secretary of State’s Office at http://sos.mt.gov/Business/index.asp or by calling 406.444.3665.
29.2
A business required to register may not enter into or continue to perform under this Contract unless providing the Department with proof of a current certificate of authority to conduct business.
30.
DEPARTMENT PERSONNEL

30.1
Department Contract Manager

The Department Contract Manager identified below is the Department’s single point of contact and will perform all contract management on behalf of the Department. Written notices, requests, complaints, or any other issues regarding the Contract should be directed to the Department Contract Manager.

The Department Contract Manager for this Contract is:

(Name):

(Address):

(City, State, ZIP):

Telephone #:

Cell Phone #:

Fax #:

E-mail:

30.2
Department Project Manager
The Department Project Manager identified below will manage the day-to-day project activities on behalf of the Department.

The Department Project Manager for this Contract is:

(Name):

(Address):

(City, State, ZIP):

Telephone #:

Cell Phone #:

Fax #:

E-mail:

31.
CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL

31.1
Identification/Substitution of Personnel


The personnel identified or described in the Contractor’s proposal shall perform the services provided for the Department under this Contract. Contractor agrees that any personnel substituted during the term of the Contract must be able to conduct the required work to industry standards and be equally or better qualified than the personnel originally assigned. The Department reserves the right to approve Contractor personnel assigned to work under the Contract, and any changes or substitutions to such personnel. The Department’s approval of a substitution will not be unreasonably withheld. This approval or disapproval shall not relieve the Contractor to perform and be responsible for its obligations under this Contract. The Department reserves the right to require Contractor personnel replacement. In the event that Contractor personnel become unavailable, it will be the Contractor’s responsibility to provide an equally qualified replacement in time to avoid delays to the work plan.

31.2
Contractor Contract Manager

The Contractor Contract Manager identified below will be the single point of contact to the Department Contract Manager and will assume responsibility for the coordination of all contract issues under this Contract. The Contractor Contract Manager will meet with the Department Contract Manager and/or others necessary to resolve any conflicts, disagreements, or other contract issues.

The Contractor Contract Manager for this Contract is:

(Name):

(Address):

(City, State, ZIP):

Telephone #:

Cell Phone #:

Fax #:

E-mail:


31.3
Contractor Project Manager
The Contractor Project Manager identified below will manage the day-to-day project activities on behalf of the Contractor: 

The Contractor Project Manager for this Contract is:

(Name):

(Address):

(City, State, ZIP):

Telephone #:

Cell Phone #:

Fax #:

E-mail:

32.
MEETINGS AND REPORTS


32.1
Technical or Contractual Problems
The Contractor is required to meet with the Department’s personnel, or designated representatives, at no additional cost to the Department, to resolve technical or contractual problems that may occur during the term of the Contract. Meetings will occur as problems arise and will be coordinated by the Department.  Failure to participate in problem resolution meetings or failure to make a good faith effort to resolve problems may result in termination of the Contract.


32.2
Progress Meetings

During the term of the Contract, the Department’s Project Manager will plan and schedule progress meetings with the Contractor to discuss the progress made by the Contractor and the Department in the performance of their respective obligations. These progress meetings will include the Department Project Manager, the Contractor Project Manager, and any other additional personnel involved in the performance of the contract as required. At each such meeting, the Contractor shall provide the Department with a written status report that identifies any problem or circumstance encountered by Contractor, or of which Contractor gained knowledge during the period since the last such status report, which may prevent Contractor from completing any of its obligations or may generate charges in excess of those previously agreed to by the parties. This may include the failure or inadequacy of the Department to perform its obligation under the Contract. Contractor shall identify the amount of excess charges, if any, and the cause of any identified problem or circumstance and the steps taken to remedy the same.

33.
PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENTS AND CORRECTIVE ACTIONS

33.1
The Department may conduct to any extent and at any time assessments of the Contractor’s performance under this Contract.

33.2
If the Department determines that the Contractor or any employee, agent, or subcontractor of the Contractor is failing to perform the duties and requirements under this Contract, the Department may provide written notice of the performance failure to the Contractor.  Within ten (10) business days after receipt of the written notice, the Contractor must investigate the matters set forth in the notice and submit a written response to the Department detailing any actions the Contractor is undertaking to remedy performance.  The time for responding may be extended by agreement of the parties.  If in the opinion of the Department the actions the Contractor sets forth in its response are not sufficient to remedy the performance, the Department may propose written amendment of the Contract setting forth corrective actions the Department deems necessary to remedy the performance.  If the parties cannot agree to such amendment, or if corrective actions agreed to pursuant to amendment are not performed or completed, the Department may exercise any right it has under this Contract, including but not limited to termination of the Contract.  Corrective actions may include but are not limited to: 
33.2.1
 Performance requirements;

33.2.2  Repayment requirements;

33.2.3  Accountability or review measures; and

33.2.4  Training or supervision requirements.
33.3
The Department may exercise any right it has under this Contract, including but not limited to termination under Section 36, without first undertaking corrective action pursuant to subsection 33.2 of this Section, or after having begun or undertaken corrective action under subsection 33.2.

34.
EVENT OF BREACH – REMEDIES

34.1
Event of Breach  

Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the Contractor shall constitute an event 
of breach:

34.1.1
There is failure to begin and continue to deliver products and services as contracted for and the Contractor has not given an assurance as provided for in Section 18 of this Contract or has failed to under take performance after having given an assurance;;

34.1.2
There is failure to deliver products or services  that substantively conform to any requirement of the Contract; or

34.1.3
There is failure to submit any report required by this Contract; or

34.1.4
There is failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of the Contract, including beginning work under this Contract without prior Department of Administration approval. 

34.2
Department’s Actions in Event of Breach  

Upon the occurrence of any material breach of this Contract,  the Department may take either one, or both, of the following actions:

34.2.1
 Proceed to remedy the matter in accordance with corrective action process in Section 33; or
34.2.2
Treat this Contract as materially breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both and proceed with termination under Section 36.

35.
FORCE MAJEURE

If the Contractor or State is delayed, hindered, or prevented from performing any act required under this Contract by reason of delay beyond the reasonable control of the asserting party including, but not limited to, theft, fire, Act of God or public enemy, severe and unusual weather conditions, injunction, riot, strikes, lockouts, insurrection, war, or court order, then performance of the act shall be excused for the period of the delay.  In that event, the period for the performance of the act shall be extended for a period equivalent to the period of the delay.  Matters of the Contractor’s finances shall not be considered a force majeure.

36.
CONTRACT TERMINATION

36.1
The Department may immediately terminate the whole or any aspect of performance under this Contract for failure of the Contractor to perform the Contract in accordance with the terms of the Contract or governing legal authorities.  

36.1.1
Failure to perform includes, but is not limited to, failure to:
36.1.1.1
Perform the services as required and within the time limits specified in this Contract;

36.1.1.2
Comply with any of the requirements of this Contract inclusive of reporting and accounting;

36.1.1.3
Perform its contractual duties or responsibilities in accordance with the terms of the Contract or any other authority, including statute, rules, or policy ,that govern the standards for performance, the receipt and expenditure of the monies provided through the Contract, and the conduct of the Contractor as a contractor for the State;

36.1.1.4
Maintain its status, if applicable, as an enrolled Medicaid or otherwise qualified provider of those services that it receives reimbursement for the provision of from the Department;

36.1.1.5
Comply with any law, regulation, or licensure and certification requirement;

36.1.1.6
Respond to or to effectively implement corrective actions or other measures required by the Department; or

36.1.1.7
Reimburse overpayments, penalties, or other sums owing to the Department.

36.2
The Department may with written notice immediately terminate the whole of this Contract or any aspect of performance under this Contract based upon the Contractor's violations of federal or state laws, regulations, executive orders, et al as determined by the Department or other appropriate entities.
36.2.1
Violations of federal or state legal authorities include, but are not limited to:

36.2.1.1
The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009;

36.2.1.2
The Government Funding Transparency Act of 2008;

36.2.1.3
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006;

36.2.1.4
The federal and state false claims acts;

36.2.1.5
The federal and state debarment legal authorities;

36.2.1.6
The Sherman Act;

36.2.1.7
The federal and state civil rights legal authorities; or

36.2.1.8
State licensing legal authorities.

36.3
 The Department may terminate this Contract without cause. Termination without cause may be exercised in lieu of any or all of the other remedial measures available through this Contract. The  Department must give notice of termination to the  Contractor at least 60 days prior to the effective date of termination. The parties may mutually agree to a different effective date of termination.
36.4
Notice of termination must be given in writing addressed to the Contract liaison for the other Party. 

36.5
Notice of termination given by the Contractor  to the Department may only be revoked with the consent of the Department.  

36.6
Upon termination of this Contract, the Contractor may not receive or claim any consideration other than as may be determined by the Department appropriate based upon the Contractor's performance and legal considerations.
36.7
Upon Contract termination or nonrenewal of this Contract, the Contractor must allow, as the Department determines is necessary, the Department and its agents and representatives full access on a continuing as needed basis to the Contractor's facilities and records for conducting necessary audits and investigations or to arrange for and implement the orderly transfer of the activities and other features of performance to the Department or the entity designated by the Department to assume the performance in whole or in part.
37.
TRANSITION ASSISTANCE

If this Contract is not renewed at the end of this term, or is terminated prior to the completion of a project, or if the work on a project is terminated for any reason, the Contractor must provide for a reasonable period of time after the expiration or termination of this project or Contract, all reasonable transition assistance requested by the Department, to allow for the expired or terminated portion of the services to continue without interruption or adverse effect, and to facilitate the orderly transfer of such services to the Department or its designees. Such transition assistance will be deemed by the parties to be governed by the terms and conditions of this Contract, except for those terms or conditions that do not reasonably apply to such transition assistance. The Department shall pay the Contractor for any resources utilized in performing such transition assistance at the most current rates provided by the Contract. If there are no established contract rates, then the rate shall be mutually agreed upon. If the Department terminates a project or this Contract for cause, then the Department will be entitled to offset the cost of paying the Contractor for the additional resources the Contractor utilized in providing transition assistance with any damages the Department may have otherwise accrued as a result of said termination.  

38.
CHOICE OF LAW, REMEDIES AND VENUE

38.1
This Contract is governed by the laws of the State of Montana.

38.2
Any remedies provided by this Contract are not exclusive and are in addition to any other remedies provided by law.

38.3
For purposes of litigation concerning this Contract, venue must be in the First Judicial District in and for the County of Lewis and Clark, State of Montana.

38.4
If there is litigation concerning this Contract, the Contractor must pay its own costs and attorney fees.
38.5
If there is a contractual dispute, the Contractor agrees to continue performance under this Contract unless the Department in writing explicitly waives performance.
39.
SCOPE, AMENDMENT, AND INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT

39.1
This Contract consists of numbered pages one through insert number of pages, the Request for Proposal, 15-2883P, expressly reference as Attachment A; Project Budget  expressly referenced as Attachment  B; Department’s Certification Form (06-11) expressly referenced as Attachment  C; OMB 424B (Rev. 7-97) Form expressly referenced as Appendix D; Standard Form LLL expressly referenced as Appendix E; Sources of HIPAA Information expressly referenced as Appendix F; and Department’s Notice of Privacy Practices  expressly referenced as Appendix G.  This is the entire Contract between the parties.

Attachment A:
Contractor’s RFP Response or Statement of Work

Attachment B:
Project Budget

Attachment C:
Department’s Certification Form (12-06)  

Attachment D:
OMB 424B (Rev. 7-97) Form

Attachment E:
Standard Form LLL

Attachment F:
Sources of HIPAA Information

Attachment G:
Department’s Notice of Privacy Practices

39.2
No statements, promises, or inducements made by either party or their agents are valid or binding if not contained in this Contract  or materials expressly referenced in this Contract as governing the contractual relationship.
39.3
The headings to the sections of this Contract are for convenience of reference and do not modify the terms and language of the provisions to which they are headings.
39.4
No contractual provisions from a prior contract of the parties are valid or binding in this contractual relationship.
39.5
This Contract, except as may be otherwise provided by the terms of this Contract, may not be enlarged, modified or altered except by written amendment signed by the parties to this Contract.
39.6
If there is a dispute as to the duties and responsibilities of the parties under this Contract, the Contract along with any attachments prepared by the Department, inclusive of request for proposal, if any, govern over the Contractor's proposal, if any.
39.7
If any provision of this Contract is determined by a court of law to be per se or as applied legally invalid, all other provisions of this Contract remain in effect and are valid and binding on the parties.
39.8
If any provision of this Contract is determined by the Department to be in conflict with any federal or state law or regulation, then the provision is inoperative to the extent that the Department determines it is per se or as applied in conflict with that authority and the provision is to be considered modified to the extent the Department determines necessary to conform with that authority.
39.9
Waiver of any default, breach, or failure to perform under this Contract may not be construed to be a waiver of any subsequent default, breach, or failure of performance.  In addition, waiver of any default, breach, or failure to perform may not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this Contract unless reduced to writing as an amendment to this Contract.
MONTANA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

By:
___________________________________
Date _______________

___________________________, Administrator

_____________________________ Division

INSERT FORMAL NAME OF CONTRACTOR

By:
___________________________________
Date _______________

Title     ________________________

Chief Information Officer Approval:

The Contractor is notified that pursuant to section 2-17-514, MCA, the Department of Administration retains the right to cancel or modify any contract, project, or activity that is not in compliance with the Agency's Plan for Information Technology, the State Strategic Plan for Information Technology, or any statewide IT policy or standard.

Chief Information Officer
(Date)
Department of Administration

Approved as to form:

___________________________________

Contracts Officer

(Date)

State Procurement Bureau

ATTACHMENT A – CONTRACTOR’S RFP RESPONSE

ATTACHMENT B – BUDGET






ATTACHMENT C
ANNUAL CERTIFICATION FOR DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES OF THE CONTRACTOR’S COMPLIANCE WITH CERTAIN STATE AND FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS 

(JUNE 2011)
This annual certification form is standardized for general use by the Department Of Public Health And Human Services (Department) in contracting relationships. Not all of these assurances may be pertinent to the Contractor's circumstances. The Contractor in signing this form is certifying compliance only with those requirements that are legally or contractually applicable to the circumstances of the contractual relationship of the Contractor with the Department. 

These assurances are in addition to those stated in the federal OMB 424B (Rev. 7‑97) form, known as "ASSURANCES ‑ NON‑CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS", issued by the federal Office of Management of the Budget (OMB).  Standard Form 424B is an assurances form that must be signed by the Contractor if the Contractor is to be in receipt of federal monies.

There may be program specific assurances, not appearing either in this form or in the OMB Standard Form 424B, for which the Contractor may have to provide additional certification.

This form and OMB Standard Form 424B are to be provided with original signatures to the Department's contract liaison.  The completed forms are maintained by the Department in the pertinent procurement and contract files.

Further explanation of several of the requirements certified through this form may be found in the text of related contract provisions and in the Department's policies pertaining to procurement and contractual terms.  In addition, detailed explanations of federal requirements may be obtained through the Internet at sites for the federal departments and programs and for the Office for Management of the Budget (OMB) and the General Services Administration (GSA).

ASSURANCES

The Contractor, ______________________________, for the purpose of contracting with the Montana Department of Public Health & Human Services, by its signature on this document certifies to the Department its compliance, as may be applicable to it, with the following requirements.

The Contractor assures the Department:

GENERAL COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

A.
That the Contractor does not engage in conflicts of interest in violation of any state or federal legal authorities, any price fixing or any other anticompetitive activities that violate the federal antitrust Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. §§1 – 7, Anti-Kickback Act, 41 U.S.C. §§ 51-58, and other federal legal authorities. And that the Contractor does not act in violation of 18-4-141, MCA or other legal authorities by colluding with other contractors for the purpose of gaining unfair advantages for it or other contractors or for the purpose of providing the services at a noncompetitive price or otherwise in a noncompetitive manner. (reference Contract Section titled “Antitrust Violations”)
B.
That the Contractor does not act in violation of the federal False Claims Act at31 U.S.C. §§ 3729–3733( the “Lincoln Law”) or of the Montana False Claims Act, at Title 17, chapter,8, part 4, MCA. And that the Contractor and its employees, agents and subcontractors act to comply with requirements of the federal False Claims Act by reporting any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, contractor, subgrantee, subcontractor, or other person has submitted a false claim to the federal government. (reference Contract Section titled “Reporting Of False Claims, Fraud, And Other Criminal Matters”)

C.
That the Contractor is solely responsible for and must meet all labor, tax, and other legal authorities requirements pertaining to its employment and contracting activities, inclusive of insurance premiums, tax deductions, unemployment and other tax withholding, overtime wages and other employment obligations that may be legally required with respect to it. (reference Contract Section titled “Compliance With Business, Tax, Labor, And Other Legal authorities 18.0COMPLIANCE WITH BUSINESS, TAX, AND LABOR LAWStc \l1 "18.0COMPLIANCE WITH BUSINESS, TAX, AND LABOR LAWSO”)
D.
That the Contractor maintains necessary and appropriate workers compensation insurance coverage. (reference Contract Section titled “Compliance With Business, Tax, Labor, And Other Legal authorities 18.0COMPLIANCE WITH BUSINESS, TAX, AND LABOR LAWStc \l1 "18.0COMPLIANCE WITH BUSINESS, TAX, AND LABOR LAWSO”)
E.
That the Contractor is an independent contractor and possesses, unless by law not subject to or exempted from the requirement, a current independent contractor certification issued by the Montana Department Of Labor And Industry in accordance with 39-71-417 through 39-71-419, MCA. (reference Contract Section titled “Compliance With Business, Tax, Labor, And Other Legal authorities 18.0COMPLIANCE WITH BUSINESS, TAX, AND LABOR LAWStc \l1 "18.0COMPLIANCE WITH BUSINESS, TAX, AND LABOR LAWSO”)
F.
That the Contractor’s subcontractors and agents are in conformance with the requirements of Sections B, C, and D of this Certification. 

G.
That the Contractor, any employee of the Contractor, or any subcontractor in the performance of the duties and responsibilities of the proposed contract: 1) are not currently suspended, debarred, or otherwise prohibited in accordance with 2 CFR Part 180, OMB Guidelines To Agencies On Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (nonprocurement) from entering into a federally funded contract or participating in the performance of a federally funded contract; and 2) are not currently removed or suspended in accordance with 18-4-241, MCA from entering into contracts with the State Of Montana. (reference Contract Section titled “Federal Requirements”)
H.
That the Contractor is in compliance with those provisions of the privacy, security, electronic transmission, coding and other requirements of the federal Health Insurance Portability And Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and the federal Health Information Technology For Economic And Clinical Health (HITECH), a part of the American Recovery And Reinvestment Act Of 2009, and the implementing federal regulations for both acts that are applicable to contractual performance if the Contractor is either a Covered Entity or a Business Associate as defined for purposes of those acts. (reference Contract Sections titled “Confidentiality Of Personal Information And Compliance With The Federal HIPAA And HITECH Privacy And Security Requirements” and “Business Associate Obligations”)
I.
That, as required by legal authorities or contract, the Contractor maintains smoke and tobacco free public and work sites. And if the contract performance is related to the delivery of a human service, the Contractor does not perform any work involved in the production, processing, distribution, promotion, sale, or use of tobacco products or the promotion of tobacco companies; or 3) accept revenues from the tobacco industry or subsidiaries of the tobacco industry if the acceptance results in the appearance that tobacco use is desirable or acceptable or in the appearance that the contractor endorses a tobacco product or the gifting tobacco related entity. (reference Contract Section titled “Tobacco-free Workplace And Other Restrictions”)
COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR FEDERALLY FUNDED CONTRACTS

J.
That the Contractor, in conformance with the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (20 U.S.C. §6081 et seq.), prohibits smoking at any site of federally funded activities that serve youth under the age of 18.  This federal prohibition is not applicable to a site where the only federal funding for services is through Medicaid monies or the federally funded activity at the site is inpatient drug or alcohol treatment.
K.
That the Contractor does not expend federal monies in violation of federal legal authorities prohibiting expenditure of federal funds on lobbying the United States Congress or state legislative bodies or for any effort to persuade the public to support or oppose legislation. (reference Contract Section titled “Federal Requirements”)
L.
That the Contractor maintains in compliance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, 41 U.S.C. 701, et seq., drug free environments at its work sites, providing required notices, undertaking affirmative reporting, and other requirements, as required by federal legal authorities.

M.
That the Contractor is not delinquent in the repayment of any debt owed to a federal entity.

N.
That the Contractor, if expending federal monies for research purposes, complies with federal legal authorities relating to use of human subjects, animal welfare, biosafety, misconduct in science and metric conversion.

O.
That the Contractor, if receiving aggregate payments of medicaid monies totaling $5,000,000 or more annually, has established in compliance with 1902(a)(68) of the Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. 1396a(a)(68), written policies with educational information about the federal False Claims Act at 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729–3733 (the “Lincoln Law”) and presents that information to all employees. (reference Contract Section titled “Reporting Of False Claims, Fraud, And Other Criminal Matters”)
P.
That the Contractor is in compliance with the executive compensation reporting requirement of the Federal Funding Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA or Transparency Act), P.L. 109-282, as amended by Section 6202(a), P.L. 110-252-1, either in that the Contractor does not meet the criteria necessitating the submittal of a report by an entity or in that, if the Contractor meets the criteria mandating reporting, the Contractor produces the information in a publicly available report to the Securities And Exchange Commission (SEC) or to the Internal Revenue Service and provides the report in a timely manner to the Department or produces a separate report with the information and submits that report to the in a timely manner to the Department. (reference Contract Section titled “Federal Requirements”)

Q.
That the Contractor, if a contractor for the delivery of Medicaid funded services, is in compliance with the requirements of 42 C.F.R. §§ 455.104, 455.105, and 455.106 concerning disclosures of ownership and control, business transactions, and persons with criminal convictions. (reference Contract Section titled “Federal Requirements”).

R.
That the Contractor, if providing federally funded health care services, is not as an entity currently federally debarred from receiving reimbursement for the provision of federally funded health care services and furthermore does not currently have any employees or agents who are federally debarred from the receiving reimbursement for the provision of federally funded health care services.  (reference Contract Section titled “Federal Requirements”)
COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR FEDERALLY FUNDED CONTRACTS INVOLVING THE PURCHASE OR DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTY

S.
That the Contractor manages any real, personal, or intangible property purchased or developed with federal monies in accordance with federal legal authorities.

T.
That the Contractor, if expending federal monies for construction purposes or otherwise for property development, complies with federal legal authorities relating to flood insurance, historic properties, relocation assistance for displaced persons, elimination of architectural barriers, metric conversion and environmental impacts.

U.
That the Contractor, if the contract exceeds $100,000, complies with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the federal Energy Policy and Conservation Act, Pub. L. 94-163, 42 U.S.C. §6321 et. seq.

V.
That the Contractor, if the contract exceeds $100,000, complies with all applicable standards, orders and requirements issued under section 306 of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. 7607, section 508 of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. 1368, Executive Order 11738, and U.S. Environmental Protection Agency regulations, 40 C.F.R. Part15 and that if the Contractor enters into a subcontract that exceeds $100,000 these requirements are in that contract. 

INSERT NAME OF CONTRACTOR

Signature Of Authorized Certifying Official

By:
___________________________________
Date _______________

___________________________________ as
____________________

Typed/Printed Name




Title

___________________________________

___________________________________

Address


___________________________________

email

___________________________________

Phone Number

___________________________________

Federal I.D. Number






ATTACHMENT D

ASSURANCES - NON-CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS

NOTE:
Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions, please contact the awarding agency. Further, certain Federal awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to additional assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I certify that the applicant:

1.
Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance and the institutional, managerial and financial capability (including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share of project cost) to ensure proper planning, management and completion of the project described in this application.

2.
Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General of the United States and, if appropriate, the State, through any authorized representative, access to and the right to examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to the award; and will establish a proper accounting system in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards or agency directives.

3.
Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal gain.

4.
Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding agency.

5.
Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed standards for merit systems for programs funded under one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F).

6.
Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681- 1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) §§523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290 dd-3 and 290 ee- 3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which application for Federal assistance is being made; and, (j) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the application.

7.
Will comply, or has already complied, with the requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or federally-assisted programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for project purposes regardless of Federal participation in purchases.

8.
Will comply, as applicable, with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-1508 and 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.
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9.
Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327- 333), regarding labor standards for federally-assisted construction subagreements.

10.
Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction and acquisition is $10,000 or more.

11.
Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency with the approved State management program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.); (g) protection of underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); and, (h) protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93- 205).

12.
Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting components or potential components of the national wild and scenic rivers system.

13.
Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq.).

14.
Will comply with P.L. 93-348 regarding the protection of human subjects involved in research, development, and related activities supported by this award of assistance.

15.
Will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-544, as amended, 7 U.S.C. §§2131 et seq.) pertaining to the care, handling, and treatment of warm blooded animals held for research, teaching, or other activities supported by this award of assistance.

16.
Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or rehabilitation of residence structures.

17.
Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular No. A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations."

18.
Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies governing this program.

	SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL


	TITLE



	APPLICANT ORGANIZATION


	DATE SUBMITTED
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ATTACHMENT E


DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES
Approved by OMB 


Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352
0348-0046 

(See reverse for public burden disclosure.)

	1. Type of Federal Action:

a. contract

b. grant

c. cooperative agreement

d. loan

e. loan guarantee

f. loan insurance
	2. Status of Federal Action:

a. bid/offer/application

b. initial award

c. post-award
	3. Report Type:

a. initial filing

b. material change

For Material Change Only:

year ______ quarter ______

date of last report ________

	4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity:

( Prime                 ( Subawardee

Tier ______, if known:
Congressional District, if known: 4c
	5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is a Subawardee, Enter Name and Address of Prime:

Congressional District, if known:

	6. Federal Department/Agency:


	7. Federal Program Name/Description:

CFDA Number, if applicable: _____________

	8. Federal Action Number, if known
:
	9. Award Amount, if known:

$

	10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant

(if individual, last name, first name, MI):
	b. Individuals Performing Services (including address if

different from No. 10a)

(last name, first name, MI):



	11.  Information requested through this form is authorized by title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material representation of fact upon which reliance w

as placed by the tier above when this transaction was made or entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This information will be available for public inspection. Any person who fails to file the required disclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.
	Signature: ______________________________________
Print Name: _____________________________________

Title: ___________________________________________

Telephone No.: _______________________ Date ______:

	Federal Use Only:
	Authorized for Local Reproduction

Standard Form LLL (Rev. 7-97)


INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES
This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at the initiation or receipt of a covered Federal action, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. The filing of a form is required for each payment or agreement to make payment to any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with a covered Federal action. Complete all items that apply for both the initial filing and material change report. Refer to the implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information. 

1.
Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the outcome of a covered Federal action. 

2.
Identify the status of the covered Federal action. 

3.
 Identify the appropriate classification of this report. If this is a follow up report caused by a material change to the information previously reported, enter the year and quarter in which the change occurred. Enter the date of the last previously submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered Federal action. 

4.
 Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the reporting entity. Include Congressional District, if known. Check the appropriate classification of the reporting entity that designates if it is, or expects to be, a prime or subaward recipient. Identify the tier of the subawardee, e.g., the first subawardee of the prime is the 1st tier. Subawards include but are not limited to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards under grants. 

5.
If the organization filing the report in item 4 checks "Subawardee," then enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the prime Federal recipient. Include Congressional District, if known. 

6.
Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment. Include at least one organizational level below agency name, if known. For example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard. 

7.
Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (item 1). If known, enter the full Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans, and loan commitments. 

8.

 Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identified in item 1 (e.g., Request for Proposal (RFP) number; Invitation for Bid (IFB) number; grant announcement number; the contract, grant, or loan award number; the application/proposal control number assigned by the Federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g., "RFP-DE-90-001." 

9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal amount of the award/loan commitment for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5. 

10. (a) Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the lobbying registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 engaged by the reporting entity identified in item 4 to influence the covered Federal action. 

(b) Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from 10 (a). Enter Last Name, First Name, and Middle Initial (MI). 

11. The certifying official shall sign and date the form, print his/her name, title, and telephone number. 







ATTACHMENT F
SOURCES OF INFORMATION

 ON THE PRIVACY, TRANSACTIONS AND SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

PERTAINING TO HEALTH CARE INFORMATION OF THE FEDERAL HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT (HIPAA) AND THE FEDERAL HEALTH INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY FOR ECONOMIC AND CLINICAL HEALTH ACT (HITECH), ENACTED AS PART OF THE AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT OF 2009

The following are sources of information concerning the applicability of and implementation of the privacy, transactions and security requirements of HIPAA and HITECH.    The Department Of Public Health & Human Services requires that contractors generating, maintaining, and using health care information in relation to recipients of State administered and funded services be compliant with the requirements of HIPAA and HITECH as applicable under the federal laws and the status of the Department as a health care plan.

There can be difficulty in interpreting the applicability of the HIPAA and HITECH requirements to an entity and various circumstances.   It is advisable to retain knowledgeable experts to advise concerning determinations of applicability and appropriate compliance. 

Websites specified here may be changed without notice by those parties maintaining them.  

FEDERAL RESOURCES
The following are official federal resources in relation to HIPAA and HITECH requirements.   These are public sites. Implementation of the additional requirements under HITECH, due to the more recent date of enactment, is occurring on an ongoing basis. 

1)   U.S. Department Of Health & Human Services / Office Of Civil Rights

www.hhs.gov/ocr/hipaa
The federal Department Of Health & Human Services / Office Of Civil Rights (OCR) provides information pertaining to privacy and security requirements under HIPAA and HITECH including the adopted regulations and various official interpretative materials.   This site includes an inquiry service.   OCR is responsible for the implementation of the privacy and security aspects of HIPAA/HITECH and serves as both the official interpreter for and enforcer of the privacy requirements.

2)  U.S. Department Of Health & Human Services / Centers For Disease Control & Prevention

http://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/preview/mmwrhtml/m2e411a1.htm 

The federal Department Of Health & Human Services / Centers For Disease Control & Prevention (CDC) provides information pertaining to the application of privacy requirements under HIPAA to public health activities and programs.

STATE RESOURCES
The Department Website For Medicaid Provider Information provides general information for providers of services on compliance with various state and federal requirements.

www.mtmedicaid.org
Further information concerning HIPAA/HITECH compliance in the delivery of services funded through the Department’s various programs can be reviewed at the Department Website for DPHHS HIPAA Policies.

http://www.dphhs.mt.gov/hipaa/policies/index.shtml
Certain departmental programs may have more detailed guidance available in relation to particular programs of services. Inquiries may be directed at a program to determine if further information is available.

PROVIDER ASSOCIATIONS
Many national and state provider associations have developed extensive resources for their memberships concerning HIPAA/HITECH requirements.   Those are important resources in making determinations as to the applicability and implementation of HIPAA/HITECH.

CONSULTANT RESOURCES
There are innumerable consulting resources available nationally.   The Department does not make recommendations or referrals as to such resources.    It is advisable to pursue references before retaining any consulting resource.   Some consulting resources may be inappropriate for certain types of entities and circumstances.

ATTACHMENT G

Department of Public Health and

Human Services (DPHHS)

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (“HIPAA”) Privacy Policy

John Chappuis, Deputy Director 



Date: February 27, 2003

Revised Date:

	Policy Title: 
	Notice of Privacy Practices

	Policy Number:
	006
	Version:
	1.0

	Approved By:
	John Chappuis

	Date Approved:
	February 27, 2003


Purpose:

This policy addresses the information that must be contained in the official Notice of Privacy Practices.

Policy:

1. 
A client has the right to adequate notice of the uses and disclosures of Protected Health Information (“PHI”) that may be made by DPHHS, and the legal duties of the Department with respect to PHI. The right to a Notice of Privacy Practices does not apply to inmates of correctional institutions.

2. 
DPHHS must provide a notice that is written in layman’s language and that contains the following details:

a. 
A header statement, “THIS NOTICE DESCRIBES HOW MEDICAL INFORMATION ABOUT YOU MAY BE USED AND DISCLOSED AND HOW YOU CAN GET ACCESS TO THIS INFORMATION. PLEASE REVIEW IT CAREFULLY.”

b. 
A description, including an example, of the types of uses and disclosures that DPHHS is permitted to make for treatment, payment and operations, as well as any other purposes for which disclosure is permitted without the client’s written authorization.

c. 
A statement that other uses and disclosures will be made only with the client’s written authorization and that the client may revoke such authorization.

d. 
If DPHHS intends to engage in any of the following activities, the description must include a separate statement, as applicable, that:

i. 
DPHHS may contact the client to provide appointment reminders or information about treatment alternatives or other health-related benefits and services that may be of interest to the client; and 

ii. 
DPHHS may contact the client to conduct fund raising activities for the covered entity. 

e.
A statement of the client’s rights and a brief description of how the client may exercise these rights as follows:

i.
The right to request restrictions on certain uses and disclosures, including a statement that the covered entity is not required to agree to a requested restriction; 

ii. 
The right to receive confidential communications by alternative means and at alternative locations; 

iii. 
The right to inspect and copy PHI; 

iv. 
The right to amend PHI; 

v. 
The right to receive an accounting of disclosures of PHI; and 

vi. 
The right to obtain a paper copy of this notice. 

f.
A statement of DPHHS duties:

i. 
A statement that DPHHS is required by law to maintain the privacy of PHI and to provide clients with notice of its legal duties and privacy practices; 

ii. 
A statement that DPHHS is required to abide by the terms of the notice currently in effect; and 

iii. A statement that DPHHS reserves the right to change the terms of its notice and how it will provide clients with a revised notice. 

g. 
A statement that the client may complain to DPHHS and to HHS if they believe their privacy rights have been violated, a brief description of how a complaint may be filed, and a statement that the client will not be retaliated against for filing a complaint. 

h. 
A contact person for receiving complaints. 

i. 
An effective date of the notice. 

3. 
DPHHS must notify all clients at least once every three years that the Notice of Privacy Practices is available and how the client can receive a copy of it. 

4. 
Whenever possible, DPHHS employees should attempt to get the client to sign an acknowledgement of receipt of the Notice of Privacy Practices. If the client refuses to sign, documentation to that effect should be kept in the client file. The Notice can be mailed to clients with the expectation that it has been received if it is not returned. 

APPENDIX C:  MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS CHECKLIST
Offeror must provide the following information that will be evaluated by the RFP EVALUATOR/evaluation committee:

	RFP Requirement
	Results

	
	Agreement/Acknowledgement

	ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW REQUIREMENTS

	Cover Sheet for RFP # 15-2883P with offeror name/address, phone, email, and signatory is attached to the original proposal.
	

	Signed Addenda (if appropriate) in accordance with Section 1.4.3
	

	Correctly executed State of Montana "Affidavit for Trade Secret Confidentiality" form, if claiming information to be confidential or proprietary in accordance with Section 2.3.
	

	Offeror acknowledged that it read, understands and will comply with each section/subsection listed in the table on page 4 by initialing the line to the left of each RFP section/subsection.  
	

	PROPOSAL SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS PER SECTION 1.6

	Offeror submitted one original (paper copy), one paper copy, and seven universal serial bus (USB) flash drives each containing one complete electronic copy of the technical proposal in Microsoft Word or portable document format (PDF) searchable as a single document with each section heading bookmarked.  If any confidential materials are included in accordance with the requirements of Section 2.3.2, they must be submitted on a separate USB flash drive. (1.6.5)
	

	Proposal is sealed and labeled on the outside of the package clearly indicating it is in response to RFP 15-2883P. (1.6.5)
	

	Proposal is received by the reception desk of the State Procurement Bureau prior to 2:00 p.m., Mountain Time, November 14, 2014. (1.6.5)
	

	Confidential information (including any provided in electronic media) is clearly marked and separated from the rest of the proposal (2.3.2)
	

	The proposal does not contain confidential material in the cost or price section (2.3.2).
	

	Proposal includes a copy of the offeror’s W9 Form (4.3).
	

	

	GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

	Offeror's proposal must be signed in ink by an individual authorized to legally bind the offeror.  The offeror's signature guarantees that the offer has been established without collusion.  Offeror shall provide proof of authority of the person signing the RFP upon State's request.  (1.5.5)
	

	By submitting this proposal, offeror is agreeing that the offer is in effect for 180 days from the date of proposal submission. (1.5.6)
	

	

	COMPLETE PROPOSAL 

	Offeror organized proposal into sections that follow the format of this RFP.  Proposals should be bound and must include tabbed dividers separating each section.  Proposal pages must be consecutively numbered. (1.6.1)
	

	Offeror included three sealed client reference forms as required by Appendix D.
	

	Technical Proposal follows the format of the Proposal Submission Requirements detailed in Section 4, including tabs for each section as follows:

	4.3 Transmittal Letter (TAB 1)
	

	4.4 Mandatory Requirements Checklist (this appendix) (TAB 2)
	

	4.5 Executive Summary (TAB 3)
	

	4.6 Corporate Qualifications  (TAB 4)

4.6.1-Corporate Capabilities and Commitment 

4.6.2-Corporate Integrity
4.6.3-Previous Successful Experience
	

	4.7 Staffing Requirements (TAB 5)

4.7.1-Personnel and Qualifications

4.7.2-Department Approval of Contractor Staff and Subcontractors

4.7.3-Staff Replacement Requirements

4.7.4-Timeframes

4.7.5-Department Approval
	

	4.8 References (TAB 6)
	

	4.9 Resumes (TAB 7)
	

	4.10 Offeror Financial Stability (TAB 8)
	

	4.11 Contractor Qualifications (TAB 9)

4.11.1-Experience with EBT Systems 

4.11.2-Staff Experience and Qualifications
	

	4.12 Approach to Project Services (TAB 10)
4.12.1-Approach to Transition Planning and Project Management Task

4.12.2-Approach to Compliance with Governing Regulations

4.12.3-Approach to Design and Development Task

4.12.4-Approach to Implementation Tasks (Statewide and Farmer)

4.12.5-Approach to Operations Phase

4.12.6-Approach to Contractor Turnover Task
	

	4.13 Core EBT Functional Requirements Worksheet (TAB 11)
	

	4.14 Service Organization’s Internal Control Assessment (TAB 12)
	

	Cost Proposal follows the format of the Proposal Submission Requirements detailed in Section 5, including tabs for each section as follows:

	5.3 Pricing Schedules A-1 CPCM Costs and A-2 WIC Implementation Costs (TAB 1)
	

	Pricing Schedule B: 
	

	Pricing Schedule C: 
	

	

	OPTIONAL AFFIDAVIT OF TRADE SECRET CONFIDENTIALITY 

	An affidavit from the offeror's legal counsel attesting to and explaining the validity of the trade secret claim as set out in Title 30, chapter 14, part 4, MCA, is attached to each proposal containing trade secrets.  Counsel must use the State of Montana "Affidavit for Trade Secret Confidentiality" form in requesting the trade secret claim.  This affidavit form is available on the OneStop Vendor Information website at:  http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/GSDDocuments.aspx or by calling (406) 444-2575
	

	

	TRANSMITTAL LETTER PER SECTION 4.3 

	Transmittal letter (TAB 1) is submitted on official business letterhead and contains the firm’s name and address.
	

	Transmittal letter clearly indicates name, title, mailing address, telephone number and facsimile number of offeror’s representative with the authority to bind the company to the proposal.
	

	Transmittal letter identifies all materials and enclosures being forwarded as a response to this RFP.
	

	Transmittal letter is signed by the individual authorized to commit the offeror company to the proposed scope of work.
	

	Identification of the corporation or other legal entity submitting the proposal and all subcontractors.  Non-Montana corporations must register with the Montana Secretary of State as a foreign corporation to conduct business in Montana and appoint a resident agent to accept service of process to conduct business in Montana.  Any foreign corporation, a limited liability company, limited liability partnership or limited liability limited partnership must affirm that it currently has a Certificate of Authority to do business in Montana.  Proof of such certification/licensure shall be provided upon request by the State.  Secretary of State’s website: http://sos.mt.gov/
	

	Disclosure of the intended use of subcontractors, if any.  If no subcontractors are to be used, then a statement indicating that should be included.
	

	Transmittal letter includes a statement that the offeror’s proposal is a binding offer.
	

	A statement of affirmative action that the offeror does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, age, sex, marital status, political affiliation, national origin or handicap and complies with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act.
	

	A statement that by submitting a proposal, the offeror affirms its acceptance of the RFP requirements without exception, and its willingness to enter into a contract containing substantially similar terms to the contract published with this RFP as Appendix B.
	

	Transmittal letter includes an attached completed W-9 form.
	

	Disclosure of all current or pending contracts of a similar size with any state and all bids or proposals submitted to any state, but not yet awarded.
	

	A statement that no cost or pricing information has been included in the technical proposal.
	

	A statement identifying all conflicts of interest or potential conflicts of interest related to the services described in this RFP, as outlined in Title 2 Chapter 2 Montana Code Annotated (MCA).  If a conflict of interest or potential conflict of interest is identified, include a plan to mitigate the conflict of interest.
	

	A statement that the offeror has reviewed the information and artifacts made available in the Bidder’s Library and is responsible for ensuring that they have access to the most current information presented in the library. The library contains information such as program caseload, call volume statistics, a listing of participating/authorized retail stores, farmers, farmers’ markets, sample program reports and other relevant information referenced throughout this RFP.  A list of documents that are available electronically in the Bidder’s Library at the time of release of this RFP is presented in Appendix F.  The Bidder’s Library is available online at http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/SolicitationDefault.aspx.
	

	

	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY PER SECTION 4.5

	The Executive Summary subsection (TAB 3) does not exceed five typewritten pages.  Charts, tables or other explanatory graphics are included in the page limit.
	

	

	CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS PER SECTION 4.6

	The Corporate Qualifications subsection (TAB 4) (including subsections 4.6.1, 4.6.2, and 4.6.3) does not exceed 10 typewritten pages.  Charts, tables or other explanatory graphics are included in the page limit.
	

	

	STAFFING REQUIREMENTS PER SECTION 4.7

	The Staffing Requirements subsection (TAB 5) (including subsections 4.7.1 through 4.7.5) does not exceed 10 typewritten pages.  Charts, tables or other explanatory graphics are included in the page limit.
	

	

	REFERENCES PER SECTION 4.8

	No fewer than three project references are provided, which include, at a minimum the reference organization’s name, location where the services were provided, contact person(s), customer’s telephone number, email address and a description of the services type with dates.  
	

	

	RESUMES PER SECTION 4.9

	Resumes (TAB 7) are provided for all key personnel as identified in subsection 4.7.1:

- Account Manager

- Project Manager

- Operations Manager

- Software Development Lead

- Testing Lead

- Training Lead

- Customer Service Manager
	

	

	OFFEROR FINANCIAL STABILITY PER SECTION 4.10

	The Offeror Financial Stability subsection (TAB 8) does not exceed five typewritten pages.  Charts, tables, other explanatory graphics and financial statements are not included in the page limit.   
	

	Includes a statement that clearly discloses the offeror's or any subcontractor's status relative to any court protected financial status during the past five years.
	

	Includes a disclosure of any and all judgments, pending or expected litigation or other real or potential financial reversals that might materially affect the viability or stability of the bidding organization or warrant that no such condition is known to exist.
	

	Identifies whether the offeror is a stand-alone or parent company or a subsidiary of another company.  If a subsidiary, include financial statements and notes for the parent company.
	

	Discloses other public entities/government agencies with which the offeror has contracts and the size of the contracts.
	

	

	CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATIONS PER SECTION 4.11

	The Contractor Qualifications subsection (TAB 9) (including subsections 4.11.1 and 4.11.2) does not exceed 55 typewritten pages.  Charts, tables or other explanatory graphics are included in the page limit.
	

	

	APPROACH TO PROJECT SERVICES PER SECTION 4.12

	The Approach to Project Services subsection (TAB 10), which includes responses to subsections 4.12.1 through 4.12.6, must not exceed 70 typewritten pages.  Charts, tables or other explanatory graphics are included in the page count. 
	

	

	CORE EBT FUNCTIONAL REQUIREMENTS WORKSHEET PER SECTION 4.13

	The Core EBT Functional Requirements Worksheet subsection (TAB 11) must include the completed worksheet from Section 3.2.11 through 3.2.11.23.1-9, by inserting the appropriate Offeror Compliance Code within the designated “OCC” column. Valid values for the Offeror Compliance Code column are (a) Comply, (b) Propose Alternative Solution, (c) Subcontractor.  The Response column may remain blank for requirements marked (a) Comply. Each page of these tables must be signed and dated by a person authorized to bind the offeror to this contract.  There are no page limits for this section.
	

	

	SERVICE ORGANIZATIONS INTERNAL CONTROL ASSESSMENT PER SECTION 4.14

	The Service Organization Internal Control Assessment subsection (TAB 12).
	

	


	RFP Requirement
	Results

	
	Agreement/Acknowledgement

	COST PROPOSAL SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS PER SECTION 5

	The offeror signed and dated each Proposal Price Schedule in the Cost Proposal in ink by an individual authorized to legally bind the business submitting the proposal.  
	

	The Cost Proposal is separate from the Technical Proposal, is sealed as a separate document and is clearly labeled on the outside:

COST PROPOSAL in Response to RFP15-2883P
Montana SNAP, Cash, and WIC EBT Services COST PROPOSAL
	

	Cost proposal includes one original (paper), two copies (paper), and two electronic copies of the Cost Proposal to the State Procurement Bureau in an envelope and clearly marked as the “COST PROPOSAL in response to RFP15-2883P on the outside of the sealed envelope.
	

	The electronic copies of the Cost Proposal is submitted on two universal serial bus (USB) flash drives each containing an electronic copy of the cost proposal in Microsoft Word or Excel format. PDF format is NOT acceptable
	

	Offeror provides the RFP Price Sheets found in Section 5. These price sheets serve as the primary representation of offeror's cost/price.  Offeror should include additional information as necessary to explain the offeror's cost/price.
	

	In Tab 1 of the Cost Proposal, the offeror acknowledges the Cost Proposal requirements contained in this section of the RFP, and provides a summary of the Cost Proposal elements to follow.
	

	_____________________________________________________________________________

     Signature                                                                                                                     Date




APPENDIX D:  CLIENT REFERENCE FORM

INSTRUCTIONS FOR OFFEROR

The offeror is solely responsible for obtaining three fully completed reference questionnaires from clients for whom the offeror has provided services substantially similar to the types proposed in this RFP, and for including them with their response.  To obtain and submit the completed reference questionnaires as required, follow the process detailed below.

(1)  Customize the standard reference questionnaire by adding the offeror's name, and make exact duplicates for completion by references.

(2)  Send the customized reference questionnaires to each person chosen to provide a reference along with a new standard #10 envelope. 

(3)  Instruct the person that will provide a reference for the offeror to: 

(a)
Complete the reference questionnaire;

(b)
Sign and date the completed, reference questionnaire;

(c)
Seal the completed, signed, and dated reference questionnaire within the envelope provided;

(d)
Sign his or her name in ink across the sealed portion of the envelope; and

(e)
Return the sealed envelope containing the completed reference questionnaire directly to the offeror.

(4)  Do NOT open the sealed references upon receipt.

(5)  Enclose all sealed reference envelopes within a larger envelope labeled References for RFP # 15-2883P to be submitted with your response.

NOTES:

•
The State will not accept late references or references submitted by any means other than that which is described above.  Each reference questionnaire submitted must be completed as required. 

•
The State will not review more than the three references requested.

•
These references may be contacted to verify offeror's ability to perform the contract.

•
The State reserves the right to use any information or additional references deemed necessary to establish the ability of the offeror to perform the conditions of the contract.  Negative references may be grounds for proposal disqualification. 

•
The State is under no obligation to clarify any reference information. 

Client References must be included with the offeror's response.  Responses must be received at the reception desk of the State Procurement Bureau prior to 2:00 p.m., Mountain Time, November 14, 2014.  References received after this time will not be accepted for consideration.  The offeror may wish to give each reference a deadline to ensure that the required references are received in time to be included with the response. 

CLIENT REFERENCE QUESTIONNAIRE
for RFP # 15-2883P Montana SNAP, TANF (Cash), and WIC Electronic Benefits Transfer Services Project
This standard reference questionnaire must be completed by all individuals providing a reference for the offeror.

The offeror is solely responsible for obtaining completed reference questionnaires as required and for enclosing the sealed reference envelopes with their response. 

REFERENCE SUBJECT:

OFFEROR'S NAME: 

The offeror specified above intends to submit a proposal to the State of Montana in response to RFP # 15-2883P Montana SNAP, TANF (Cash), and WIC Electronic Benefits Transfer Services Project.  As a part of this proposal, the offeror must include a number of completed and sealed reference questionnaires (using this form).  Each individual responding to this reference questionnaire is asked to follow these instructions: 

•
Complete this questionnaire (either using the form provided or an exact duplicate of this document);

•
Sign and date the completed questionnaire;

•
Seal the completed, signed, and dated questionnaire in the new standard #10 envelope provided by the offeror;

•
Sign in ink across the sealed portion of the envelope; and

•
Return the sealed envelope containing the completed questionnaire directly to the offeror.

Please note:  Reference Questionnaires must be included with the offeror's response and received at the reception desk of the State Procurement Bureau prior to 2:00 p.m., Mountain Time, November 14, 2014.  References received after this time will not be accepted for consideration.
Please provide the following information about the individual completing this reference questionnaire on behalf of the above-named offeror. 
	Client Information

	Organization Name (Client):
	Organization Address:

	Person Providing the Reference:
	Title:

	Phone Number:
	Email Address:

	Reference Signature and Date:


Signature
Date


(must be the same as the signature across the envelope seal)


1.  Briefly describe the services provided by the offeror identified above.

2.  How long have you been using the services from the offeror named above?

3.  Please briefly describe your role with the services.

4.  Rate each of the following concerning this offeror’s performance using the ratings from 0-4 below:

4 – Strongly Agree/Very Positive

3 – Agree/Positive 

2 – Neutral
1 – Disagree/Negative 

0 – Strongly Disagree/Very Negative
Rating


  Overall, you are very satisfied with the offeror’s products and services.


  Overall, you are very satisfied with the offeror’s staff.


  Overall, the offeror’s technical support staff is knowledgeable, competent, and responsive.

  The offeror's personnel are knowledgeable about the requirements of the system and business.


  The offeror is responsive without long wait times.

  The offeror is responsive to problems.

  Overall, you are very satisfied with the offeror’s training of the system and services.

  The offeror communicated issues and trouble areas early, and managed them well.

  The offeror implemented their system and services on schedule, and in accordance with the contract.

  The offeror implemented their system and services within budget and in accordance with the contract.

  How would you rate your overall satisfaction with the application?

5.  Please provide additional comments if desired.

APPENDIX E:  GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND ACRONYMS
	24x7
	24 hours a day, seven days a week, and 365 days a year (including the 366th day in a leap year).

	ACF
	United States Department of Health and Human Services Administration for Children and Families, the Federal agency that administers TANF. 

	ACH
	Automated Clearing House, a national banking network for the electronic transfer of payments. 

	ADA
	Americans with Disabilities Act

	AMA
	Account Management Agent

	ANSI
	American National Standards Institute

	APL
	Approved Product Lists

	ARMS
	Administrative Rules of Montana

	ASAP
	Automated Standard Application for Payments

	ATM
	Automated Teller Machine, used for access to benefits.

	Authorized Products List
	A list of all of the UPCs approved by Montana and downloaded to the retailers.

	BFSD
	Business and Financial Services Division, Department of Public Health and Human Services

	BIN
	Banking Identification Number

	BRD
	Benefit Redemption Division

	CAPS
	Child and Adult Protective Services System

	Cash
	Type of assistance distributed through the Montana Temporary Assistance for Needy Families program. 

	CAV
	Card Authentication Value

	CCI
	Common Client Index

	CCUBS
	Child Care Under the Big Sky System

	CFR
	Code of Federal Regulations

	CHIMES EA
	Combined Healthcare Information and Montana Eligibility System Enterprise Architecture

SNAP and Cash programs’ information system (CHIMES EA).

	Contract
	A legally binding agreement entered into by the State of Montana, which may result from awarding an offeror’s proposal. 

	CPCM
	Cost Per Case Month

	CSR
	Customer Service Representative

	DAR
	Deliverable Acceptance Request

	Deliverable
	Physical goods and/or services required or identified in a Statement of Work.

	DES
	Data Encryption Standard

	DMZ
	Demilitarized Zone in Computer Networking

	DOA
	Department of Administration

	DPHHS
	Montana Department of Public Health & Human Services, Montana state agency whose mission is to improve and protect the health, wellbeing, and self-reliance of all Montanans. 

	DUKPT
	Derived Unique Key Per Transaction

	EBT
	Electronic Benefits Transfer, a system that enables an authorized group of cardholders’ electronic access to State-authorized cash and food benefits. 

	EFT
	Electronic Funds Transfer

	ESB
	Enterprise Service Bus

	FAP
	Food Assistance Program

	Farmer
	An agriculturer authorized as a WIC retailer to accept the WIC Cash Value Benefits (CVB).

	Farmer’s Equipment 
	Equipment that can process EBT transactions including but not limited to farmer and farmer’s market point of sale equipment.

	Farmer’s Market
	A multi-stall market at which farmer-producers sell agricultural products directly to the general public at a central or fixed location, particularly fresh fruit and vegetables (but also meat products, dairy products, and/or grains).

	FNS
	Food and Nutrition Services, the part of the United States Department of Agriculture responsible for food assistance.

	FRB
	Federal Reserve Bank

	FSP
	Food Stamp Program

	GDI
	Government Designated Institution

	HCSD
	Human and Community Services Division, Department of Public Health and Human Services

	HHS
	Federal Department of Health and Human Services

	ID
	Identification

	IEEE
	Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers

	IIN
	Institutional Identification Number

	IRS
	Internal Revenue Service

	ISB
	Information Systems Bureau, Department of Public Health and Human Services

	ISDN
	Integrated Services Digital Network

	ISO
	Internatinal Standards Organization

	IT
	Information Technology

	IVR
	Interactive Voice Response

	LAN
	Local Area Network

	LARC
	Local Agency Retailer Coordinators

	Level 1 and 2 Certifications
	FNS currently requires recertification of vendor electronic cash register/point of sale systems when changes in configuration or software could potentially impact the integrity and accuracy of WIC food sales.  There are 3 levels of certification:

Lab Certification-

Level 1: System Developer Base Code

Level 2: Customized System Code

In-Store Certification-

Level 3: Production Environment

	M-SPIRIT
	Montana’s WIC information system

	Merchant
	For the purpose of using a single, common term in which the SNAP, Cash, and WIC programs can refer to, a merchant is defined as:

a) a retail merchant authorized to provide WIC authorized products for purchase by WIC cardholders;

b) a retail merchant authorized to provide SNAP authorized products for purchase by SNAP cardholders;

c) a farmer authorized as a WIC retailer to accept the WIC Cash Value Benefits (CVB);

d) a farmer’s market authorized to provide farm grown food products (particularly fresh fruit and vegetables but also meat products, dairy products, and/or grains) for purchase by SNAP cardholders.
Retail merchants performing EBT transfer transactions in liquor stores, casinos, gambling casinos, gaming establishments, or any retail establishment which provides adult-oriented entertainment in which performers disrobe or perform in an unclothed state for entertainment, are prohibited from participating in state-run EBT programs authorized by the USDA.    

	NCB
	Network and Communications Bureau, Department of Public Health and Human Services

	NIST
	National Institute for Standards and Technology

	OCC
	Offeror Compliance Code

	OIG
	Office of Inspector General

	OPA
	Offices of Public Assistance

	OR
	FNS Operating Rules Women Infants and Children Electronic Benefits Transfer Document

	OTC
	Over the Counter

	PAN
	Primary Account Number or Personal Account Number

	PBX
	Private Branch Exchange

	Personal Identification Number
	A number selected by the cardholder used to authenticate a transaction

	PIN
	Personal Identification Number. A unique identifier assigned to each user of the EBT card or authorized representative that allows access and use of EBT benefits. 

	PLU
	Price Look Up 

	PMB
	Project Management Bureau, Department of Public Health and Human Services

	PMBOK
	Project Management Body of Knowledge

	PMI
	Project Management Institute

	POS
	Point-of-Sale. Electronic devices located in retail locations that allow the EBT client or their authorized representative to access their benefits.

	Price Look Up Code
	A number used to identify produce typically four to five digits

	QA
	Quality Assurance

	REDE
	Retailer Electronic Data Exchange

	RFP
	Request for Proposal for designed to solicit proposals for services.

	RTM
	Requirements Traceability Matrix

	SEARCHS
	System for Enforcement And Recovery of CHild Support

	SFPD
	WIC Supplemental Food Programs Division

	SFSL
	Shared Fiscal Services Layer 

	SITSD
	State Information Technology Services Division, Department of Administration

	SNAP
	Supplemental Nutrition Program (formerly the Food Stamp Program)

	SSA
	Social Security Administration

	SSAE
	Statements on Standards for Attestation Engagements

	SSN
	Social Security Number

	State
	Refers to the State of Montana, unless otherwise indicated. 

	Standard Business Hours
	8:00 AM to 5:00 PM MT, Monday through Friday minus State holidays

	TANF
	Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, a specific type of Federal cash assistance within the Montana Department of Public Health & Human Services. Formerly Aid to Families with Dependent Children (AFDC)

	TEAMS
	The Economic Assistance Management System – The system currently used to determine eligibility and benefit issuance for TANF and SNAP. 

	TOP
	Treasury Offset Program

	TPP
	Third Party Processors

	TSD
	Technology Services Division, Department of Public Health and Human Services

	TTY
	Text Telephone

	UAT
	User Acceptance Testing

	Universal Product Code
	A number that identifies a food item represented by a bar code

	UPC
	Universal Product Code

	URL
	Uniform Resource Locator

	USDA
	United States Department of Agriculture – The federal agency that administers SNAP.

	WAN
	Wide Area Network

	WIC
	Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children, a food assistance program within the Montana Department of Public Health & Human Services.


APPENDIX F

BIDDER’S LIBRARY INVENTORY
The Bidder’s Library is available online at http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/SolicitationDefault.aspx and includes the following documents:

	File Name
	Document Description

	Using Your Montana Access Card
	SNAP & Cash Brochure titled “Using Your Montana Access Card”

	WIC Operating Rules Draft for Publication 12 21 2010 
	WIC FNS Operating Rules, Women Infants and Children, Electronic Benefits Transfer, Draft for publication. Publication Date: 12/21/2010

	WIC EBT Technical Implementation Guide Dated: March 2012 
	FNS’ WIC EBT Technical Implementation Guide Version 2012, Dated: September 30, 2012

	WIC Universal MIS EBT Interface Specification.pdf
	FNS WIC Universal MIS – EBT Interface Functional Requirements, June 2012

	SPIRIT Interface Documents
	Current documented SPIRIT interface.

	IRS Final Rule
	IRS Final Rule: Information Reporting for Payments Made in Settlement of Payment Card and Third Party Network Transactions (issued pursuant to the Housing Assistance Tax Act of 2008)

	Using Your Montana Access Card
	Current Benefit Issuance Schedule

	Process Request Interface 
	Detailed design specification document: EBT Process Request Interface Control Document, Document ID 42.04.01

	Payee Demographic Information
	Detailed design specification document: SFSL-EBT Payee Demographic Information Document, Document ID 42.04.03, July 10, 2012

	Benefit Aging Extract
	Detailed design specification document: Benefit Aging Extract and Update Document, Document ID 42.04.04, July 10, 2012

	Cancellation Extract Interface
	Detailed design specification document: EBT to SFSL Benefit Cancellation Extract Interface Control Document, Document ID 42.04.05, July 10, 2012

	Expungement Extract Interface
	Detailed design specification document: Expungement Extract Interface, Document ID 42.04.06, July 10, 2012.

	Montana EBT system user guide
	Source for a listing of existing activity reports. Guide contains content and schedule of all reports.

	Transaction Volume Statistics 
EBT Management Statistics Report
	Presents transaction volume statistics 


	Montana Access FM Support Plan
	Timesharing sessions or connections, online transactions, batch jobs, demand jobs

	WIC Participation by Category

SNAP Participation by Category 

TANF Participation by County
	Presents participant count by program and associated categories

	IVR Talk Time 2013-1-9 

IVR Calls Offered 2013-1-9
	IVR call volume statistics

	Monthly Utilization Summary                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
	Sample report: Monthly Utilization Summary (Cash Allocation) March 2012

	MT Access Cash ATM Transactions
	Sample report: Montana Access Cash ATM Transactions, March 2012

	Card Issuance Reissuance Detail
	Sample report: Montana EBT Card Issuance/Reissuance Detail, December 2011 through April 2012.

	Repayment Transaction Report
	Sample report: Montana EBT System Repayment Transaction, May 7, 2012

	Client Adjustment Report
	Montana Access System, Client Adjustment, May 7, 2012

	EBT Gateway Transaction Switch Auto Reconciliation
	Montana Access System, EBT Gateway Transaction Switch Auto-Reconciliation, May 7, 2012

	EBT System Clearing
	Montana EBT System, Clearing, May 7, 2012

	EBT System Database Value
	Montana EBT System, Database Value, May 7, 2012

	FS AMA Posting Summary
	Montana EBT System, FS AMA Posting Summary, May 7, 2012

	Benefit Batch Refresh Summary
	Montana EBT System, Benefit Batch Refresh Summary, May 7, 2012

	Daily Reconciliation Summary
	Montana EBT System, Daily Reconciliation Summary, May 7, 2012

	Code of Federal Regulations 7 CFR Part 246
	See http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title07/7cfr246_main_02.tpl

	Code of Federal Regulations 7 CFR Part 274
	See http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title07/7cfr274_main_02.tpl

	Code of Federal Regulations 7 CFR Part 277
	See http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title07/7cfr277_main_02.tpl

	Code of Federal Regulations 26 CFR Part 1, 31 and 301
	See http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?&c=ecfr&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title26/26tab_02.tpl

	Temporary Payroll Tax Cut Continuation Act, SEC. 4004. Spending Policies for Assistance Under State TANF Programs.
	Not available in Bidder’s Library. Please see Federal source.

	Transition Guide
	Guide for EBT System Transition

	FY 2014 Farm Bill Implementation Memo
	Memo describing the changes to SNAP benefits in the 2014 Farm Bill.


Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0040), Washington, DC 20503.





PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET.


SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY.





According to the Paperwork Reduction Act, as amended, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid OMB Control Number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is OMB No. 0348-0046. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 10 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0046), Washington, DC 20503.
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